
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
BARTLESVILLE CITY COUNCIL 

 
Monday, June 3, 2024  

 5:30 p.m. 
 

Mayor Dale Copeland 
918-338-4282 

 

City Hall, Council Chambers 
401 S. Johnstone Avenue 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Call to order the business meeting of the Bartlesville City Council by Mayor Copeland. 

 
2. Roll call and establishment of a quorum. 

 
3. The Invocation will be provided by Pastor Stephen Ivey, Greater First Baptist Church. 

 
4. Citizens to be heard. 

 
5. Discuss and take possible action to fill the City Council position for Ward 4 in the City of 

Bartlesville, and to possibly administer the Oath of Office to appointee. Presented by Mayor 
Copeland. 

 
6. City Council Announcements and Proclamations. 

• Purple Heart City Proclamation 
 

7. Authorities, Boards, Commissions and Committee Openings  
• One opening on the Ambulance Commission 
• One opening on the Bartlesville Area History Museum Trust Authority 

 
8. Consent Docket 

a. Approval of Minutes 
i. The Regular Meeting Minutes of May 6, 2024. 

 
b. Approval and/or Ratification of Appointments to Authorities, Boards, Commissions, and 

Committees. 
i. Appointment of Ms. Melanie Bayles to fill an unexpired position on the Bartlesville Area 

History Museum Trust Authority at the recommendation of Mayor Copeland. 
ii. Appointment of Ms. Laura Jensen to a three-year term on the Keep Bartlesville Beautiful 

Committee at the recommendation of Mayor Copeland. 
iii. Reappointment of Ms. Jana Tresher to an additional three year term on the Street and 

Traffic Committee at the recommendation of Councilmember Roszel. 
iv. Ratify appointment of Ms. Tara Gotwalt for a three-year term as Trustee for the Bartlesville 

Development Authority at the recommendation of Mayor Copeland. 
v. Ratify the election of Ms. Gayle Lester as Chair and Ms. Jamie Bennett as 

Secretary/Treasurer of the Bartlesville Development Authority for FY 2024-2025. 
 

c. Approval of Ordinances 
i. Ordinances and Joinder Agreements to implement Customized Manager Option (CMO) 

Plans through the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund (OKMRF). 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 d. Approval of Resolutions 
  i. Amending the contracts of the City Judge and Golf Professional adjusting their 

compensation to accommodate the approved cost of living adjustments and merit increases 
for Fiscal Year 2024-2025. 

  ii. Amending the budget of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma for Fiscal Year 2023-2024, 
appropriating unanticipated revenue for the Golf Course Memorial Fund. 

  iii.   Amending the budget of the City of Bartlesville for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 appropriating 
grant funds from the Oklahoma Department of Aerospace and Aeronautics (ODAA) for the 
Bartlesville Municipal Airport. 

     
 e. Approval and/or Ratification of Agreements, Contracts, Engagement Letters, Change 

Orders, Memorandums of Understanding, Fee Schedules, and Mayoral Proclamations 
and Letter. 

  i. Professional E-Rate Management Services – Fee Schedule between the City of 
Bartlesville/Bartlesville Public Library and Kellogg and Sovereign Consulting for completion 
and submission of all forms for E-Rate funding. 

  ii. Business Associate Agreement between the City of Bartlesville Group Benefit Plan and 
HCC Life Insurance Company to switch stop loss carriers from Optum to HCC Life 
Insurance Company. 

  iii.    Airport Hangar Lease Agreement between the City of Bartlesville/Bartlesville Municipal 
Airport and BMI Aviation to store one Socata TB21 aircraft in Hangar 8. 

iv. Airport Hangar Lease Agreement between the City of Bartlesville/Bartlesville Municipal 
Airport and Phoenix Rising Aviation, Inc. to lease South Hangar 1. 

v. Location Facilities Agreement (non-filmed location) between Sarah’s Oil, LLC and the City 
of Bartlesville/Bartlesville Municipal Airport for Hangar 2 for personnel, vehicles and 
equipment.  

vi. Amended Contract between the City of Bartlesville and Washington County SPCA. 
vii. Short Form Construction Contract between the City of Bartlesville and Haynes Equipment 

Company to install a replacement filter aide chemical feed system at the Water Treatment 
Plant. 

viii. Professional Service Contract between the City of Bartlesville and Keleher Architects for 
Architectural and Engineering Design of two equipment sheds located in the City’s 
operation yard. 

ix. Professional Services Agreement Amendment No. 3 between the City of Bartlesville and 
Tetra Tech, Inc. for engineering services for the Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion 
and the Limestone to Chickasaw Transport Corridor Improvements. 

x. Operation and Maintenance Contract Amendment No. 4 between the City of Bartlesville 
and Veolia Water for the Chickasaw Wastewater Treatment Plant.  

xi. Design Contract between the City of Bartlesville and CEC Corporation for engineering 
design for reconstruction of Yale Drive between Adams Boulevard and Frank Phillips 
Boulevard. 

xii. Agreement with CivicPlus for codification and ordinance bank subscription, and 
supplementation services. 

xiii. First Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between the City of Bartlesville and 
Jess M. Kane for his services as City Attorney. 

xiv.  Employment Agreement between the City of Bartlesville and Rocky R. Bevard to provide 
intensive background investigations on potential employees for the Bartlesville Police 
Department, a department of the City of Bartlesville, an Oklahoma municipal corporation 
and a charter city organized and existing pursuant to the Oklahoma State Constitution. 

xv.  A Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Bartlesville and Bartlesville 
Professional Firefighters, Local 200, International Association of Firefighters,  to provide 
paid administrative leave to Johnny Kelley, Bartlesville Fire Fighter and Barnsdall Mayor, so 
that he may provide full time assistance to Barnsdall to assist in its recovery effort from the 
May 6, 2024 tornado. 

xvi.  A Memorandum of Understanding updating Appendix 1 of the Fraternal Order of Police 
(FOP) Collective Bargaining Agreement for Fiscal Year 2023-2025 providing for a 6% cost 
of living increase. 



 
 
 

xvii. A Memorandum of Understanding updating Article 15 of the Fraternal Order of Police 
(FOP) Collective Bargaining Agreement for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 regarding payout of 
monthly stipends. 

xviii. Ratification of a Disaster Emergency Proclamation that was authorized and signed by 
Mayor Copeland at the request of Kary Cox, Director, Washington County Emergency 
Management on May 9, 2024 regarding the May 6, 2024 tornado event. 

xix. Ratification of a Detailed Rebuttal to Presumption of Minimal Adverse Impacts on Proposed 
Acquisition into Trust for Cherokee Nation Memo authorized and signed by Mayor 
Copeland on May 21, 2024. 

 
 f. Receipt of Bartlesville NEXT Progress Report 
  i. Bartlesville NEXT Progress Report – May 2024.  
 
 g. Receipt of Financials 
  i. Interim Financials for ten months ending April, 2024. 
 
 h.  Receipt of Bids 
  i. Bid No. 2023-2024-016 for the Pathfinder Improvements Projects 2024. 
  

9. Discuss and take possible action to award Bid No. 2023-2024-016 for the Pathfinder 
Improvements 2024 Project. Presented by Vice Mayor Curd. 
 

10. Public hearing and possible action on a request by Chris Hester to close a portion of the 
Interurban Street right-of-way located adjacent to Lot 1, Block 1, Highland Park, 2nd Addition, 
(225 NE Howard Avenue) Bartlesville, Washington County, Oklahoma. Presented by Micah 
Siemers, P.E., Director of Engineering.  

 
11. Discuss and take possible action on a recommendation from the Bartlesville Development 

Authority for extension of the resident Recruitment Program incentive. Presented by Chris 
Batchelder, Vice President, Business Development, Bartlesville Development Authority. 

 
12. New Business. 

 
13. City Manager and Staff Reports.   

 
14. City Council Comments and Inquiries. 

 
15. Adjournment. 

 
The Agenda was received and filed in the Office of the City Clerk and posted in prominent public 
view at City Hall at 5:30 p.m. on Thursday, May 30, 2024. 
 
Jason Muninger    /s/ Elaine Banes 
Jason Muninger, City Clerk/CFO    by Elaine Banes, Deputy City Clerk 
 
 
City of Bartlesville Website: https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/meeting-agendas/ 
Live Streaming: https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/webcast/ 
Sparklight: Channel 56 
  

 Open Meetings Act Compliance (25 O.S. Sec. 301 et seq.): all discussion items are subject to possible action by the City Council. Official 
action can only be taken on items which appear on the agenda. The City Council may adopt, approve, ratify, deny, defer, recommend, amend, 
strike, or continue any agenda item. When more information is needed to act on an item, the City Council may refer the matter to the City 
Manager, Staff or City Attorney, or back to a committee or other recommending body. Under certain circumstance, items are deferred to a 
specific later date or stricken from the agenda entirely. Agenda items requiring a public hearing as required by law will be so noted. The City 
Council may at their discretion change the order of the business agenda items. City of Bartlesville encourages participation from all its citizens. If 
participation at any public meeting is not possible due to a disability, notification to the City Clerk at least one working day prior to the scheduled 
meeting is encouraged to make the necessary accommodations. The City may waive this rule if signing is not the necessary accommodation. 

https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/meeting-agendas/
https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/webcast/


   

   
   

Official Proclamation 
 

A PURPLE HEART CITY 
  

WHEREAS, the people of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma have great admiration and 
the utmost gratitude for all the men and women who have selflessly served their country 
and this community in the Armed forces; and 
 
WHEREAS, veterans have paid the high price of freedom by leaving their families and 
communities and placing themselves in harm’s way for the good of all; and 
 
WHEREAS, the contributions and sacrifices of the men and women from the City of 
Bartlesville who served in the Armed forces have been vital in maintaining the freedoms 
and way of life enjoyed by our citizens; and 
 
WHEREAS, many men and women in uniform have given their lives while serving in the 
Armed forces; and 
 
WHEREAS, many citizens of our community have earned the Purple Heart Medal as a 
result of being wounded while engaged in combat with an enemy force, construed as a 
singularly meritorious act of essential service; and 
 
WHEREAS, May 6, 2024 has been officially designated as the day for the City of 
Bartlesville, Oklahoma to remember and recognize veterans who are recipients of the 
Purple Heart Medal. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, I, Dale Copeland, Mayor of the City of Bartlesville and on behalf 
of the City Council,  hereby proclaims the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma as a Purple 
Heart City, honoring the service and sacrifice of our nation’s men and women in uniform 
wounded or killed by the enemy while serving to protect the freedoms enjoyed by all 
Americans. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we hereunto set our hands 
and caused the Official Seal of the City of Bartlesville, 
Oklahoma, to be affixed this 3rd day of June, in the 
year of our Lord two thousand and twenty-four. 

   
                                                            

       Dale W. Copeland, Mayor 
 

Agenda Item 6.



 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
BARTLESVILLE CITY COUNCIL 

 
Monday, May 6, 2024  

Immediately following the  
Special Meeting of the  

Bartlesville Municipal Authority  
beginning at 5:30 p.m. 

 
Mayor Dale Copeland 

918-338-4282 
 

City Hall, Council Chambers 
401 S. Johnstone Avenue 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 

 
 
 

MINUTES 
(The Notice of Meeting was posted December 15, 2023 and the Agenda was posted May2, 2024 at 5:30 p.m. 

 
City Council present were Mayor Dale Copeland, Vice Mayor Jim Curd, Jr., Councilmembers 
Trevor Dorsey (arriving at 5:40 p.m.), and Loren Roszel.  

 
 City staff present were Mike Bailey, City Manager; Jess Kane, City Attorney; Jason Muninger, 

CFO/City Clerk; Laura Sanders, Assistant City Manager; Micah Siemers, Director of 
Engineering; Shellie McGill, Director of the Library and Museum; Kelli Williams, Chief 
Communications Officer; Larry Curtis, Director of Community Development; Alicia Shelton, 
Accountant; Kelsey Walker, Communications and Marketing Manager; Police Chief Kevin 
Ickleberry; Deputy Police Chief Troy Newell; Captain Andrew Ward; Fire Chief David Topping; 
Captain Travis Martinez, Security; and Elaine Banes, Executive Assistant.  

 
1. The business meeting of the Bartlesville City Council was called to order by Mayor 

Copeland at 5:36 p.m.  
 

2. Roll call was conducted and a quorum established. 
 

3. Citizens to be heard. 
 

There were no citizens to be heard. 
 

4. City Council Announcements and Proclamations. 
• Purple Heart City Proclamation – This proclamation was pulled from the agenda. 
• National Police Week May 12-18, 2024 Proclamation read by Vice Mayor Curd. 
• Presentation of Meritorious Conduct Awards to Police Officers Sergeant Jarred Burdick, 

Sergeant Caleb Samson, School Resource Officer Maggie Blevins; Citizens Thad 
Freidman, Peter Emmitt, Bon Bennett, Jack Williams, Craig Flowers, John Donoghue; 
and  Firefighters Jacob Hickok, Trevor Rabbitt, Jerison Monday and Matthew Larson.  
Presented by Police Chief Kevin Ickleberry and Fire Chief David Topping. 

 
5. Authorities, Boards, Commissions and Committee Openings  

• One opening on the Ambulance Commission 
• One opening on the Bartlesville Area History Museum Trust Authority 

 

Agenda Item 8.a.i. 



 
 
 
 

Mayor Copeland read the openings and encouraged citizens to volunteer on City 
Committees. Applications can be found at www.cityofbartlesville.org or at City Hall in the city 
Manager’s Office. 
 

6. Consent Docket 
a. Approval of Minutes 

i. The Regular Meeting Minutes of April 1, 2024. 
ii. The Special Meeting Minutes of April 15, 2024. 
iii. The Special Workshop Meeting Minutes of April 15, 2024. 

 
b. Approval or Ratification of Appointments to Authorities, Boards, Commissions, 

and Committees. 
i. Appointment of Ms. Allison Swift, Mr. Orville Burks and Ms. Kristy Kier to three year 

terms each on the Street and Traffic Committee at the recommendation of 
Councilmember Roszel. 

ii. Appointment of Mr. Cole Crockett to a three-year term on the Sewer System 
Improvements Oversight Committee at the recommendation of Mr. Dorsey. 

iii. Appointment of Ms. Jan Watt to a three-year term on the Community Center Trust 
Authority at the recommendation of Mayor Copeland. 

iv. Reappointment of Mr. Richard Keim for an additional three-year term on the 
Ambulance Commission at the recommendation of Mayor Copeland. 

v. Appointment of Dr. Gopal Chandrasekharan for a three-year term on the Keep 
Bartlesville Beautiful Committee at the recommendation of Mayor Copeland. 

. 
 c. Approval of Resolutions 
  i. Amending the Agreements by Resolution to the City Council’s employee agreements 

with  the City Manager, City Attorney, and Municipal Judge. 
  ii. Approving a Cooperative Law Enforcement Agreement by Resolution between the 

City of Bartlesville and the Bureau of Indian Affairs. 
     
 d. Approval of Agreements, Contracts, Engagement Letters, Change Orders, 

Memorandums of Understanding, and Grant Applications. 
  i. Renewal of City Manager’s Employment Agreement. 
  ii. Contract with Stephen Smith and The City of Bartlesville/Bartlesville Public Library 

for a Summer Reading Program performance. 
iii.  T-Hangar Lease Agreement with Brittany Day and the City of Bartlesville/Bartlesville 

Municipal Airport. 
iv. Contract between the City of Bartlesville and Debbie Neece, for a period of 

temporary employment to assist in the training and orientation of the incoming 
Collections Manager, Casey Sullivan. 

v. Lease Agreement Amendment #1 with Intuitech for equipment to conduct a pilot 
study for the Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion Improvements. 

vi. Agreement between the City of Bartlesville and Churches United for Community 
Concern, Inc. (CONCERN), setting out the roles and responsibilities for 
implementing the 2021 CDBG-Coronavirus Relief Program grant modification for 
rehabilitation of facilities to improve indoor air quality. 

vii. 2024 Addendum to the Administrative Services Agreement between the City of 
Bartlesville and RxBenefits. 

     
 e. Approval of Reelection of OMAG Board of Trustees  
  i. Reelect Mike Bailey and Craig Stephenson to the OMAG Board of Trustees. 
 

http://www.cityofbartlesville.org/


 
 
 
 
 
 f. Receipt of Financials 
  i. Interim Financials for nine months ending March 31, 2024. 
 
 g.  Receipt of Bartlesville NEXT Report 
  i. Bartlesville NEXT Progress Report – April 2024 
  

Mayor Copeland read the consent docket in its entirety.  
 

 Mr. Roszel moved to approve the consent docket as presented, seconded by Vice Mayor 
Curd. 

 
Voting Aye:  Vice Mayor Curd, Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 

  
7. Public hearing and possible action on a request by Andrew Oleson to close a portion 

of a  20-foot-wide utility easement located on the north side of  Lot 28, Block 37, 
Pennington Hills, Fifth Addition, Bartlesville, Washington County, Oklahoma. 
Presented by Micah Siemers, P.E., Director of Engineering.  
 
Mr. Siemers reported that the applicant, Mr. Oleson, requested the closure so that he can 
construct a storage building in the back yard of the property. He requested a utility locate and 
no utilities were marked in this portion of the yard and wants to use it more effectively. There 
is a 20’ wide utility in the rear of the adjacent lot to the north where overhead electric, 
communications, and sanitary sewer are located. Staff received no objections from any City 
departments, or from ONG, AT&T or Sparklight. PSO stated that for adequate and safe 
access to their facilities located in the 20’ easement north of and adjacent to this lot, they 
need to maintain access to all existing easements. They did not support closing any portion 
of the 20’ easement. Staff recommends denial of the request to vacate the south 10 feet of 
the 20-foot utility easement based upon input received from PSO. 
 
The Mayor opened the public hearing at 5:58 p.m. There being no one appear to speak, the 
Mayor closed the public hearing at 5:58 p.m. 
 
A brief discussion was held covering how it is rare that an utility company does not support 
an easement closing request; that nothing had been built over the easement yet; and that 
staff and the applicant were appreciated for their due diligence. 
 
Mr. Roszel moved to deny the request as recommended by City staff, seconded by Mr. 
Dorsey. 
 
Voting Aye:  Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 
 

8. Public hearing and possible action on a request by Arcadian Housing to close a 
portion of nineteen (19) different 7.5-foot-wide utility easements located in Oak Wood 
Addition, Bartlesville, Washington County, Oklahoma. Presented by Micah Siemers, 
P.E., Director of Engineering.  

 



 
 
 
 

Mr. Siemers reported that the applicant has been approved to redevelop the majority of the 
lots located within the Oak Wood Addition subdivision This subdivision was never fully 
developed, with approximately 90% of the lots in this subdivision being left vacant. Water, 
sewer, storm sewer and roads were constructed at the time, but the streets were not built to 
City standards and were not accepted. Unused portions of water and sewer lines are so old 
and unused, that improvements to those systems have been required of the developer along 
with reconstruction of the streets to bring them into compliance with standards. As part of this 
process, the developer, Arcadian Housing, has proposed to construct residential houses that 
are somewhat larger than what was originally planned for this subdivision. They have 
requested reducing some of the existing utility easements from 7.5’ wide to 5’ wide to make 
room for the proposed houses. Staff received no objections from City departments or from 
ONG, PSO, AT&T or Sparklight as all but AT&T do not have facilities located within the 
easements and therefore do not object. AT&T has older, unused copper lines within the 
easements and they placed a work order to have abandoned and therefore do not have any 
issues with the request. Staff recommends authorizing the Mayor to execute the ordinance 
vacating the portions of the utility easements as presented.  
 
A brief discussion was held covering the original development plan and the most current 
development plans, and how the lot size has become larger in the current plans. 
 
The Mayor opened the public hearing at 6:11 p.m. Appearing to speak was Susan Marshall 
inquiring about the distance between properties. There being no one further appear to speak, 
the Mayor closed the public hearing at 6:13 p.m. 
 
Vice Mayor Curd moved to adopt the Ordinance as presented, seconded by Mr. Dorsey. 
 
Voting Aye:  Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd, Mr. Roszel, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 

 
9. Public hearing and possible action on a Resolution adopting the City of Bartlesville 

Budget for Fiscal Year 2024-2025 and establishing budget amendment authority, 
authorizing the cancellation of encumbrances which are not due and payable as of 
June 30, 2024, and re-appropriating amounts of cancelled encumbrances to the same 
fund and department for Fiscal Years 2024-2025. Presented by Jason Muninger, 
CFO/City Clerk.  

 
Mr. Muninger reported that the only changes to the budget from the workshop meeting was 
providing an option to approve Resolution “B” that would contain data funding two patrol 
positions that were exchanged for dispatch positions contained in Resolution “A”. The cost of 
the two additional positions will be $149,000, and there was budgetary capacity to absorb the 
additional cost. An additional change was made for the roof for the Golf Club House.  
 
Vice Mayor Curd and Mr. Roszel expressed their appreciation of adding two patrol positions 
to the budget at no expense to the increased positions for dispatcher.  
 
The Mayor opened the public hearing at 6:20 p.m. There being no one further appear to 
speak, the Mayor closed the public hearing at 6:21 p.m. 
 
Mr. Roszel moved to approve Resolution “B” as presented, seconded by Vice Mayor Curd. 
 
Voting Aye:  Vice Mayor Curd, Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey, Mayor Copeland 



 
 
 
 

Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 

 
10. Discuss and take possible action to approve the Capital Improvements Program (CIP) 

Budget for Fiscal Year 2024-2025. Presented by Micah Siemers, P.E., Director of 
Engineering.  
 
Mr. Siemers reported that In August of 2020, the citizens of Bartlesville voted to extend a 
one-half cent sales tax to finance capital improvements for a five year period.  The 
authorizing ordinance stated that this sales tax is to be used for the making of capital 
improvements, to include, but not limited to “roads and streets, drainage improvements, 
water improvements, sewer improvements, machinery and equipment, furniture and fixtures, 
rights-of-way, all real property, all construction or reconstruction of buildings, appurtenances 
and improvements to real property and other costs and expenses related thereto.”  He 
reviewed the specific list of improvements which is to be financed from the proceeds of this 
tax, to the extent funds are available.  He reviewed the projects that were advertised for the 
election and that make up 70% of the anticipated revenue generated through this sales tax, 
while the other projects, which were approved by Council, make up the remaining 30% of the 
funds. The accounting staff identified in the FY 2024-2025 Operating Budget for the Capital 
Improvement Project (CIP) Sales Tax Fund, a $4,713,853 budget for new projects.  Carry 
over projects totaling $4,675,044 include the committed capital funding for previous fiscal 
year projects that have not yet been completed.  He reviewed the staff compiled list of 
proposed FY 2024-2025 ½ cent sales tax capital improvement projects (CIP) totaling 
$3,966,860 for Council consideration which included CIP carry over and proposed projects; 
highlighted projects that are priority (70%) projects; and the projects  assembled from the list 
of voter approved projects in the original 2020 ½ cent sales tax CIP. Mr. Siemers continued 
reporting that in addition to allocating funds from the ½ cent sales tax revenue source, 
proposed carry over projects were presented for the Wastewater Fund, City Hall Fund, and 
Storm Sewer Fund, as well as the 2019A, 2019B, 2021A, 2022 and 2023 General Obligation 
Bond funds.  He reviewed staff recommended proposed projects for the Wastewater Fund, 
Wastewater Regulatory Fund and City Hall Fund, as well as the 2018B General Obligation 
Bond Fund and the carry over and proposed projects for the Capital Reserve Fund. He 
concluded that changes since the workshop meeting on April 15th, 2024 are minimal.  One 
project to replace the roof on the north end of the golf course club house was added, moved 
from FY 25-26 of the CIP schedule and added as a new project for FY 24-25. The original 
planned budget for that project as $30,000, but based upon quotes received for the work it 
has increased to $50,000. This decreased the unallocated portion of the CIP budget.  
 
Discussion covered how inflation has turned around; downtown landscaping, design and 
cost; golf course improvements and equipment; and the purchase of a custom fire truck. 
 
Vice Mayor Curd moved to approve the CIP Budget for FY 2024-2025 as presented, 
seconded by Mr. Dorsey. 
 
Voting Aye:  Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 
 

11. Presentation of Street & Traffic Committee recommended Preventative Maintenance 
Street Projects for approved funding in FY’s 21-22, 22-23, and 23-24, with possible 
action for Council recommendation. Presented by Micah Siemers, P.E., Director of 
Engineering. 



 
 
 
 

Mr. Siemers reported that in August of 2020, the citizens of Bartlesville voted to extend a 
one-half cent sales tax to finance capital improvements for a five year period.  The 
authorizing ordinance stated that this sales tax is to be used for the making of capital 
improvements, to include, but not limited to “roads and streets, drainage improvements, 
water improvements, sewer improvements, machinery and equipment, furniture and fixtures, 
rights-of-way, all real property, all construction or reconstruction of buildings, appurtenances 
and improvements to real property and other costs and expenses related thereto.”  A specific 
list of improvements which is to be financed from the proceeds of this tax, included allocation 
of $1,000,000 each year for preventative maintenance (PM) street projects, totaling 
$5,000,000.  While the actual schedule of funding each year varies for the street projects, the 
overall total planned over five years equates to the approved $5,000,000.  One of the other 
projects included with this extension was to hire a consultant to update the pavement 
condition model used to assist with selecting street projects for funding.  Historically, the PM 
street projects are selected by the Street & Traffic Committee based upon lists of 
recommended projects compiled by the Engineering Department. These projects are 
selected based upon multiple factors, with one of the primary factors being the Pavement 
Condition Index (PCI) that is determined using the pavement condition model.  At the time of 
the sales tax extension, the model was out of date, thus the inclusion of a project to update 
the model.  Rather than selecting PM street projects based off of out-of-date information, the 
funds were banked until the model was updated. The City Council approved a contract with 
Infrastructure Management Services (IMS) in September, 2021 to update the model.  The 
final version of the model was completed in May, 2023.  At that point Engineering staff went 
to work to compile a list of PM street projects to present to the Street & Traffic Committee for 
not only the PM street projects funded in FY’s 22, 23, and 24, but also for the street projects 
included in the 2023 General Obligation (GO) Bond election held in October, 2023.  The 
initial focus was on the GO Bond projects since they needed to be selected earlier in the year 
to facilitate the fall election.  The committee was able to review and approve a list of PM 
projects for City Council consideration at the August 10, 2023 Street & Traffic Committee 
meeting.  Information had also been presented to the committee prior to the selection 
meeting as part of the planning process for the GO Bond projects.  The committee was 
presented with $3,455,000 in potential PM street projects with a budget of $2,775,000 based 
upon the following funding that had been approved for the first three years of the 5-year 
capital sales tax extension: FY 21-22 $587,000; FY 22-23 $1,238,000; FY 23-24 $950,000 
totaling $2,775,000. The projects identified for PM street projects generally consist of 
pavement rehabilitation applications that extend the life of pavements that are in relatively 
good condition.  These applications include, but are not limited to the use of pavement 
rejuvenators and sealers, micro-surfacing, thin asphalt overlays, and crack sealing on asphalt 
streets, along with crack sealing and minor panel replacement or patching on concrete 
streets.  As always, the committee took into consideration the traffic volume, street 
classification, and other factors and tried to spread the projects around the entire city. Mr. 
Siemers reviewed the list of projects presented to the Street & Traffic Committee along with 
the final list of projects the committee selected for City Council consideration.  It should be 
noted that an additional $1,000,000 of PM street funding is being recommended for Council 
approval as part of the FY 24-25 capital budget.  Staff will be working with the Street & Traffic 
Committee in the coming months to identify projects for those funds and will come back to 
the City Council with a recommendation.   
 
Mr. Roszel thanked the members of the Street and Traffic Committee for their work on this, 
adding that they do a great job. 
 
Mr. Dorsey moved to approve the projects as presented, seconded by Mr. Roszel. 
 



 
 
 
 

 
Voting Aye: Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd, Mr. Roszel, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay: None 
Motion: Passed 

 
12. Presentation of staff recommended issuance schedule for 2023 General Obligation 

Bond Projects with possible action for Council recommendation. Presented by Micah 
Siemers, P.E., Director of Engineering. 

 
Mr. Siemers reported that at the July 3, 2023 Regular City Council meeting, the City Council 
authorized the calling and holding of a special election for voters to consider the issuance of 
$17,600,000 in General Obligation Bonds for capital improvements.  The ballot included four 
(4) propositions: Proposition No. 1 - $2,412,000 for Public Safety Buildings and Facilities 
Proposition No. 2 - $696,000 for Municipal Building and Facilities Proposition No. 3 - 
$12,278,000 for Street and Bridge Projects Proposition No. 4 - $2,214,000 for Parks and 
Recreation Facilities. Voters approved all four (4) propositions at the October 10, 2023 
election.  Bond council projected that the $17,600,000 in G.O. Bond funds will be issued over 
four (4) years as follows: Series 2024 - $3,500,000 Series 2025 - $3,250,000 Series 2026 - 
$3,750,000 Series 2027 - $7,100,000. Staff assembled a schedule of projects to fall within 
the anticipated funding availability for each bond issuance. Mr. Siemers reviewed the 
schedule of projects (attached to these minutes). 
 
Vice Mayor Curd moved to approve the issuance schedule as presented, seconded by Mr. 
Dorsey. 
 
Voting Aye:  Vice Mayor Curd, Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 

 
13. Presentation and receipt of the FY 2023-2024 Annual Report of the Bartlesville 

Development Authority and the plan, and take possible action to approve the 
proposed operating budget for FY 2024-2025, appropriating funds from the Economic 
Development Fund to support annual operations. Presented by David Wood, 
President, Bartlesville Development Authority. 

 
Mr. Wood presented his annual report and review of the budget line by line.  
 
Vice Mayor Curd moved to approve the BDA Budget as presented, seconded by Mr. Dorsey. 
 
Voting Aye:  Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 

 
14. Discuss and take possible action to approve the annual contract between the City of 

Bartlesville and the Bartlesville Development Authority for Economic Development 
Services for the period of July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025. Presented by David 
Wood, President, Bartlesville Development Authority. 

 
Mr. Wood presented the annual contract stating that the only changes made from previous 
years contracts were to the dates and the amount which is $839,749. 
 



 
 
 
 

Vice Mayor Curd moved to approve the annual contract as presented, seconded by Mr. 
Dorsey. 
 
Voting Aye: Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd, Mr. Roszel, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay: None 
Motion: Passed 

 
15. Receive Visitors Inc. FY 2023-24 Annual Report, and take possible action to approve 

the Visitors Inc. Fiscal Year 2024-25 Operating Budget.  Presented by Maria Gus, 
Executive Director, Visit Bartlesville.   

 
Ms. Gus presented her annual report and reviewed the operating budget. Discussion covered 
a request for $43,000 increase to cover personnel COLA increases and marketing expenses. 
 
Vice Mayor Curd moved to approve the Visitors Inc. FY 2024-20-25 Operating Budget as 
presented, seconded by Mr. Dorsey. 
 
Voting Aye:  Vice Mayor Curd, Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 

 
16. Discuss and take possible action to approve the Destination Marketing Agreement 

between the City of Bartlesville and Visit Bartlesville for the period of July 1, 2024 
through June 30, 2025. Presented by Maria Gus, Executive Director, Visit Bartlesville.  

 
Ms. Gus reported that the agreement is the same as the previous year with only the dates 
and amount which is $445,000. 
 
Vice Mayor Curd moved to approve the Destination Marketing Agreement as presented, 
seconded by Mr. Dorsey. 
 
Voting Aye:  Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd,  Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 

 
17. Discuss and take possible action on the strategic direction of Adams Municipal Golf 

Course. Presented by Laura Sanders, Assistant City Manager. 
 

Ms. Sanders reported that at the City Council meeting on April 15, 2024, the strategic 
direction of the Adams Municipal Golf Course was discussed. It was determined that staff 
would gather information to develop a Request for Proposals (RFP) for a consultant/firm 
to conduct a comprehensive strategic review of the Adams Municipal Golf Course, as well 
as comparable golf courses to identify how these courses are managed in comparison to 
Adams. The first task that staff recommends is creating a steering committee comprised 
of two members from City staff, two City Council members, two members from the 
Adams Golf Course operating committee as well as at least one subject expert. This 
committee will be used to provide some guidance during the review process and the final 
review will be presented to the steering committee to determine the recommendation. 
The steering committee's recommendation would ultimately be presented to the City 
Council for discussion and approval. For the first option (Option #1), Council will find an 
RFP enclosed that staff has drafted. The scope of the RFP is included below: 
 



 
 
 
 

• The consultant(s) will evaluate comparable facilities to determine their 
management structure, existing contracts/agreements of personnel and how they 
are compensated; the number of employees they have on the course and in the 
pro shop; the number of volunteers and how they are compensated; assess 
inventory of merchandise; assess food and beverage sales; examine course and 
membership fee schedules and other revenue; evaluate cart management 
including fees; and evaluate transfers to the golf course from the City's general fund 
and/or other subsidies. 

 
• The consultant(s) will evaluate Adams Municipal Golf Course (ADAMS) to 

determine their management structure, existing contracts/agreements of personnel 
and how they are compensated; the number of employees they have on the course 
and in the pro _s hop; the number of volunteers and how they are compensated; 
assess inventory of merchandise; assess food and beverage sales; examine 
course and membership fee schedules and other revenue; evaluate cart 
management including fees; and evaluate transfers to the golf course from the 
City's general fund and/or other subsidies. 

 
• Conduct an analysis of all the data gathered and compile an in-depth analysis 

comparing the ADAMS model to comparable municipal courses. 
 
• Submit recommendations for appropriate management structure and be prepared 

to present those recommendations to a steering committee and the City Council. 
 
Another option (Option #2) that Council discussed at the April 15th meeting was to have 
city staff conduct the comprehensive review instead of having a consultant/firm 
conduct it. If staff were to complete the review the scope would remain the same as far 
as what would be evaluated at the comparable courses and the same process would 
be followed. The courses that would be used for comparison purposes for this option 
would include the following. Of course, this list could change based on the steering 
committee's recommendations. 
 
• Lew Wentz Golf Course in Ponca City, OK 
• KickingBird Golf in Edmond, OK 
• Battle Creek Golf Club in Broken Arrow 
• John Conrad Regional Golf Course in Midwest City, OK 
• Bailey Ranch Golf Club in Owasso, OK 
• Heritage Hills Golf Course in Claremore, OK 
 
There are advantages and disadvantages to each option. Option #1 would allow for 
subject experts to conduct the comprehensive review which would be beneficial; 
however, it could be a costly endeavor that would be a lengthy process. There is also 
the risk of there being some bias in having a consultant complete the review as some 
agencies that complete these types of studies also provide management services for 
golf courses. Option #2 would authorize city staff to complete the comprehensive 
review. The disadvantage to this option is that it wouldn't be a subject expert completing 
the review; however, it would be presented and guided by a steering committee with 



 
 
 
 

subject experts on it. While this would be a big project for city staff, it would save the city 
money and could be completed within three months after the project started. Staff 
recommends that Council take action on submitting a Request for Proposals to have a 
consultant/firm conduct a comprehensive review of Adams Municipal Golf Course or 
directing staff to complete the comprehensive review. 
 
Discussion covered the amount of time the issuance of an RFP would take; how much a 
consultant may cost; how the management is important especially due to the improvements 
and financial commitment is being made to the golf course; how the knowledge of those who 
sit on the Operating Committee is important for management input; and how an ad hoc 
steering committee would be instrumental as a recommending body only. 
 
Mr. Dorsey moved to authorize the formation of an ad hoc steering committee, to appoint 
Vice Mayor Curd and himself to sit on the ad hoc committee; authorize Ms. Sanders to issue 
the RFP; and to have staff reach out to comparable communities for golf course 
management information, seconded by Vice Mayor Curd. 
 
Voting Aye:  Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd,  Mr. Roszel, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 

 
18. Discuss and take possible action to adopt an ordinance permitting the use of golf 

carts on City streets. Presented by Mike Bailey, City Manager. 
 

Mr. Bailey reported that Councilmember Roszel has expressed an interest in exploring an 
ordinance that would permit the safe use of golf carts on City streets. After discussion, Mr. 
Bailey was able to obtain a few model ordinances used by other cities in Oklahoma. The 
proposed  ordinance is the result of the review of these ordinances, input from City staff, and 
a final review by our City Attorney. The major impacts of this ordinance are: 
 

• Permit golf carts to be used on city streets 
• Require a valid driver’s license for any operators 
• Only permitted on streets with speed limits not in excess of 35mph 
• Passengers must sit in the designated seating area of the cart only 
• Cart must maintain a speed less than or at 20mph 
• State law relating to headlamps and tail lamps must be followed if a cart is used at 

night 
• Must be posted as a slow moving vehicle 
• Carts must follow all applicable rules of the road 
•   Carts may only enter a State highway for the perpendicular crossing of said highway 

 
Mr. Bailey concluded that City staff supports the implementation of this ordinance. 
 
Discussion covered Mr. Roszel’s appreciation of staff putting his request forward; how many 
citizens use golf carts to assist them, particularly those with disabilities; how the Mayor was 
not comfortable with allowing golf carts on roadways and that he would like additional data 
from other comparable towns before voting. 
 
Mr. Roszel moved to table the adoption the ordinance until the June 3, 2024 Regular 
Meeting, seconded by Mr. Dorsey. 
 
 



 
 
 
 

Voting Aye:  Vice Mayor Curd,  Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 

 
19. Discuss and take possible action to formally receive applications for Ward 4 City 

Council seat.  
 

Mayor Copeland reported that the deadline for applications was May 2 at 11:30 a.m. Once 
received at this meeting, interviews will be set up with eligible applicants with a decision 
hopefully determined at the June 3, 2024 Regular City Council Meeting. He expressed his 
appreciation to those who submitted applications as well as though who even considered the 
position. 
 
Mayor Copeland moved to receive the applications as presented, seconded by Mr. Roszel. 
 
Voting Aye:  Mr. Roszel, Mr. Dorsey, Vice Mayor Curd, Mayor Copeland 
Voting Nay:  None 
Motion:  Passed 

 
20. New Business. 

 
There was no new business to discuss. 

 
21. City Manager and Staff Reports.   

 
Mr. Bailey welcomed new Assistant City Manager Laura Sanders to her first meeting as 
ACM. 
 
He also reported that the lakes are full, even at flooding capacity. Crews are stationed 
around town this evening due to the impending storm activity and will stay in communication 
with each other and officials. 
 

22. City Council Comments and Inquiries. 
 
Mayor Copeland reminded citizens of the free yard debris pickup this week, and he also 
welcomed Ms. Sanders. 
 
Mr. Dorsey added that former Assistant City Manager Tracy Roles had his formal meet and 
greet in Ada this afternoon. 
 

23. There being no further business to address, Mayor Copeland adjourned the meeting at  
8:32 p.m. 

 
 
 
                                                                
        Dale W. Copeland, Mayor 
 
 
                                                           
 Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 

 



8.b.i.





8.b.ii.





Agenda Item ___ 

 

Prepared by Kim Toulouse 

      Engineering Department 

For 6/3/24 City Council Meeting 

 

 

 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 
 

A.  SUBJECT: 

Re-Appointment of Jana Tresher to the Street and Traffic Committee at the recommendation of  

Councilman Roszel. 

 

        ATTACHMENTS: 

Email correspondence from Ms. Tresher wanting to serve another term.  

 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS. 

  

 Ms. Tresher was appointed to the Street and Traffic Committee in September, 2019 to fill the unexpired     

term of Dan Oglesbee which expired 2/21.  She was re-appointed and served a 3 year term on the committee 

which expired 2/24.  She is willing to serve another 3 year term. 

 

        Staff recommends the re-appointment of Ms. Tresher to the Street and Traffic Committee. 

8.b.iii.



Agenda Item 8.b.iv. 





8.c.i.











































































































































8.d.i.





Agenda Item ___ 
May 29, 2024 

Prepared by Jason Muninger. CFO/City Clerk 
Accounting and Finance 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
 A resolution amending the budget of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma for Fiscal Year 2023-
2024, appropriating unanticipated revenue for the Golf Course Memorial Fund. 
 
Attachments: 

Golf Course Memorial Unanticipated revenue Resolution 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
The Memorial Fund has garnered $72,750 in donations, which is $47,750 more than is currently 
budgeted.  These Funds will be utilized for maintenance related items around the golf course. 
These funds must be appropriated to prior to their expense. 
 

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends approval of resolution to appropriate these unbudgeted funds. 

8.d.ii.



RESOLUTION ___________ 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE BUDGET OF THE CITY OF 
BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023–2024, 
APPROPRIATING UNANTICIPATED DONATION REVENUE IN THE GOLF 
COURSE MEMORIAL FUND FOR BUNKER RENOVATION. 
 
 
WHEREAS, THE City of Bartlesville has received unbudgeted donations in the amount 
of $47,750; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Bartlesville needs to appropriate $47,750 of these revenues prior 
to their expenditure; 
 
NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA that: 
 
 The Municipal Golf Course Dept (445) of the Golf Course Memorial Fund 

(244) shall be increased as follows: 
 

 Other Improvements (55930) $ 47,750 
 

 
APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND SIGNED BY THE MAYOR OF THE 
CITY OF BARTLESVILLE THIS 3rd DAY OF JUNE, 2024. 
 
 
 
   
  Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
 
  
 City Clerk 



8.d.iii.







































































 8.e.i.









8.e.ii.











































8.e.iii.

















 8.e.iv.

















 8.e.v.







8.e.vi.

















Agenda Item ___ 
May 29, 2024 

Prepared by Terry Lauritsen 
Water Utilities Department 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Approval of a contract with Haynes Equipment to install a replacement filter aide chemical feed 
system at the water treatment plant. 
 
Attachments: 

Short Form Contract and Contractor Quotes 
 

II. PROJECT DESCRIPTION, STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS, AND BUDGET 
AMOUNT. 
 
One of the capital projects this fiscal year, through the water plant’s operational fund, is to replace 
a filter aide chemical feed system at the water plant.  This chemical feed system consists of a 
mixing and injection system that integrates into the water plant’s SCADA system to deliver the 
desired dosage of chemical into the filtration system.     
 
Staff has reached out to three (3) regional contractors for this work and received the following 
quotes. 
 
 Haynes Equipment (Oklahoma City, OK)  $66,055.00 

Environmental Improvements (Edmond, OK) $97,600.00 
 Broken Arrow Electric (Broken Arrow, OK)  No bid 
 
   
 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
$100,000 is allocated toward the replacement of this chemical feed unit.  The low bid, $66,055.00 
from Haynes Equipment, is within the available budget. 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends awarding the contract to install a replacement filter aide chemical feed system 
to Haynes Equipment in the amount of $66,055. 

8.e.vii.



                
 
 CITY OF BARTLESVILLE 
 SHORT FORM CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
 

1 of 3 

 THIS AGREEMENT, made this 3rd day of June, 2024, by and between Haynes Equipment 
Company hereinafter called "Contractor", and the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma, hereinafter called 
"City". 
 
 WITNESSETH, that the Contractor and the City, for considerations hereinafter named, 
agree as follows: 
 
1. SCOPE OF WORK.  The project shall include all labor, equipment, materials and expense 

necessary to install a filter aid polymer unit including all plumbing, and electric connections 
as well as integrating the new unit into the existing SCADA system at the water plant.. 

 
2. TIME OF COMPLETION.  Installation and restoration shall be complete by October 4, 

2024.  
 
3. CONTRACT SUM.  The City will pay the Contractor for the performance of this contract 

based on the quoted lump sum price totaling ($66,055.00).  This contract amount may be 
amended by written agreement of the parties if additional work is added for repairs to the 
structure and footings. 

 
4. ACCEPTANCE AND PAYMENT.  Payment will be made by the City for the fabrication of 

the equipment prior to delivery of the equipment in accordance with the manufacturers 
conditions, with the balance of payment once the unit is installed, operational and accepted, 
subject to the provisions of Paragraph 11 and 14 of the General Conditions.  Partial 
payments will be allowed based on percent of work complete at the time of request. 

 
 GENERAL CONDITIONS 
 
1. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS.  The Contract includes the Agreement and its General 

Conditions, and any additional written directives from the Engineer.  The intent of these 
documents is to include all labor, materials, equipment, and services of every kind necessary 
for the proper execution of the work, and the terms and conditions of payment therefore.  
The documents are to be considered as one, and whatever is called for by any one of the 
documents shall be as binding as if called for by all. 

 
2. DEFINITIONS.  "City" shall refer to the Director of Water Utilities or other designated 

administrative official of the City of Bartlesville.  
 
3. MATERIALS, EQUIPMENT, EMPLOYEES.  Except as otherwise noted, the Contractor 

shall provide and pay for all materials, labor, tools, water, power, and other items necessary 
to complete the work.  Unless otherwise specified, all materials shall be new.  Workmanship 
and materials shall be of superior quality and acceptable to the City.  All workers shall be 
skilled in their trades. 

 
4. SURVEY, PERMITS AND REGULATIONS.  The City will furnish all surveys and layouts 



2 of 3 

            
 
 CITY OF BARTLESVILLE 
 SHORT FORM CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
 

 

unless otherwise specified.  Easements and rights-of-ways will be secured and paid for by 
the City.  The Contractor shall comply with all laws and regulations applicable to the work 
and shall notify the City if the drawings or specifications are at variance therewith. 

 
5. PROTECTION OF WORK, PROPERTY AND PERSONS.  The Contractor shall 

adequately protect the work, adjacent property, and all persons in accordance with all laws 
and regulations.  The Contractor shall be completely responsible for any damage or injury 
due to his acts or negligence.  Damage caused by carelessness, neglect, negligence or that is 
outside the defined work area will be the Contractors sole responsibility to correct. 

 
6. ACCESS TO WORK.  The Contractor shall permit and facilitate observation of the work by 

the City or his agents at all times.  The contractor shall coordinate all required inspections 
with the appropriate code inspecting agent. 

 
7. CHANGES IN WORK.  The City may order changes in the work, with any adjustment of 

the Contract Sum by mutual agreement of the parties.  All such orders and adjustments shall 
be in writing.  Claims by the Contractor for extra cost shall be made in writing to the City 
before executing the work involved. 

 
8. CORRECTION OF WORK.  The Contractor shall correct any work determined by the City 

not to conform to the requirements of the contract.   
 
9. CITY'S RIGHT TO TERMINATE CONTRACT.  Should the Contractor fail to prosecute 

the work properly, or to perform any provision of the contract, the City, after seven (7) days' 
written notice to the Contractor may, without prejudice to any other remedy it may have, 
complete the work by such means as it sees fit.  If the unpaid balance of the contract price 
exceeds the expense of completing the work, such excess will be paid to the Contractor.  If 
such expense exceeds the unpaid balance, the Contractor shall pay the difference to the City. 

 
10. CONTRACTOR'S RIGHT TO TERMINATE CONTRACT.  Should the work be stopped 

by any public authority for a period of thirty (30) days or more through no fault of the 
Contractor, or should the work be stopped through act or neglect of the City for a period of 
seven (7) days, then the Contractor, upon seven (7) days' written notice to the City, may stop 
work or terminate the contract, and recover from the City payment for all work executed, 
including reasonable profit and damages. 

 
11. PAYMENT.  Payment will be made based upon unit prices in the Proposal and the actual 

completed construction progress as determined by the Engineer. The making and acceptance 
of the payment shall constitute a waiver of all claims by the City, other than those arising 
from unsettled liens or from defective work appearing thereafter as provided in Paragraph 8, 
and of all claims by the Contractor except any previously made and still unsettled.  Payment 
may be withheld on account of defective work not remedied, liens filed, damage by the 
Contractor to others not adjusted, or failure to make materials or labor payments. 

 



3 of 3 

            
 
 CITY OF BARTLESVILLE 
 SHORT FORM CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
 

 

 
12. BONDS.  The Contractor shall furnish surety bonds to the City as indicated herein. 

NO BONDS ARE REQUIRED FOR THIS PROJECT                                                                    
 
13. CONTRACTOR'S INSURANCE.  The Contractor shall maintain such insurance as will 

protect him and the City from claims under worker's compensation acts and other employee 
benefits acts; from liability claims for damages because of bodily injury or death; and from 
liability claims for damages to property which may arise from operations under this contract, 
whether such operations be by himself, any subcontractor or vendor, or anyone directly or 
indirectly employed by them.  Liability insurance shall be written for not less than 
$1,000,000 in each case.  Certificates of such insurance shall be filed with the City prior to 
beginning construction.  The Contractor shall provide certification to the City that all 
insurance is effective for the duration of the work. 

 
14. LIENS.  Payment shall not be made by the City until the Contractor has provided a 

complete release of all lien able claims on the work included in this contract. 
 
15. ENGINEER.  The City Engineer shall be the City's representative and shall have the 

authority to stop or suspend the work as necessary.  All work shall be done to his 
satisfaction.  Determination of final acceptance shall be by the Engineer.  He shall certify to 
the City when payment under the contract is due and the amount to be paid. He shall make 
final decision on all claims by the City and Contractor. 

 
16. CLEANUP.  The Contractor shall keep the premises free from waste material and rubbish, 

and at the completion of the work he shall remove from the premises all rubbish, debris, and 
surplus materials, and leave the site in a condition acceptable to the Engineer. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have executed this Agreement, the day and 
year first above written. 

 
CITY OF BARTLESVILLE   

 
 

 
 

Mayor, Dale Copeland  Contractor 
 
 

Attested: 
 
 
 

 

 

City Clerk   

 



1

Terry L. Lauritsen

From: Larry D. Thompson
Sent: Tuesday, May 21, 2024 7:34 AM
To: Terry L. Lauritsen
Subject: FW: Polymer feed skid quote - Bartlesville
Attachments: 24_4-25 Bartlesville WTP.pdf

 
 

From: Luke Dixon <lukedixon@haynes-equipment.com>  
Sent: Thursday, April 25, 2024 1:21 PM 
To: Larry D. Thompson <ldthompson@cityofbartlesville.org> 
Subject: RE: Polymer feed skid quote - Bartlesville 
 

CAUTION: External Source. THINK BEFORE YOU CLICK! 

Larry, 
 
Please see the attached information for the preplacement polymer system for the Filter Aid application.  This 
system should demonstrate higher efficiency than the one you currently have.  Pricing is as follows: 
 
Equipment per attached - $63,495.00, freight included 
Installation - $1,280.00 (labor and trip charge, 1-day) 
Startup - $1,280.00 (labor and trip charge, 1-day) 
 
If you need anything else or have questions please just let me know. 
 
Thank you,  
Luke Dixon  
  
Haynes Equipment Company 
121 NW 132nd St. 
Oklahoma City, OK 73114 
o (405) 755-1357 
f  (405) 755-6493 
c (405) 641-6300 
lukedixon@haynes-equipment.com 

  
 

From: Larry D. Thompson <ldthompson@cityofbartlesville.org>  
Sent: Thursday, April 25, 2024 12:03 PM 
To: Luke Dixon <lukedixon@haynes-equipment.com> 
Subject: RE: Polymer feed skid quote - Bartlesville 
 



2

Thanks Luke! 
 

From: Luke Dixon <lukedixon@haynes-equipment.com>  
Sent: Thursday, April 25, 2024 10:07 AM 
To: Larry D. Thompson <ldthompson@cityofbartlesville.org> 
Subject: RE: Polymer feed skid quote - Bartlesville 
 

CAUTION: External Source. THINK BEFORE YOU CLICK! 

Hello Larry,  
 
I appreciate your patience. This is moving forward and we should have a quote to you shortly.  
 
Thank you,  
Luke Dixon  
  
Haynes Equipment Company 
121 NW 132nd St. 
Oklahoma City, OK 73114 
o (405) 755-1357 
f  (405) 755-6493 
c (405) 641-6300 
lukedixon@haynes-equipment.com 

  
 

From: Larry D. Thompson <ldthompson@cityofbartlesville.org>  
Sent: Thursday, April 25, 2024 9:35 AM 
To: Tony Moraska <tonymoraska@haynes-equipment.com> 
Subject: RE: Polymer feed skid quote - Bartlesville 
 

Good morning Tony, 
I am just following up. Is this moving forward on your end? 
Thanks, 
Larry Thompson 
 

From: Tony Moraska <tonymoraska@haynes-equipment.com>  
Sent: Monday, April 15, 2024 5:04 PM 
To: Larry D. Thompson <ldthompson@cityofbartlesville.org> 
Cc: Luke Dixon <lukedixon@haynes-equipment.com> 
Subject: RE: Polymer feed skid quote - Bartlesville 
 

CAUTION: External Source. THINK BEFORE YOU CLICK! 

We’re interested.  Let me take a look and I’ll be in touch. 
 
 



3

 
Tony Moraska 

  
Haynes Equipment Company 

121 NW 132nd St. 
Oklahoma City, OK 73114 

o (405) 755-1357 

f  (405) 755-6493 

c (405) 642-6722 

tony@haynes-equipment.com  
  

 
 

From: Larry D. Thompson <ldthompson@cityofbartlesville.org>  
Sent: Monday, April 15, 2024 3:12 PM 
To: Tony Moraska <tonymoraska@haynes-equipment.com> 
Subject: Polymer feed skid quote - Bartlesville 
 
Good afternoon Tony, 
I am needing to replace a chemical feed skid at the water plant. I think Ian was going to take pictures of the skid and 
equipment. I believe that Haynes built the original in 2004. If you are interested, let me know what information you 
might need to quote the job. 
Thanks, 
Larry D. Thompson 
Water Plant Superintendent 
Bartlesville, OK 
(918) 440-4543 



 

TEXAS ·· OKLAHOMA 
 

755 W. Covell, Suite 170 
Edmond, OK 73003 
(P) 405-562-5436 
(F) 405-757-2347 
  

Date:    05-17-24                                                                                                                                            (Pages 1) 
 
TO: City of Bartelsville Water Treatment Plant 
ATTN:     Larry Thompson 
 
RE: Polymer Feed Unit replacement 

 
Environmental Improvements, Inc. is pleased to be handling the following manufacturer’s proposals for the above 
referenced project.  Environmental Improvements, Inc. is furnishing equipment only and not acting as a sub-
contractor.  Environmental Improvements, Inc. is only providing the equipment and accessories listed in the 
attached scope of supply/bill of material.  Any items required for system completion that are not listed on the 
related manufacturers scope of supply will be considered as an exception to that piece of equipment.  
 
Unless otherwise stated in the manufacturer’s proposals, the following will apply: 
♦ Prices are FOB factory with full freight allowed. 
♦ Prices will include start-up services as specified. 
♦ Motors and gearboxes will have the manufacturer’s standard paint. 
♦ Electrical Control panels, motor starters or anchor bolts are not included. 
♦ Prices are good for sixty (60) days from bid date. 
♦ Electronic O&M costs not included in pricing. 
♦ Delivery Times are our best estimate at this time but are subject to change. 
♦ PAYMENT TERMS ARE 90% 30 DAYS:  5% FOR O&M MANUALS AND 5% ON START-UP, OR BENEFICIAL 

USE, NOT TO EXCEED 90 DAYS FROM SHIPMENT.  
 

Note:  the term “Section and Description” below is used for reference only.  All equipment and related 
appurtenances provided are per the attached scope of supply. 
 
QTY                      Description     Factory     Cost_____________   
1                                           Polymer Feed Unit                                                    UGSI 
 
2                                       Removal and Installation                                               EI2 
                                        Incudes Labor, parts, Travel and Startup 
2                                      Wiring                                                                             SEI 
                                        Includes Labor Travel and Startup 
                                                                        Total   $97,600.00          
 
 
 
 
TERMS AND CONDITIONS:  As per each manufacturer’s proposal or, in the absence thereof, are as per attached 
terms and conditions. 
 
 
Sincerely, 
 
Todd Ray  
ENVIRONMENTAL IMPROVEMENTS, INC. 



Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
Agenda Item ___    

May 29, 2024 
Prepared by Terry Lauritsen 

Water Utilities  
 

 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

Approval of a Professional Service Contract with Keleher Architects for 
Architectural and Engineering Design of two equipment sheds located in the 
City’s operation yard.   

Attachments: 
 AIA Contract 

 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

One of the capital projects approved last fiscal year was to construct two 50’x 100’ 
equipment sheds located in the City’s operation yards, as shown by the exhibit below. 

 

8.e.viii.



Page 2 of 2 
 

Keleher Architects has designed all the recent building renovations at the operation 
yard, including the Public Works facility (2014), and the Water Utilities facility 
(2020).  Due to Keleher’s work on these previous projects, staff requested a proposal 
to perform the requested professional services.   The contract provides that Keleher 
Architects will prepare construction documents for the two buildings for a fee of 
$18,000.  The contract and scope of services are attached for your review.     
 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 

Funding for the design services will be through the 2023 GO Bond and Water 
Administration Capital Reserve Fund.  The total funding for the project is $406,500, 
of which $20,000 was reserved for design.  The proposed professional service 
contract ($18,000) is within the available budget. 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Staff recommends approval of the professional service contract with Keleher 
Architects for $18,000. 



lnil 

I 

ltAIA Document 8101" -2017 
Standard Form of Agreement Between Owner and Architect 

AGREEMENT made as of the day of in the year 
(In words, indicate day, month and year.) 

BETWEEN the Architect's client identified as the Owner: 
(Name, legal status, address and other infonnation) 

City ofBartlesville 
401 S. Johnstone 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 

and the Architect: 
(Name, legal status, address and other information) 

Dan Keleher Jr. AIA 
Keleher Architects 
401 S. Dewey, Ste 216 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 

for the following Project: 
(Name, location and detailed description) 

New Storage Sheds Bartlesville, OK 
Bartlesville City Public Works 
1700 S.W. Adams Blvd 
Bartlesville, OK 74006 

The Owner and Architect agree as follows. 

ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS: 
The author of this document has 
added information needed for its 
completion. The author may also 
have revised the text of the original 
AIA standard form. An Addiuons and 
Deletions Report that notes added 
information as well as revisions to 
the standard form text is available 
from the author and should be 
reviewed. A vertical line in the left 
margin of this document indicates 
where the author has added 
necessary information and where 
the author has added to or deleted 
from the original AIA text. 

This document has important legal 
consequences. Consultation with an 
attorney is encouraged with respect 
to its completion or modification. 

AIA Document B101 - 2017. Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of ArcMects, .. American Institute 
of Architects," "AIA, • the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents• are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 
10:08:53 CT on 05/29/2024 under Older No.4104242501 which e"Pires on 08/15/2024, is not for resale. is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used 
in accordance with the AIA Contract Documants4> Tenns of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@a!acontracts.com. 
User Notes: (389ADA34) 

1 



lnil 

TABLE OF ARTICLES 

1 INITIAL INFORMATION 

2 ARCHITECT'S RESPONSIBILITIES 

3 SCOPE OF ARCHITECT'S BASIC SERVICES 

4 SUPPLEMENTAL AND ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

5 OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES 

6 COST OF THE WORK 

7 COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES 

8 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES 

9 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION 

10 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 

11 COMPENSATION 

12 SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

13 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT 

ARTICLE 1 INITIAL INFORMATION 
§ 1.1 This Agreement is based on the Initial Information set forth in this Section 1.1. 
(For each item in this section, insert the infonnation or a statement such as "not applicable" or "unknown at time 
of execution. ") 

§ 1.1.1 The Owner's program for the Project: 
(Insert the Owner's program, identify documentation that establishes the Owner's program, or state the manner in 
which the program will be developed.) 

Scope: Two new sheds constructed of metal building frames and siding on 2 sides. Sheds to have lighting and 
power. 
Work Included: Architectural sitge plan, floor plans, section, elevations. 
No civil engineering anticipated or included. 
Structural plans to include foundation plans, framing plans, and details. Geo-Tech report from previous project \vill 
be utilized to determing dirt preparation and bearing value. 
Electrical design includes lighting and power plans. 
Specifications for the above referenced work. 

§ 1.1.2 The Project's physical characteristics: 
(Identify or describe pertinent information about the Project's physical characteristics, such as size; location; 
dimensions; geotechnical reports; site boundaries; topographic surveys; traffic and utility studies; availability of 
public and private utilities and services; legal description of the site, etc.) 
Two new open storage sheds lcoated at Public Works 
Facility. 

§ 1.1.3 The Owner's budget for the Cost of the Work, as defined in Section 6.1: 
{Provide total and, if known, a line item breakdown.) 

AJA Oocumenl B101 -2017. Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. "The American lnstiMe of Architects," "American Institute 
of Architects," "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AJA Contract Documents" are trademarks of The American Institute of An:hitects. This document was produced at 2 
10:08:53 CT on 05/29/2024 under Order No.4104242501 which expires on 08/15/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used 
in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail doclnfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (3B9ADA34) 



lnit. 

NIA 

§ 1.1.4 The Owner's anticipated design and construction milestone dates: 

.1 Design phase milestone dates, if any: 

.2 Construction commencement date: 

September 15, 2024 

.3 Substantial Completion date or dates: 

December 15, 2024 

.4 Other milestone dates: 

Final Completion Date: December 31, 2024 

§ 1.1.5 The Owner intends the following procurement and delivery method for the Project: 
(Identify method such as competitive bid or negotiated contract, as well as any requirements for accelerated or fast
track design and construction, multiple bid packages, or phased construction.) 

Competive Bid 

§ 1.1.6 The Owner's anticipated Sustainable Objective for the Project: 
(Identify and describe the Owner's Sustainable Objective for the Project, if any.) 

NIA 

§ 1.1.6.1 If the Owner identifies a Sustainable Objective, the Owner and Architect shall complete and incorporate 
AIA Document E204nL2017, Sustainable Projects Exhibit, into this Agreement to define the terms, conditions and 
services related to the Owner's Sustainable Objective. IfE204-2017 is incorporated into this agreement, the Owner 
and Architect shall incorporate the completed E204-2017 into the agreements with the consultants and contractors 
performing services or Work in any way associated with the Sustainable Objective. 

§ 1.1.7 The Owner identifies the following representative in accordance with Section 5.3: 
(List name, address, and other contact information.) 

Terry Lauritsen 
1700 SW Adams Blvd. 
Bartlesville, OK 74006 

§ 1.1.8 The persons or entities, in addition to the Owner's representative, who are required to review the Architect's 
submittals to the Owner are as follows: 
(List name, address, and other contact information.) 

NIA 

§ 1.1.9 The Owner shall retain the following consultants and contractors: 
(List name, legal status, address, and other contact information.) 

AIA Document B101 - 2017. Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Arch~ects," 'American Institute 
of Architects," •AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AJA Contract Documents• are trademarks of The American Institute of Arc;hitects. This document was produced al 
10:08:53 CT on 05/29/2024 under Order No.4104242501 which expires on 08/15/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used 
in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of SelVlce. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: {3B9ADA34) 

3 



lnil 

I 

.1 Geotechnical Engineer: 

NIA 

.2 Civil Engineer: 

NIA 

.3 Other, if any: 
(List any other consultallfs and contractors retained by the Owner.) 

NONE 

§ 1.1.10 The Architect identifies the following representative in accordance with Section 2.3: 
(List name, address, and other contact information.) 

Dan Keleher Jr. 
401 S. Dewey 
Ste 216 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 

§ 1.1.11 The Architect shall retain the consultants identified in Sections 1.1.11.1 and 1.1.11.2: 
(List name, legal status, address, and other contact information.) 

§ 1.1.11.1 Consultants retained under Basic Services: 
.1 Structural Engineer: 

Paul Rose 

.2 Mechanical Engineer: 

NIA 

.3 Electrical Engineer: 

Thomas Keeter 

AIA Document B101 -2017. Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987. 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Archijects," "American Institute 
of Architects." "AJA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Docoments" are trademarl<s of The American Institute of Architects. This document was pfl)duced at 
10:08:53 CT on 05/29/2024 under Order No.4104242501 which expires on 08/15/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-Ume use only, and may only be used 
in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents" Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (389ADA34) 

4 



Intl 

§ 1.1.11.2 Consultants retained under Supplemental Services: 

NIA 

§ 1.1.12 Other Initial Information on which the Agreement is based: 

NIA 

§ 1.2 The Owner and Architect may rely on the Initial Information. Both parties, however, recognize that the Initial 
Information may materially change and, in that event, the Owner and the Architect shall appropriately adjust the 
Architect's services, schedule for the Architect's services, and the Architect's compensation. The Owner shall adjust 
the Owner's budget for the Cost of the Work and the Owner's anticipated design and construction milestones, as 
necessary, to accommodate material changes in the Initial Information. 

§ 1.3 The parties shall agree upon protocols governing the transmission and use of Instruments of Service or any 
other information or documentation in digital form. The parties will use AIA Document E203nL2013, Building 
Information Modeling and Digital Data Exhibit, to establish the protocols for the development, use, transmission, 
and exchange of digital data. 

§ 1.3. 1 Any use of, or reliance on, all or a portion of a building information model without agreement to protocols 
governing the use of, and reliance on, the information contained in the model and without having those protocols set 
forth in AIA Document E20J™-2013, Building Information Modeling and Digital Data Exhibit, and the requisite 
AIA Document G202ThL2013, Project Building Information Modeling Protocol Form, shall be at the using or 
relying party's sole risk and without liability to the other party and its contractors or consultants, the authors of, or 
contributors to, the building information model, and each of their agents and employees. 

ARTICLE 2 ARCHITECT'S RESPONSIBILITIES 
§ 2.1 The Architect shall provide professional services as set forth in this Agreement. The Architect represents that it 
is properly licensed in the jurisdiction where the Project is located to provide the services required by this 
Agreement, or shall cause such services to be performed by appropriately licensed design professionals. 

§ 2.2 The Architect shall perform its services consistent with the professional skill and care ordinarily provided by 
architects practicing in the same or similar locality under the same or similar circumstances. The Architect shall 
perform its services as expeditiously as is consistent with such professional skill and care and the orderly progress of 
the Project. 

§ 2.3 The Architect shall identify a representative authorized to act on behalf of the Architect with respect to the 
Project. 

§ 2.4 Except with the Owner's knowledge and consent, the Architect shall not engage in any activity, or accept any 
employment, interest or contribution that would reasonably appear to compromise the Architect's professional 
judgment with respect to this Project. 

§ 2.5 The Architect shall maintain the following insurance until termination of this Agreement. If any of the 
requirements set forth below are in addition to the types and limits the Architect normally maintains, the Owner 
shall pay the Architect as set forth in Section 11.9. 

§ 2.5.1 Commercial General Liability with policy limits of not less than ($2,000,000 ) for each occurrence and 
($ ) in the aggregate for bodily injury and property damage. 

§ 2,5.2 Automobile Liability covering vehicles owned, and non-owned vehicles used, by the Architect with policy 
limits ofnot less than ($ 1,000,000 ) per accident for bodily injury, death of any person, and property damage 
arising out of the ownership, maintenance and use of those motor vehicles, along ,vith any other statutorily required 
automobile coverage. 

AJA Document 8101 -2017. Copyright® 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. AU rights reserved. "The American lnstiMe of ArcMects," "American Institute 
ol Arciiilects," "AIA.' the AIA logo. and "AIA Contract Documents• are trademarks of The American lnstlMe of Architects. This document was produced at 5 
10:08:53 CT on 05/29/2024 under Order No.4104242501 which expires on 08/15/2024, Is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used 
in accordance wlth the AIA Contract Document~ Tenns of Service. To report copyright vlolations, e-mail docinfo@atacontracls.com. 
User Notes: (389ADA34) 



lnil 

I 

§ 2.5.3 The Architect may achieve the required limits and coverage for Commercial General Liability and 
Automobile Liability through a combination of primary and excess or umbrella liability insurance, provided such 
primary and excess or umbrella liability insurance policies result in the same or greater coverage as the coverages 
required under Sections 2.5. l and 2.5.2, and in no event shall any excess or umbrella liability insurance provide 
narrower coverage than the primary policy. The excess policy shall not require the exhaustion of the underlying 
limits only through the actual payment by the underlying insurers. 

§ 2.5.4 Workers' Compensation at statutory limits. 

§ 2.5.5 Employers' Liability with policy limits not less than ($ 500,000 ) each accident, ($ 500,000 ) each 
employee, and ($ 1,000,000 ) policy limit. 

§ 2.5.6 Professional Liability covering negligent acts, errors and omissions in the performance of professional 
services with policy limits of not less than ($ 2,000,000 ) per claim and ($ ) in the aggregate. 

§ 2.5.7 Additional Insured Obligations. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Architect shall cause the primary 
and excess or umbrella polices for Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability to include the Owner as 
an additional insured for claims caused in whole or in part by the Architect's negligent acts or omissions. The 
additional insured coverage shall be primary and non-contributory to any of the Owner's insurance policies and shall 
apply to both ongoing and completed operations. 

§ 2.5.8 The Architect shall provide certificates of insurance to the Owner that evidence compliance with the 
requirements in this Section 2.5. 

ARTICLE 3 SCOPE OF ARCHITECT'S BASIC SERVICES 
§ 3.1 The Architect's Basic Services consist of those described in this Article 3 and include usual and customary 
structural, mechanical, and electrical engineering services. Services not set forth in this Article 3 are Supplemental 
or Additional Services. 

§ 3.1.1 The Architect shall manage the Architect's services, research applicable design criteria, attend Project 
meetings, communicate with members of the Project team, and report progress to the Owner. 

§ 3.1.2 The Architect shall coordinate its services with those services provided by the Owner and the Owner's 
consultants. The Architect shall be entitled to rely on, and shall not be responsible for, the accuracy, completeness, 
and timeliness of, services and information furnished by the Owner and the Owner's consultants. The Architect shall 
provide prompt written notice to the Owner if the Architect becomes aware of any error, omission, or inconsistency 
in such services or information. 

§ 3. 1.3 As soon as practicable after the date of this Agreement, the Architect shall submit for the Owner's approval a 
schedule for the performance of the Architect's services. The schedule initially shall include anticipated dates for the 
commencement of construction and for Substantial Completion of the Work as set forth in the Initial Information. 
The schedule shall include allowances for periods of time required for the Owner's review, for the performance of 
the Owner's consultants, and for approval of submissions by authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. Once 
approved by the Owner, time limits established by the schedule shall not, except for reasonable cause, be exceeded 
by the Architect or Owner. With the Owner's approval, the Architect shall adjust the schedule, if necessary, as the 
Project proceeds until the commencement of construction. 

§ 3.1.4 The Architect shall not be responsible for an Owner's directive or substitution, or for the Owner's acceptance 
of non-conforming Work, made or given without the Architect's written approval. 

§ 3.1.5 The Architect shall contact governmental authorities required to approve the Construction Documents and 
entities providing utility services to the Project. The Architect shall respond to applicable design requirements 
imposed by those authorities and entities. 

§ 3.1.6 The Architect shall assist the Owner in connection with the Owner's responsibility for filing documents 
required for the approval of governmental authorities having jurisdiction over the Project. 

AIA Document B101 -2017. Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. 'The American lnstiMe of Architects; 'American Institute 
of Architects," •AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents• are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 
10:08:53 CT on 05/29/2024 under Order No.4104242501 which expires on 08/15/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-Hme use only, and may only be used 
In accordance wi1h the AIA Contract Documents® Tem,s of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail doclnfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (3B9ADA34) 

6 



lnit. 

§ 3.2 Schematic Design Phase Services 
§ 3.2.1 The Architect shall review the program and other information furnished by the Owner, and shall review laws, 
codes, and regulations applicable to the Architect's services. 

§ 3.2.2 The Architect shall prepare a preliminary evaluation of the Owner's program, schedule, budget for the Cost 
of the Work, Project site, the proposed procurement and delivery method, and other Initial Infonnation, each in 
terms of the other, to ascertain the requirements of the Project. The Architect shall notify the Owner of (1) any 
inconsistencies discovered in the information, and (2) other infonnation or consulting services that may be 
reasonably needed for the Project. 

§ 3.2.3 The Architect shall present its preliminary evaluation to the Owner and shall discuss with the Owner 
alternative approaches to design and construction of the Project. The Architect shall reach an understanding with the 
Owner regarding the requirements of the Project. 

§ 3.2.4 Based on the Project requirements agreed upon with the Owner, the Architect shall prepare and present, for 
the Owner's approval, a preliminary design illustrating the scale and relationship of the Project components. 

§ 3.2.5 Based on the Owner's approval of the preliminary design, the Architect shall prepare Schematic Design 
Documents for the Owner's approval. The Schematic Design Documents shall consist of drawings and other 
documents including a site plan, if appropriate, and preliminary building plans, sections and elevations; and may 
include some combination of study models, perspective sketches, or digital representations. Preliminary selections 
of major building systems and construction materials shall be noted on the drawings or described in writing. 

§ 3.2.5.1 The Architect shall consider sustainable design alternatives, such as material choices and building 
orientation, together with other considerations based on program and aesthetics, in developing a design that is 
consistent with the Owner's program, schedule and budget for the Cost of the Work. The Owner may obtain more 
advanced sustainable design services as a Supplemental Service under Section 4.1.1. 

§ 3.2.5.2 The Architect shall consider the value of alternative materials, building systems and equipment, together 
with other considerations based ·on program and aesthetics, in developing a design for the Project that is consistent 
with the Owner's program, schedule, and budget for the Cost of the Work. 

§ 3.2.6 The Architect shall submit to the Owner an estimate of the Cost of the Work prepared in accordance with 
Section 6.3. 

§ 3.2.7 The Architect shall submit the Schematic Design Documents to the Owner, and request the Owner's 
approval. 

§ 3,3 Design Development Phase Services 
§ 3.3.1 Based on the Owner's approval of the Schematic Design Documents, and on the Owner's authorization of 
any adjustments in the Project requirements and the budget for the Cost of the Work, the Architect shall prepare 
Design Development Documents for the Owner's approval. The Design Development Documents shall illustrate and 
describe the development of the approved Schematic Design Documents and shall consist of drawings and other 
documents including plans, sections, elevations, typical construction details, and diagrammatic layouts of building 
systems to fix and describe the size and character of the Project as to architectural, structural, mechanical and 
electrical systems, and other appropriate elements. The Design Development Documents shall also include outline 
specifications that identify major materials and systems and establish, in general, their quality levels. 

§ 3.3.2 The Architect shall update the estimate of the Cost of the Work prepared in accordance with Section 6.3. 

§ 3,3.3 The Architect shall submit the Design Development Documents to the Owner, advise the Owner of any 
adjustments to the estimate of the Cost of the Work, and request the Owner's approval. 

§ 3.4 Construction Documents Phase Services 
§ 3.4.1 Based on the Owner's approval of the Design Development Documents, and on the Owner's authorization of 
any adjustments in the Project requirements and the budget for the Cost of the Work, the Architect shall prepare 

AIA Document B101 -2017. Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. "The American lnstiMe of ArcMects," "American Institute 
of Architects," 'AIA, • the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents• are trademarl<s of The American Institute of .Architects. This document was produced at 
10:08:53 CT on 05/29/2024 under Order No.4104242501 which expires on 08/15/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-Ume use only, and may only be used 
in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents®Tenns of Setvice. To report copyright violations. e-maildocinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: {3B9ADA34) 

7 



Jnil 

Construction Documents for the Owner's approval. The Construction Documents shall illustrate and describe the 
further development of the approved Design Development Documents and shall consist ofDrawings and 
Specifications setting forth in detail the quality levels and performance criteria of materials and systems and other 
requirements for the construction of the Work. The Owner and Architect acknowledge that, in order to perform the 
Work, the Contractor will provide additional information, including Shop Drawings, Product Data, Samples and 
other similar submittals, which the Architect shall review in accordance with Section 3.6.4. 

§ 3.4.2 The Architect shall incorporate the design requirements of governmental authorities having jurisdiction over 
the Project into the Construction Documents. 

§ 3.4.3 During the development of the Construction Documents, the Architect shall assist the Owner in the 
development and preparation of (1) procurement information that describes the time, place, and conditions of 
bidding, including bidding or proposal forms; (2} the form of agreement between the Owner and Contractor; and (3} 
the Conditions of the Contract for Construction (General, Supplementary and other Conditions). The Architect shall 
also compile a project manual that includes the Conditions of the Contract for Construction and Specifications, and 
may include bidding requirements and sample forms. 

§ 3.4.4 The Architect shall update the estimate for the Cost of the Work prepared in accordance with Section 6.3. 

§ 3.4.5 The Architect shall submit the Construction Documents to the Owner, advise the Owner of any adjustments 
to the estimate of the Cost of the Work, take any action required under Section 6.5, and request the Owner's 
approval. 

§ 3.5 Procurement Phase Services 
§ 3.5.1 General 
The Architect shall assist the Owner in establishing a list of prospective contractors. Following the Owner's 
approval of the Construction Documents, the Architect shall assist the Owner in (1) obtaining either competitive 
bids or negotiated proposals; (2) confirming responsiveness of bids or proposals; (3) determining the successful bid 
or proposal, if any; and, ( 4) awarding and preparing contracts for construction. 

§ 3.5.2 Competitive Bidding 
§ 3.5.2.1 Bidding Documents shall consist of bidding requirements and proposed Contract Documents. 

§ 3.5.2.2 The Architect shall assist the Owner in bidding the Project by: 
.1 facilitating the distribution of Bidding Documents to prospective bidders; 
.2 organizing and conducting a pre-bid conference for prospectiv e bidders; 
.3 preparing responses to questions from prospective bidders and providing clarifications and 

interpretations of the Bidding Docwnents to the prospective bidders in the form of addenda; and, 
.4 organizing and conducting the opening of the bids, and subsequently documenting and distributing the 

bidding results, as directed by the Owner. 

§ 3.5.2.3 If the Bidding Documents permit substitutions, upon the Owner's written authorization, the Architect shall, 
as an Additional Service, consider requests for substitutions and prepare and distribute addenda identifying approved 
substitutions to all prospective bidders. 

§ 3.5.3 Negotiated Proposals 
§ 3.5.3.1 Proposal Documents shall consist of proposal requirements and proposed Contract Documents. 

§ 3.5.3.2 The Architect shall assist the Owner in obtaining proposals by: 
.1 facilitating the distribution of Proposal Documents for distribution to prospective contractors and 

requesting their return upon completion of the negotiation process; 
.2 organizing and participating in selection interviews with prospective contractors; 
.3 preparing responses to questions from prospective contractors and providing clarifications and 

interpretations of the Proposal Documents to the prospective contractors in the form of addenda; and, 
.4 participating in negotiations with prospective contractors, and subsequently preparing a summary 

report of the negotiation results, as directed by the Owner. 

AIA Document 8101 - 2017. Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights reseNed. "The American lnstiMe of Architects; "American Institute 
of Architects,' "AIA. • the AIA Logo. and "AIA Contract Documents· are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced al 
10:08:53 CT on 05/29/2024 under Order No.4104242501 which expires on 08/15/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-Uma use only, and may only be used 
in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Tenns of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@alacontracts.com. 
User Notes; (3B9ADA34) 

8 



lnit 

§ 3.5.3.3 If the Proposal Documents permit substitutions, upon the Owner's written authorization, the Architect shall, 
as an Additional Service, consider requests for substitutions and prepare and distribute addenda identifying approved 
substitutions to all prospective contractors. 

§ 3.6 Construction Phase Services 
§ 3.6.1 General 
§ 3.6.1.1 The Architect shall provide administration of the Contract between the Owner and the Contractor as set 
forth below and in AIA Document A201ThL2017, General Conditions of the Contract for Construction. If the Owner 
and Contractor modify AIA Document A201-2017, those modifications shall not affect the Architect's services 
wtder this Agreement unless the Owner and the Architect amend this Agreement. 

§ 3.6.1.2 The Architect shall advise and consult with the Owner during the Construction Phase Services. The 
Architect shall have authority to act on behalf of the Owner only to the extent provided in this Agreement. The 
Architect shall not have control over, charge of, or responsibility for the construction means, methods, techniques, 
sequences or procedures, or for safety precautions and programs in connection with the Work, nor shall the 
Architect be responsible for the Contractor's failure to perform the Work in accordance with the requirements of the 
Contract Documents. The Architect shall be responsible for the Architect's negligent acts or omissions, but shall not 
have control over or charge of, and shall not be responsible for, acts or omissions of the Contractor or of any other 
persons or entities performing portions of the Work. 

§ 3.6.1.3 Subject to Section 4.2 and except as provided in Section 3.6.6.5, the Architect's responsibility to provide 
Construction Phase Services commences with the award of the Contract for Construction and terminates on the date 
the Architect issues the final Certificate for Payment. 

§ 3.6.2 Evaluations of the Work 
§ 3.6.2.1 The Architect shall visit the site at intervals appropriate to the stage of construction, or as otherwise 
required in Section 4.2.3, to become generally familiar with the progress and quality of the portion of the Work 
completed, and to determine, in general, if the Work observed is being performed in a manner indicating that the 
Work, when fully completed, will be in accordance with the Contract Documents. However, the Architect shall not 
be required to make exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work. On 
the basis of the site visits, the Architect shall keep the Owner reasonably informed about the progress and quality of 
the portion of the Work completed, and promptly report to the Owner (1) known deviations from the Contract 
Documents, (2) known deviations from the most recent construction schedule submitted by the Contractor, and (3) 
defects and deficiencies observed in the Work. 

§ 3.6.2.2 The Architect has the authority to reject Work that does not conform to the Contract Documents. Whenever 
the Architect considers it necessary or advisable, the Architect shall have the authority to require inspection. or 
testing of the Work in accordance with the provisions of the Contract Documents, whether or not the Work is 
fabricated, installed or completed. However, neither this authority of the Architect nor a decision made in good faith 
either to exercise or not to exercise such authority shall give rise to a duty or responsibility of the Architect to the 
Contractor, Subcontractors, suppliers, their agents or employees, or other persons or entities performing portions of 
the Work. 

§ 3.6.2.3 The Architect shall interpret and decide matters concerning performance under, and requirements of, the 
Contract Documents on written request of either the Owner or Contractor. The Architect's response to such requests 
shall be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon or otherwise with reasonable promptness. 

§ 3.6.2.4 Interpretations and decisions of the Architect shall be consistent with the intent of, and reasonably inferable 
from, the Contract Documents and shall be in writing or in the form of drawings. When making such interpretations 
and decisions, the Architect shall endeavor to secure faithful performance by both Owner and Contractor, shall not 
show partiality to either, and shall not be liable for results of interpretations or decisions rendered in good faith. The 
Architect's decisions on matters relating to aesthetic effect shall be final if consistent with the intent expressed in the 
Contract Documents. 

§ 3.6.2.5 Unless the Owner and Contractor designate another person to serve as an Initial Decision Maker, as that 
term is defined in AIA Document A201-2017, the Architect shall render initial decisions on Claims between the 
Owner and Contractor as provided in the Contract Documents. 

NA Document B101 -2017. Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Archttects: "American Institute 
of Architects." "AIA. • the AIA Logo, and "AJA Contract Documents" are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 
10:08:53 CT on 05/29/2024 under Order No.4104242501 which eXpires on 08/15/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-Ume use only, and may only be used 
in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail doclnfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes; (389AOA34) 

9 



lnit. 

§ 3.6.3 Certificates for Payment to Contractor 
§ 3.6.3.1 The Architect shall review and certify the amounts due the Contractor and shall issue certificates in such 
amounts. The Architect's certification for payment shall constitute a representation to the Owner, based on the 
Architect's evaluation of the Work as provided in Section 3.6.2 and on the data comprising the Contractor's 
Application for Payment, that, to the best of the Architect's knowledge, information and belief, the Work has 
progressed to the point indicated, the quality of the Work is in accordance with the Contract Documents, and that the 
Contractor is entitled to payment in the amount certified. The foregoing representations are subject to (1) an 
evaluation of the Work for conformance with the Contract Documents upon Substantial Completion, (2) results of 
subsequent tests and inspections, (3) correction of minor deviations from the Contract Documents prior to 
completion, and (4) specific qualifications expressed by the Architect. 

§ 3.6.3.2 The issuance of a Certificate for Payment shall not be a representation that the Architect has (l) made 
exhaustive or continuous on-site inspections to check the quality or quantity of the Work, (2) reviewed construction 
means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures, (3) reviewed copies ofrequisitions received from 
Subcontractors and suppliers and other data requested by the Owner to substantiate the Contractor's right to 
payment, or ( 4) ascertained how or for what putpose the Contractor has used money previously paid on account of 
the Contract Sum. 

§ 3.6.3.3 The Architect shall maintain a record of the Applications and Certificates for Payment. 

§ 3.6.4 Submittals 
§ 3.6.4.1 The Architect shall review the Contractor's submittal schedule and shall not unreasonably delay or withhold 
approval of the schedule. The Architect's action in reviewing submittals shall be taken in accordance with the 
approved submittal schedule or, in the absence ofan approved submittal schedule, with reasonable promptness while 
allowing sufficient time, in the Architect's professional judgment, to permit adequate review. 

§ 3.6.4.2 The Architect shall review and approve, or take other appropriate action upon, the Contractor's submittals 
such as Shop Drawings, Product Data and Samples, but only for the limited pmpose of checking for conformance 
with information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents. Review of such submittals is 
not for the purpose of determining the accuracy and completeness of other information such as dimensions, 
quantities, and installation or performance of equipment or systems, which are the Contractor's responsibility. The 
Architect's review shall not constitute approval of safety precautions or construction means, methods, techniques, 
sequences or procedures. The Architect's approval of a specific item shall not indicate approval of an assembly of 
which the item is a component. 

§ 3.6.4.3 If the Contract Documents specifically require the Contractor to provide professional design services or 
certifications by a design professional related to systems, materials, or equipment, the Architect shall specify the 
appropriate performance and design criteria that such services must satisfy. The Architect shall review and take 
appropriate action on Shop Drawings and other submittals related to the Work designed or certified by the 
Contractor's design professional, provided the submittals bear such professional's seal and signature when 
submitted to the Architect. The Architect's review shall be for the limited pwpose of checking for conformance with 
information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents. The Architect shall be entitled to 
rely upon, and shall not be responsible for, the adequacy and accuracy of the services, certifications, and approvals 
performed or provided by such design professionals. 

§ 3.6.4A Subject to Section 4.2, the Architect shall review and respond to requests for information about the Contract 
Documents. The Architect shall set forth, in the Contract Documents, the requirements for requests for information. 
Requests for information shall include, at a minimum, a detailed written statement that indicates the specific 
Drawings or Specifications in need of clarification and the nature of the clarification requested. The Architect's 
response to such requests shall be made in writing within any time limits agreed upon, or otherwise with reasonable 
promptness. If appropriate, the Architect shall prepare and issue supplemental Drawings and Specifications in 
response to the requests for information. 

§ 3.6.4.5 The Architect shall maintain a record of submittals and copies of submittals supplied by the Contractor in 
accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents. 

AIA Document B101 -2017. Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. 'The American Institute of Arch~ects," "American lnsti1ute 
of Architects; "AIA. • the AIA logo, and "AIA Contract Documents· are trademarf<s of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 10 
10:08:53 CT on 05/29/2024 under Order No.4104242501 wllich expires on 08/15/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-Ume use only, and may only be used 
in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents~ Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (3B9ADA34) 



lnit 

§ 3.6.5 Changes in the Work 
§ 3.6.5.1 The Architect may order minor changes in the Work that are consistent with the intent of the Contract 
Documents and do not involve an adjustment in the Contract Sum or an extension of the Contract Time. Subject to 
Section 4.2, the Architect shall prepare Change Orders and Construction Change Directives for the Owner's 
approval and execution in accordance with the Contract Documents. 

§ 3.6.5.2 The Architect shall maintain records relative to changes in the Work. 

§ 3.6.6 Project Completion 
§ 3.6.6.1 The Architect shall: 

.1 conduct inspections to determine the date or dates of Substantial Completion and the date of final 
completion; 

.2 issue Certificates of Substantial Completion; 

.3 forward to the Owner, for the Owner's review and records, written warranties and related documents 
required by the Contract Documents and received from the Contractor; and, 

.4 issue a final Certificate for Payment based upon a final inspection indicating that, to the best of the 
Architect's knowledge, information, and belief, the Work complies with the requirements of the 
Contract Documents. 

§ 3.6.6.2 The Architect's inspections shall be conducted with the Owner to check conformance of the Work with the 
requirements of the Contract Documents and to verify the accuracy and completeness of the list submitted by the 
Contractor ofWork to be completed or corrected. 

§ 3.6.6.3 When Substantial Completion has been achieved, the Architect shall inform the Owner about the balance of 
the Contract Sum remaining to be paid the Contractor, including the amount to be retained from the Contract Sum, if 
any, for final completion or correction of the Work. 

§ 3.6.6.4 The Architect shall forward to the Owner the following information received from the Contractor: (1) 
consent of surety or sureties, if any, to reduction in or partial release of retainage or the making of final payment; (2) 
affidavits, receipts, releases and waivers of liens, or bonds indemnifying the Owner against liens; and (3) any other 
documentation required of the Contractor under the Contract Documents. 

§ 3.6.6,5 Upon request of the Owner, and prior to the expiration of one year from the date of Substantial Completion, 
the Architect shall, without additional compensation, conduct a meeting with the Owner to review the facility 
operations and performance. 

ARTICLE 4 SUPPLEMENTAL AND ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
§ 4.1 Supplemental Services 
§ 4.1.1 The services listed below are not included in Basic Services but may be required for the Project. The 
Architect shall provide the listed Supplemental Services only if specifically designated in the table below as the 
Architect's responsibility, and the Owner shall compensate the Architect as provided in Section 11.2. Unless 
otherwise specifically addressed in this Agreement, if neither the Owner nor the Architect is designated, the parties 
agree that the listed Supplemental Service is not being provided for the Project. 
(Designate the Architect's Supplemental Services and the Owner's Supplemental Services required for the Project 
by indicating whether the Architect or Owner shall be responsible for providing the identified Supplemental Service. 
Insert a description of the Supplemental Services in Section 4.1.2 below or attach the description of services as an 
exhibit to this Agreement.) 

Supplemental Services Responsibility 

§ 4.1.1.1 Programming 
(Architect, Owner, or not provided) 

NP 
§ 4.1.1.2 Multiple preliminary designs NP 
§4.1,1.3 Measured drawings NP 
§4.1.1A Existing facilities surveys ARCHITECT 
§ 4.1.1.5 Site evaluation and planning NP 

AJA Document B101-2017. Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Archltects,"American Institute 
of Architects.• "AIA, • the AIA Logo, anci "AJA Contract Documents• ere trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 11 
10:08:53 CT on 05/29/2024 under Order No.4104242501 which expires on 08/15/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-lime use only, and may only be used 
in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents'" Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (3B9ADA34) 



I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

lnit. 

§4.1.1.6 Building Information Model management NP 
responsibilities 
§4.1.1.7 Development of Building Information Models for NP 
nost construction use 
§ 4.1.1.8 Civil engineering NP 
§ 4.1.1.9 Landscape design NP 
§4.1.1.10 Architectural interior design NP 
§4.1.1.11 Value analysis NP 
§ 4.1.1.12 Detailed cost estimating beyond that required NP 
in Section 6.3 
§4.1.1.13 On-site project representation OWNER 
§4.1,1.14 Conformed documents for construction ARCHITECT 
§ 4.1.1.15 As-designed record drawings NP 
§ 4.1.1.16 As-constructed record drawings NP 
§ 4.1.1.17 Post-occupancy evaluation NP 
§ 4.1.1.18 Facility support services NP 
§ 4.1.1.19 Tenant-related services NP 
§4.1.1.20 Architect's coordination of the Owner's NP 
consultants 
§ 4.1.1.21 Telecommunications/data design NP 
§ 4.1.1.22 Security evaluation and planning NP 
§ 4.1.1.23 Commissioning NP 
§ 4.1.1.24 Sustainable Project Services pursuant to Section NP 
4.1.3 
§ 4.1.1.25 Fast-track design services NP 
§ 4.1.1.26 Multiple bid packages NP 
§ 4.1.1.27 Historic preservation NP 
§4.1.1.28 Furniture, furnishings, and equipment design NP 
§ 4.1.1.29 Other services provided by specialty Consultants NP 
§4.1.1.30 Other Supplemental Services NP 

§ 4.1.2 Description of Supplemental Services 
§ 4.1.2.1 A description of each Supplemental Service identified in Section 4.1.1 as the Architect's responsibility is 
provided below. 
(Describe in detail the Architect's Supplemental Services identified in Section 4.1. l or, if set forth in an exhibit, 
identify the exhibit. The AJA publishes a number of Standard Form of Architect 's Sen,jces documents that can be 
included as an exhibit to describe the Architect's Supplemental Services.) 

NIA 

§ 4.1.2.2 A description of each Supplemental Service identified in Section 4 .1.1 as the Owner's responsibility is 
provided below. 
(Describe in detail the Owner's Supplemental Services identified in Section 4.1.1 or, if set forth in an exhibit, 
identify the exhibit.) 

NIA 

§ 4.1,3 If the Owner identified a Sustainable Objective in Article I, the Architect shall provide, as a Supplemental 
Service, the Sustainability Services required in AJA Document E204Tl\L2017, Sustainable Projects Exhibit, attached 
to this Agreement. The Owner shall compensate the Architect as provided in Section 11.2. 

AIA Documenl 8101 - 2017. Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rig his reserved. "The American lnstitule of Architects," "American Institute 
of Architects," •AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AJA Contract Documents" are trademaoo of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 12 
10;08:53 CT on 05/29/2024 under Order No.4104242501 which expires on 08115/2024, is not for resale, is licensed foron<>-time use only, and may only be used 
in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents"' Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail doclnfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (3B9ADA34) 



lnit. 

§ 4.2 Architect's Additional Services 
The Architect may provide Additional Services after execution of this Agreement without invalidating the 
Agreement. Except for services required due to the fault of the Architect, any Additional Services provided in 
accordance with this Section 4.2 shall entitle the Architect to compensation pursuant to Section 11.3 and an 
appropriate adjustment in the Architect's schedule. 

§ 4.2.1 Upon recognizing the need to perform the following Additional Services, the Architect shall notify the Owner 
with reasonable promptness and explain the facts and circumstances giving rise to the need. The Architect shall not 
proceed to provide the following Additional Services until the Architect receives the Owner's written authorization: 

.1 Services necessitated by a change in the Initial Information, previous instructions or approvals given 
by the Owner, or a material change in the Project including size, quality, complexity, the Owner's 
schedule or budget for Cost of the Work, or procurement or delivery method; 

.2 Services necessitated by the enactment or revision of codes, laws, or regulations, including changing or 
editing previously prepared Instruments of Service; 

.3 Changing or editing previously prepared Instruments of Service necessitated by official interpretations 
of applicable codes, laws or regulations that are either (a) contrary to specific interpretations by the 
applicable authorities having jurisdiction made prior to the issuance of the building perm.it, or (b) 
contrary to requirements of the Instruments of Service when those Instruments of Service were 
prepared in accordance with the applicable standard of care; 

.4 Services necessitated by decisions of the Owner not rendered in a timely manner or any other failure of 
performance on the part of the Owner or the Owner's consultants or contractors; 

. . 5 Preparing digital models or other design documentation for transmission to the Owner's consultants 
and contractors, or to other Owner-authorized recipients; 

.6 Preparation of design and documentation for alternate bid or proposal requests proposed by the Owner; 

. 7 Preparation for, and attendance at, a public presentation, meeting or hearing; 

.8 Preparation for, and attendance at, a dispute resolution proceeding or legal proceeding, except where 
the Architect is party thereto; 

.9 Evaluation of the qualifications of entities providing bids or proposals; 

. IO Consultation concerning replacement of Work resulting from fire or other cause during construction; 
or, 

. I l Assistance to the Initial Decision Maker, if other than the Architect 

§ 4.2.2 To avoid delay in the Construction Phase, the Architect shall provide the following Additional Services, 
notify the Owner with reasonable promptness, and explain the facts and circumstances giving rise to the need. If, 
upon receipt of the Architect's notice, the Owner determines that all or parts of the services are not required, the 
Owner shall give prompt written notice to the Architect of the Owner's determination. The Owner shall compensate 
the Architect for the services provided prior to the Architect's receipt of the Owner's notice . 

. I Reviewing a Contractor's submittal out of sequence from the submittal schedule approved by the 
Architect; 

.2 Responding to the Contractor's requests for information that are not prepared in accordance with the 
Contract Documents or where such information is available to the Contractor from a careful study 
and comparison of the Contract Documents, field conditions, other Owner-provided information, 
Contractor-prepared coordination drawings, or prior Project correspondence or documentation; 

.3 Preparing Change Orders and Construction Change Directives that require evaluation of Contractor's 
proposals and supporting data, or the preparation or revision oflnstruments of Service; 

.4 Evaluating an extensive number of Claims as the Initial Decision Maker; or, 

.5 Evaluating substitutions proposed by the Owner or Contractor and making subsequent revisions to 
Instruments of Service resulting therefrom. 

§ 4.2.3 The Architect shall provide Construction Phase Services exceeding the limits set forth below as Additional 
Services. When the limits below are reached, the Architect shall notify the Owner: 

. I I ( ) reviews of each Shop Drawing, Product Data item, sample and similar submittals of the 
Contractor 

.2 4 ( ) visits to the site by the Architect during construction 

.3 2 ( ) inspections for any portion of the Work to determine whether such portion of the Work is 
substantially complete in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents 

AJA Document B101 - 2017. Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Arch~ects. • "American Institute 
of Architects," "AIA," the AIA Logo. and "AIA Contract Documents' are trademarxs of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 13 
10:08:53 CT on 05/29/2024 under Order No.4104242501 which expires on 08/15/2024, is not for resale, is licensed forone-Ume use only, and may only be used 
in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents" Tenns of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontrads.com. 
User Notes: (3B9ADA34) 



lnil 

I 

.4 I ( ) iru;pections for any portion of the Work to determine final completion. 

§ 4.2.4 Except for services required under Section 3.6.6.5 and those services that do not exceed the limits set forth in 
Section 4.2.3, Construction Phase Services provided more than 60 days after ( 1) the date of Substantial Completion 
of the Work or (2) the initial date of Substantial Completion identified in the agreement between the Owner and 
Contractor, whichever is earlier, shall be compensated as Additional Services to the extent the Architect incurs 
additional cost in providing those Construction Phase Services. 

§ 4.2.5 If the services covered by this Agreement have not been completed ,vithin ( ) months of the date of this 
Agreement, through no fault of the Architect, extension of the Architect's services beyond that time shall be 
compensated as Additional Services. 

ARTICLE 5 OWNER'S RESPONSIBILITIES 
§ 5.1 Unless otherwise provided for under this Agreement, the Owner shall provide information in a timely manner 
regarding requirements for and limitations on the Project, including a written program, which shall set forth the 
Owner's objectives; schedule; constraints and criteria, including space requirements and relationships; flexibility; 
expandability; special equipment; systems; and site requirements. 

§ 5.2 The Owner shall establish the Owner's budget for the Project, including (1) the budget for the Cost of the Work 
as defined in Section 6.1; (2) the Owner's other costs; and, (3) reasonable contingencies related to all of these costs. 
The Owner shall update the Owner's budget for the Project as necessary throughout the duration of the Project until 
final completion. If the Owner significantly increases or decreases the Owner's budget for the Cost of the Work, the 
Owner shall notify the Architect. The Owner and the Architect shall thereafter agree to a corresponding change in 
the Project's scope and quality. 

§ 5.3 The Owner shall identify a representative authorized to act on the Owner's behalf,vith respect to the Project. 
The Owner shall render decisions and approve the Architect's submittals in a timely manner in order to avoid 
unreasonable delay in the orderly and sequential progress of the Architect's services. 

§ 5.4 The Owner shall furnish surveys to describe physical characteristics, legal limitations and utility locations for 
the site of the Project, and a written legal description of the site. The surveys and legal information shall include, as 
applicable, grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements and adjoining property and structures; designated wetlands; 
adjacent drainage; rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, boundaries and 
contours of the site; locations, dimensions, and other nece-Ssary data with respect to existing buildings, other 
improvements and trees; and information concerning available utility services and lines, both public and private, 
above and below grade, including inverts and depths. All the information on the survey shall be referenced to a 
Project benchmark. 

§ 5.5 The Owner shall furnish services of geotechnical engineers, which may include test borings, test pits, 
determinations of soil bearing values, percolation tests, evaluations of hazardous materials, seismic evaluation, 
ground corrosion tests and resistivity tests, including necessary operations for anticipating subsoil conditions, with 
written reports and appropriate recommendations. 

§ 5.6 The Owner shall provide the Supplemental Services designated as the Owner's responsibility in Section 4.1.1. 

§ 5.7 If the Owner identified a Sustainable Objective in Article 1, the Owner shall fulfill its responsibilities as 
required in AlA Document E204IlL2017, Sustainable Projects Exhibit, attached to this Agreement. 

§ 5.8 The Owner shall coordinate the services of its own consultants with those services provided by the Architect. 
Upon the Architect's request, the Owner shall furnish copies of the scope of services in the contracts between the 
Owner and the Owner's consultants. The Owner shall furnish the services of consultants other than those designated 
as the resporu;ibility of the Architect in this Agreement, or authorize the Architect to furnish them as an Additional 
Service, when the Architect requests such services and demonstrates that they are reasonably required by the scope 
of the Project. The Owner shall require that its consultants and contractors maintain insurance, including 
professional liability insurance, as appropriate to the services or work provided. 

AIA Document B101 - 2017. Copyright© 1974, 1978. 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of ArcMects, • "American Institute 
of Architects.· "AIA. • the AIA Logo, and "AJA Contract Documents" are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 14 
10:08:53 CT on 05/29/2024 under Order No.4104242501 which expires on 08/15/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used 
in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (3B9AOA34) 



lnil 

I 

§ 5.9 The Owner shall furnish tests, inspections and reports required by law or the Contract Docwnents, such as 
structural, mechanical, and chemical tests, tests for air and water pollution, and tests for hazardous materials. 

§ 5.1 D The Owner shall furnish all legal, insurance and accounting services, including auditing services, that may be 
reasonably necessary at any time for the Project to meet the Owner's needs and interests. 

§ 5.11 The Owner shall provide prompt written notice to the Architect if the Owner becomes aware of any fault or 
defect in the Project, including errors, omissions or inconsistencies in the Architect's Instruments of Service. 

§ 5.12 The Owner shall include the Architect in all communications with the Contractor that relate to or affect the 
Architect's services or professional responsibilities. The Owner shall promptly notify the Architect of the substance 
of any direct communications between the Owner and the Contractor otherwise relating to the Project. 
Communications by and with the Architect's consultants shall be through the Architect. 

§ 5.13 Before executing the Contract for Construction, the Owner shall coordinate the Architect's duties and 
responsibilities set forth in the Contract for Construction with the Architect's services set forth in this Agreement. 
The Owner shall provide the Architect a copy of the executed agreement between the Owner and Contractor, 
including the General Conditions of the Contract for Construction. 

§ 5.14 The Owner shall provide the Architect access to the Project site prior to commencement of the Work and shall 
obligate the Contractor to provide the Architect access to the Work wherever it is in preparation or progress. 

§ 5.15 Within 15 days after receipt of a written request from the Architect, the Owner shall furnish the requested 
information as necessary and relevant for the Architect to evaluate, give notice of, or enforce lien rights. 

ARTICLE 6 COST OF THE WORK 
§ 6.1 For purposes of this Agreement, the Cost of the Work shall be the total cost to the Owner to construct all 
elements of the Project designed or specified by the Architect and shall include contractors' general conditions costs, 
overhead and profit. The Cost of the Work also includes the reasonable value of labor, materials, and equipment, 
donated to, or otherwise furnished by, the Owner. The Cost of the Work does not include the compensation of the 
Architect; the costs of the land, rights-of-way, financing, or contingencies for changes in the Work; or other costs 

that are the responsibility of the Owner. 

§ 6.2 The Owner's budget for the Cost of the Work is provided in Initial Information, and shall be adjusted 
throughout the Project as required under Sections 5.2, 6.4 and 6.5. Evaluations of the Owner's budget for the Cost of 
the Work, and the preliminary estimate of the Cost of the Work and updated estimates of the Cost of the W orlc, 
prepared by the Architect, represent the Architect's judgment as a design professional. It is recognized, however, 
that neither the Architect nor the Owner has control over the cost of labor, materials, or equipment; the Contractor's 
methods of determining bid prices; or competitive bidding, market, or negotiating conditions. Accordingly, the 
Architect cannot and does not warrant or represent that bids or negotiated prices will not vary from the Owner's 
budget for the Cost of the Work, or from any estimate of the Cost of the Work, or evaluation, prepared or agreed to 

by the Architect. 

§ 6.3 1n preparing estimates of the Cost of Work, the Architect shall be permitted to include contingencies for 
design, bidding, and price escalation; to determine what materials, equipment, component systems, and types of 
construction are to be included in the Contract Documents; to recommend reasonable adjustments in the program 
and scope of the Project; and to include design alternates as may be necessary to adjust the estimated Cost of the 
Work to meet the Owner's budget. The Architect's estimate of the Cost of the Work shall be based on current area, 
volume or similar conceptual estimating techniques. If the Owner requires a detailed estimate of the Cost of the 
Work, the Architect shall provide such an estimate, if identified as the Architect's responsibility in Section 4.1.1, as 

a Supplemental Service. 

§ 6.4 If, through no fault of the Architect, the Procurement Phase has not commenced within 90 days after the 
Architect submits the Construction Documents to the Owner, the Owner's budget for the Cost of the Work shall be 
adjusted to reflect changes in the general level of prices in the applicable construction market. 

AJA Document 8101 - 2017. Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. 'The American lnstiMa of Architects," "American lnstitu1e 
of Art:hitects.• "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents• are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 15 
10:08:53 CT on 05/29/2024 under Order No.4104242501 which expires on 08/15/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used 
In accordance w~h Iha AIA Contract Documenls®Terms of Service. To raport copyright vlolalions, e-mail docinfo@alacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (389ADA34) 



lnit. 

§ 6.5 If at any time the Architect's estimate of the Cost of the Work exceeds the Owner's budget for the Cost of the 
Work, the Architect shall make appropriate recommendations to the Owner to adjust the Project's size, quality, or 
budget for the Cost of the Work, and the Owner shall cooperate with the Architect in making such adjustments. 

§ 6.6 If the Owner's budget for the Cost of the Work at the conclusion of the Construction Documents Phase 
Services is exceeded by the lowest bona fide bid or negotiated proposal, the Owner shall 

.1 give written approval of an increase in the budget for the Cost of the Work; 

.2 authorize rebidding or renegotiating of the Project within a reasonable time; 

.3 terminate in accordance with Section 9.5; 

.4 in consultation with the Architect, revise the Project program, scope, or quality as required to reduce 
the Cost of the Work; or, 

.5 implement any other mutually acceptable alternative. 

§ 6.7 If the Owner chooses to proceed under Section 6.6.4, the Architect shall modify the Construction Documents as 
necessary to comply with the Owner's budget for the Cost of the Work at the conclusion of the Construction 
Documents Phase Services, or the budget as adjusted under Section 6. 6.1. If the Owner requires the Architect to 
modify the Construction Documents because the lowest bona fide bid or negotiated proposal exceeds the Owner's 
budget for the Cost of the Work due to market conditions the Architect could not reasonably anticipate, the Owner 
shall compensate the Architect for the modifications as an Additional Service pursuant to Section 11.3; otherwise 
the Architect's services for modifying the Construction Documents shall be without additional compensation. In any 
event, the Architect's modification of the Construction Documents shall be the limit of the Architect's responsibility 
under this Article 6. 

ARTICLE 7 COPYRIGHTS AND LICENSES 
§ 7 .1 The Architect and the Owner warrant that in transmitting Instruments of Service, or any other information, the 
transmitting party is the copyright owner of such information or has permission from the copyright owner to 
transmit such information for its use on the Project. 

§ 7.2 The Architect and the Architect's consultants shall be deemed the authors and owners of their respective 
Instruments of Service, including the Drawings and Specifications, and shall retain all common law, statutory and 
other reserved rights, including copyrights. Submission or distribution of Instruments of Service to meet official 
regulatory requirements or for similar purposes in connection with the Project is not to be construed as publication 
in derogation of the reserved rights of the Architect and the Architect's consultants. 

§ 7.3 The Architect grants to the Owner a nonexclusive license to use the Architect's Instruments of Service solely 
and exclusively for purposes of constructing, using, maintaining, altering and adding to the Project, provided that the 
Owner substantially performs its obligations under this Agreement, including prompt payment of all sums due 
pursuant to Article 9 and Article 11. The Architect shall obtain similar nonexclusive licenses from the Architect's 
coru,ultants consistent with this Agreement. The license granted under this section permits the Owner to authorize 
the Contractor, Subcontractors, Sub-subcontractors, and suppliers, as well as the Owner's consultants and separate 
contractors, to reproduce applicable portioru, of the Instruments of Service, subject to any protocols established 
pursuant to Section 1.3, solely and exclusively for use in performing services or construction for the Project. If the 
Architect rightfully terminates this Agreement for cause as provided in Section 9.4, the license granted in this 
Section 7.3 shall terminate. 

§ 7 .3.1 In the event the Owner uses the Instruments of Service without retaining the authors of the Instruments of 
Service, the Owner releases the Architect and Architect's consultant( s) from all claims and causes of action arising 
from such uses. The Owner, to the extent permitted by law, further agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the 
Architect and its consultants from all costs and expenses, including the cost of defense, related to claims and causes 
of action asserted by any third person or entity to the extent such costs and expenses arise from the Owner's use of 
the Instruments of Service under this Section 7.3.1. The terms of this Section 7.3.1 shall not apply if the Owner 
rightfully terminates this Agreement for cause under Section 9 .4. 

§ 7 .4 Except for the licenses granted in this Article 7, no other license or right shall be deemed granted or implied 
under this Agreement. The Owner shall not assign, delegate, sublicense, pledge or otherwise transfer any license 
granted herein to another party without the prior written agreement of the Architect. Any unauthorized use of the 

AJA Document 8101 -2017. Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997. 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. "The American lnstiMe of Archttects, ""American Institute 
of Archilects." ·A1A,• the AIA Logo. and 'AIA Contract Documents• are trademarks of The American Institute of An:hilects. This document was produced al 16 
10:08:53 CT on 05/29/2024 under Order No.4104242501 which expires on 08/15/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-Ume use only, and may only be used 
in acrordance with the AIA Contract Documents" Terms of Service. To report ropyright vlolations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (389ADA34) 



lnil 

Instruments of Service shall be at the Owner's sole risk and without liability to the Architect and the Architect's 
consultants. 

§ 7.5 Except as otherwise stated in Section 7.3, the provisions of this Article 7 shall survive the termination of this 
Agreement. 

ARTICLE 8 CLAIMS AND DISPUTES 
§ 8.1 General 
§ 8.1.1 The Owner and Architect shall commence all claims and causes of action against the other and arising out of 
or related to this Agreement, whether in contract, tort, or otherwise, in accordance with the requirements of the 
binding dispute resolution method selected in this Agreement and within the period specified by applicable law, but 
in any case not more than 10 years after the date of Substantial Completion of the Work. The Owner and Architect 
waive all claims and causes of action not commenced in accordance with this Section 8.1.1. 

§ 8.1.2 To the extent damages are covered by property insurance, the Owner and Architect waive all rights against 
each other and against the contractors, consultants, agents, and employees of the other for damages, except such 
rights as they may have to the proceeds of such insurance as set forth in AlA Document A201-2017, General 
Conditions of the Contract for Construction. The Owner or the Architect, as appropriate, shall require of the 
contractors, consultants, agents, and employees of any of them, similar waivers in favor of the other parties 
enumerated herein. 

§ 8.1.3 The Architect and Owner waive consequential damages for claims, disputes, or other matters in question, 
arising out of or relating to this Agreement. This mutual waiver is applicable, without limitation, to all consequential 
damages due to either party's termination of this Agreement, except as specifically provided in Section 9.7. 

§ 8.2 Mediation 
§ 8.2.1 Any claim, dispute or other matter in question arising out of or related to this Agreement shall be subject to 
mediation as a condition precedent to binding dispute resolution. If such matter relates to or is the subject of a lien 
arising out of the Architect's services, the Architect may proceed in accordance with applicable law to comply with 
the lien notice or filing deadlines prior to resolution of the matter by mediation or by binding dispute resolution. 

§ 8.2.2 The Owner and Architect shall endeavor to resolve claims, disputes and other matters in question between 
them by mediation, which, unless the parties mutually agree otherwise, shall be administered by the American 
Arbitration Association in accordance with its Construction Industry Mediation Procedures in effect on the date of 
this Agreement. A request for mediation shall be made in writing, delivered to the other party to this Agreement, and 
filed with the person or entity administering the mediation. The request may be made concurrently with the filing of 
a complaint or other appropriate demand for binding dispute resolution but, in such event, mediation shall proceed in 
advance of binding dispute resolution proceedings, which shall be stayed pending mediation for a period of 60 days 
from the date of filing, unless stayed for a longer period by agreement of the parties or court order. If an arbitration 
proceeding is stayed pursuant to this section, the parties may nonetheless proceed to the selection of the arbitrator( s) 
and agree upon a schedule for later proceedings. 

§ 8.2.3 The parties shall share the mediator's fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in the place 
where the Project is located, unless another location is mutually agreed upon. Agreements reached in mediation shall 
be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction thereof. 

§ 8.2.4 If the parties do not resolve a dispute through mediation pursuant to this Section 8 .2, the method of binding 
dispute resolution shall be the following: 
(Check the appropriate box.) 

(Paragraph Deleted) 

[ X ] Litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction 

AJA Document B101 - 2017. Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Architects,' "American Institute 
of Architects; •AIA." the AIA Logo, and "AJA Contract Documents• are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was pnxluced al 17 
10:06:53 CT on 05/29/2024 under Order No.4104242501 which expires on 06/15/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-Ume use only, ancl may only be usecl 
in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Tenns of Service. To report copyright violaUons, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (389ADA34) 



lnit. 

(Paragraph Deleted) 

If the Owner and Architect do not select a method of binding dispute resolution, or do not subsequently agree in 
writing to a binding dispute resolution method other than litigation, the dispute will be resolved in a court of 
competent jurisdiction. 

(Paragraphs Deleted) 

ARTICLE 9 TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION 
§ 9.1 If the Owner fails to make payments to the Architect in accordance with this Agreement, such failure shall be 
considered substantial nonperformance and cause for tennination or, at the Architect's option, cause for suspension 
of performance of services under this Agreement. If the Architect elects to suspend services, the Architect shall give 
seven days' written notice to the Owner before suspending services. In the event of a suspension of services, the 
Architect shall have no liability to the Owner for delay or damage caused the Owner because of such suspension of 
services. Before resuming services, the Owner shall pay the Architect all sums due prior to suspension and any 
expenses incurred in the interruption and resumption of the Architect's services. The Architect's fees for the 
remaining services and the time schedules shall be equitably adjusted. 

§ 9.2 If the Owner suspends the Project, the Architect shall be compensated for services performed prior to notice of 
such suspension. When the Project is resumed, the Architect shall be compensated for expenses incurred in the 
interruption and resumption of the Architect's services. The Architect's fees for the remaining services and the time 
schedules shall be equitably adjusted. 

§ 9.3 If the Owner suspends the Project for more than 90 cumulative days for reasons other than the fault of the 
Architect, the Architect may terminate this Agreement by giving not less than seven days' written notice. 

§ 9.4 Either party may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days' written notice should the other party 
fail substantially to perfonn in accordance with the terms of this Agreement through no fault of the party initiating 
the termination. 

§ 9.5 The Owner may terminate this Agreement upon not less than seven days' written notice to the Architect for the 
Owner's convenience and without cause. 

§ 9.6 If the Owner terminates this Agreement for its convenience pursuant to Section 9.5, or the Architect terminates 
this Agreement pursuant to Section 9.3, the Owner shall compensate the Architect for services performed prior to 
termination, Reimbursable Expenses incurred, and costs attributable to termination, including the costs attributable 
to the Architect's termination of consultant agreements. 

§ 9.7 In addition to any amounts paid under Section 9.6, if the Owner terminates this Agreement for its convenience 
pursuant to Section 9.5, or the Architect terminates this Agreement pursuant to Section 9.3, the Owner shall pay to 
the Architect the following fees: 
(Set forth below the amount of any te1711ination or licensing fee, or the method for determining any termination or 
licensing fee.) 

.I Termination Fee: 

Equal to percentage of work completed . 

. 2 Licensing Fee if the Owner intends to continue using the Architect's Instruments of Service: 

NIA 

AIA Document B101 -2017. Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. "The American lnstiMe of ArcMects; "American Institute 
of AAhitects." "AIA," the AIA logo, and "AIA Contract Documents• are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 18 
10:08:53 CT on 05/29/2024 under Order No.4104242501 which ellJ)ires on 08/15/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-lime use only, and may only be used 
in accordance with the AJA Contract Documents" Terms of Service. To report copyrtgtJ! violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com . 
User Notes; (389AOA34) 



lnit. 

I 

§ 9.8 Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, this Agreement shall terminate one year from the date of 
Substantial Completion. 

§ 9.9 The Owner's rights to use the Architect's Instruments of Service in the event ofa termination of this 
Agreement are set forth in Article 7 and Section 9. 7. 

ARTICLE 10 MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
§ 10.1 This Agreement shall be governed by the law of the place where the Project is located, excluding that 
jurisdiction's choice oflaw rules. If the parties have selected arbitration as the method of binding dispute resolution, 
the Federal Arbitration Act shall govern Section 8.3. 

§ 10.2 Terms in this Agreement shall have the same meaning as those in AIA DocumentA201-2017, General 
Conditions of the Contract for Construction. 

§ 10,3 The Owner and Architect, respectively, bind themselves, their agents, successors, assigns, and legal 
representatives to this Agreement. Neither the Owner nor the Architect shall assign this Agreement without the 
written consent of the other, except that the Owner may assign this Agreement to a lender providing financing for 
the Project if the lender agrees to asswne the Owner's rights and obligations under this Agreement, including any 
payments due to the Architect by the Owner prior to the assignment. 

§ 10.4 If the Owner requests the Architect to execute certificates, the proposed language of such certificates shall be 
submitted to the Architect for review at least 14 days prior to the requested dates of execution. If the Owner requests 
the Architect to execute consents reasonably required to facilitate assignment to a lender, the Architect shall execute 
all such consents that are consistent with this Agreement, provided the proposed consent is submitted to the 
Architect for review at least 14 days prior to execution. The Architect shall not be required to execute certificates or 
consents that would require knowledge, services, or responsibilities beyond the scope of this Agreement. 

§ 10.5 Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with, or a cause of action in favor 
of, a third party against either the Owner or Architect. 

§ 10.6 Unless otherwise required in this Agreement, the Architect shall have no responsibility for the discovery, 
presence, handling, removal or disposal of, or exposure of persons to, hazardous materials or toxic substances in any 
form at the Project site. 

§ 10.7 The Architect shall have the right to include photographic or artistic representations of the design of the 
Project among the Architect's promotional and professional materials. The Architect shall be given reasonable 
access to the completed Project to make such representations. However, the Architect's materials shall not include 
the Owner's confidential or proprietary infonnation if the Owner has previously advised the Architect in writing of 
the specific information considered by the Owner to be confidential or proprietary. The Owner shall provide 
professional credit for the Architect in the Owner's promotional materials for the Project. This Section 10.7 shall 
survive the termination of this Agreement unless the Owner terminates this Agreement for cause pursuant to Section 
9.4. 

§ 10.8 If the Architect or Owner receives infonnation specifically designated as "confidential" or "business 
proprietary," the receiving party shall keep such information strictly confidential and shall not disclose it to any 
other person except as set forth in Section 10.8.1. 'Ibis Section 10.8 shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

§ 10.8.1 The receiving party may disclose "confidential" or "business proprietary" information after 7 days' notice to 
the other party, when required by law, arbitrator's order, or court order, including a subpoena or other form of 
compulsory legal process issued by a court or governmental entity, or to the extent such information is reasonably 
necessary for the receiving party to defend itself in any dispute. The receiving party may also disclose such 
information to its employees, consultants, or contractors in order to perform services or work solely and exclusively 
for the Project, provided those employees, consultants and contractors are subject to the restrictions on the 
disclosure and use of such information as set forth in this Section 10.8. 

§ 10.9 The invalidity of any provision of the Agreement shall not invalidate the Agreement or its remaining 
provisions. If it is determined that any provision of the Agreement violates any law, or is otherwise invalid or 

AJA Document B101 -2017. Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. AH rights reserved. "The American Institute or Architects,' "American Institute 
of Architects,' "AIA. • theAIA logo. and 'AJA Contract Documen1s" are trademall<s or The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 19 
10:08:53 CT on 05/29/2024 under Order No.4104242501 which expires on 08/15/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-time use only, and may only be used 
in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents4> Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, a-mall doclnfo@alacontracts.com. 
User Noflls: (389ADA34) 



lnlt 

unenforceable, then that provision shall be revised to the extent necessary to make that provision legal and 
enforceable. In such case the Agreement shall be construed, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to give effect to 
the parties' intentions and pmposes in executing the Agreement. 

ARTICLE 11 COMPENSATION 
§ 11.1 For the Architect's Basic Services described under Article 3, the Owner shall compensate the Architect as 
follows: 

.1 Stipulated Sum 
(Insert amount) 

$18,000 

(Paragraph Deleted) 

(Paragraph Deleted) 

§ 11.2 For the Architect's Supplemental Services designated in Section 4.1. l and for any Sustainability Services 
required pursuant to Section 4.1.3, the Owner shall compensate the Architect as follows : 
(Insert amount of. or basis for, compensation. If necessary, list specific services to which particular methods of 
compensation apply.) 

NIA 

§ 11.3 For Additional Services that may arise during the course of the Project, including those under Section 4.2, the 
Owner shall compensate the Architect as follows: 
(Insert amount of, or basis for, compensation.) 

Hourly 

§ 11.4 Compensation for Supplemental and Additional Services of the Architect's consultants when not included in 
Section 11.2 or 11.3, shall be the amount invoiced to the Architect plus percent ( 5 %), or as follows: 
(Insert amount of, or basis for computing, Architect's consultants' compensation for Supplemental or Additional 
Services.) 

§ 11.5 When compensation for Basic Services is based on a stipulated sum or a percentage basis, the proportion of 
compensation for each phase of services shall be as follows: 

Schematic Design Phase percent ( 0 %) 
Design Development Phase percent ( 0 %) 
Construction Documents percent ( 90 %) 
Phase 
Procurement Phase percent ( IO %) 
Construction Phase percent ( 0 %) 

Total Basic Compensation one hundred percent ( 100 %) 

AJA Document B101 -2017. Copyright© 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. "The American lnstiMe of Architects; "American Institute 
of Architects," •AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AJA Contract Documents• are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 20 
10:08:53 CT on 05/29/2024 under Order No.4104242501 which expires on 08/15/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-Ume use only, and may only be used 
In accordance with the AIA Contract Documents<>Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail doclnfo@aiaoonlracls.com. 
User Notes: (3B9ADA34) 



lnll 

§ 11.6 When compensation identified in Section 11.1 is on a percentage basis, progress payments for each phase of 
Basic Services shall be calculated by multiplying the percentages identified in this Article by the Owner's most 
recent budget for the Cost of the Work. Compensation paid in previous progress payments shall not be adjusted 
based on subsequent updates to the Owner's budget for the Cost of the Work. 

§ 11.6.1 When compensation is on a percentage basis and any portions of the Project are deleted or otherwise not 
constructed, compensation for those portions of the Project shall be payable to the extent services are performed on 
those portions. The Architect shall be entitled to compensation in accordance with this Agreement for all services 
performed whether or not the Construction Phase is commenced. 

§ 11.7 The hourly billing rates for services of the Architect and the Architect's consultants are set forth below. The 
rates shall be adjusted in accordance with the Architect's and Architect's consultants' normal review practices. 
(If applicable, attach an exhibit of hourly billing rates or insert them below.) 

Employee or Category 
Architect 

Drafting 

§ 11.B Compensation for Reimbursable Expenses 

Rate ($0.00) 
$150.00/Hr 
$75.00/Hr 

§ 11.8.1 Reimbursable Expenses are in addition to compensation for Basic, Supplemental, and Additional Services 
and include expenses incurred by the Architect and the Architect's consultants directly related to the Project, as 
follows: 

(Paragraphs Deleted) 

.4 Printing, reproductions, plots, and standard form documents; 

.5 Postage, handling, and delivery; 

.6 Expense of overtime work requiring higher than regular rates, if authorized in advance by the Owner; 

. 7 Renderings, physical models, mock-ups, professional photography, and presentation materials 
requested by the Owner or required for the Project; 

.8 If required by the Owner, and with the Owner's prior written approval, the Architect's consultants' 
expenses of professional liability insurance dedicated exclusively to this Project, or the expense of 
additional insurance coverage or limits in excess of that normally maintained by the Architect's 
consultants; 

.9 All taxes levied on professional services and on reimbursable expenses; 

.10 Site office expenses; 

.11 Registration fees and any other fees charged by the Certifying Authority or by other entities as 
necessary to achieve the Sustainable Objective; and, 

.12 Other similar Project-related expenditures. 

§ 11.B.2 For Reimbursable Expenses the compensation shall be the expenses incurred by the Architect and the 
Architect's consultants plus percent ( 5 %) of the expenses incurred. 

§ 11.9 Architect's Insurance. If the types and limits of coverage required in Section 2.5 are in addition to the types 
and limits the Architect normally maintains, the Owner shall pay the Architect for the additional costs incurred by 
the Architect for the additional coverages as set forth below: 
(Insert the additional coverages the Architect is required to obtain in order to satisfy the requirements set f orth in 
Section 2. 5, and for which the Owner shall reimburse the Architect.) 

§ 11.10 Payments to the Architect 
§ 11.10.1 Initial Payments 

AIA Document B101 -2017. Cclpyrighl © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. "The American Institute of Architects," "American Institute 
of Architects." •AIA. • the AIA Logo, and "AJA Contract Documents" ere trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced al 21 
10:08:53 CT on 05/29/2024 under Order No.4104242501 which expires on 08/15/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-lime use only, and may only be used 
in accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (3B9ADA34) 



lnlt 

§ 11.10.1.1 An initial payment of ($ ) shall be made upon execution of this Agreement and is the minimum 
payment under this Agreement. It shall be credited to the Owner's account in the final invoice. 

§ 11.10.1.2 Ifa Sustainability Certification is part of the Sustainable Objective, an initial payment to the Architect of 
NJ A ($ ) shall be made upon execution of this Agreement for registration fees and other fees payable to the 
Certifying Authority and necessary to achieve the Sustainability Certification. The Architect's payments to the 
Certifying Authority shall be credited to the Owner's account at the time the expense is incurred. 

§ 11.10 .2 Progress Payments 
§ 11.10.2.1 Unless otherwise agreed, payments for services shall be made monthly in proportion to services 
performed. Payments are due and payable upon presentation of the Architect's invoice. Amounts unpaid ( 30 ) 
days after the invoice date shall bear interest at the rate entered below, or in the absence thereof at the legal rate 
prevailing from time to time at the principal place ofbusiness of the Architect. 
(Insert rate of monthly or annual interest agreed upon.) 

5% 

§ 11.10.2.2 The Owner shall not withhold amoW1ts from the Architect's compensation to impose a penalty or 
liquidated damages on the Architect, or to offset sums requested by or paid to contractors for the cost of changes in 
the Work, unless the Architect agrees or has been found liable for the amounts in a binding dispute resolution 
proceeding. 

§ 11.10.2.3 Records of Reimbursable Expenses, expenses pertaining to Supplemental and Additional Services, and 
services performed on the basis of hourly rates shall be available to the Owner at mutually convenient times. 

ARTICLE 12 SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
Special terms and conditions that modify this Agreement are as follows: 
(Include other terms and conditions applicable to this Agreement.) 

ARTICLE 13 SCOPE OF THE AGREEMENT 
§ 13.1 This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the Owner and the Architect and 
supersedes all prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral. This Agreement may be 
amended only by written instrument signed by both the Owner and Architect. 

§ 13.2 This Agreement is comprised of the following documents identified below: 
.1 AIA Document BlOl '™-2017, Standard Form Agreement Between Owner and Architect 

(Paragraphs Deleted) 

(Paragraphs Deleted) 

(Paragraph Deleted) 

This Agreement entered into as of the day and year first written above. 

AJA Document B101 -2017. Copyright © 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. All rights reserved. "The American lnstiMe of Architects," "American Institute 
of Architects," "AIA," the AIA Logo, and "AIA Contract Documents• are trademarks of The American Institute of Architects. This document was produced at 22 
10:08:53 CT on 05129/2024 under Order No.4104242501 which expires on 08/15/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-Ume use only, and may only be used 
In accordance with the AIA Contract Documents® Tenns of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@aiacontracts.com. 
User Notes: (389ADA34) 



OWNER (Signature) 

(Primed name and title) {Printed name, title, and license number, if required) 

lnll PJA Document B101 -2017. Copyright@ 1974, 1978, 1987, 1997, 2007 and 2017. AN rights reserved. "The American lnstiMe of Arch~ects," "American Institute 
d Architects." "AIA, • the AIA Logo. and "AJA Contract DoCtlmenls" are trademari<s of The American Institute of Alchitects. This document was produced at 23 
10:08:53 CT on 05/29/2024 under Order No.4104242501 which expires on 08/15/2024, is not for resale, is licensed for one-Ume use only, and may only be used 
In accordance with the AIA Contract Documen~ Terms of Service. To report copyright violations, e-mail docinfo@alaconbacts.com. 
User Noles: (3B9ADA34) 



 
Dan Keleher Jr., PLLC, AIA 

Keleher Architects | Architecture and Interior Design | Commercial and ResidentiaL 

918-333-8855        PO BOX 1361, Bartlesville, OK   74005        www.keleherarchitects.com 

 
5.6.2024 
 
Terry Lauritsen 
City of Bartlesville 
401 S. Johnstone 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 
 
 
RE: Proposal for Architectural and Engineering Services 
 
Project: New shed construction in City yard.  
 
Scope: Two new sheds constructed of metal building frames and siding on  3 2 sides. Sheds to 
have lighting and power.  
 
Work Included: 

• Architectural site plan, floor plans, section, elevations.  
• No civil engineering anticipated or included.  
• Structural plans to include foundation plans, framing plans and details. Geo-Tech report 

from previous project will be utilized to determine dirt preparation and bearing value. 
• Electrical design includes lighting and power plans.  
• Specifications for the above referenced work.  
 

Fee:  
• The above-referenced scope of work will be provided for the lump sum fee of $18,000. 

Billing will be at completion of project.  
 
Work not included: Civil engineering, additional survey work, and Geo-Tech report.  
 
Please contact me with any questions regarding this proposal. We can provide an AIA contract if 
needed.  
 
 
Regards, 

 

Dan Keleher Jr., AIA 

http://www.keleherarchitects.com/


Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
Agenda Item ___    

May 29, 2024 
Prepared by Terry Lauritsen 

Water Utilities  
 

 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

Approval of Contract Amendment #3 to the professional service agreement with 
Tetra Tech, Inc. for engineering services for the Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Expansion and the Limestone to Chickasaw Transport Corridor Improvements.   

Attachments: 
 Amendment #3 - Tetra Tech Professional Service Agreement 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

In September 2020, the City contracted with Tetra Tech for the first phase of design 
services, which is to prepare engineering reports for the Wastewater Treatment Plant 
Expansion and the Limestone to Chickasaw Transport Corridor Improvements.   The 
engineering report evaluates various improvement options, providing a 35% level of 
engineering design, as well as the environmental review and estimated construction 
costs.  While the engineering report has been completed for the Limestone to 
Chickasaw Transport Corridor Improvements, the engineering report for the 
Wastewater Treatment Plant expansion requires additional work to complete.   

  The concept for the treatment plant expansion is to upgrade equipment and expand 
treatment units to increase the capacity of the plant from 7.0 million gallons per day 
to 8.2 million gallons per day.  Also included in the expansion project will be the 
additional treatment needed for water reuse.  The Oklahoma Department of 
Environmental Quality (ODEQ) regulations on water reuse have numerous 
components and requirements, one of which is to conduct a pilot study of the 
proposed treatment to confirm performance.  While the ODEQ has acknowledged the 
adequacy of the reuse concept through the City’s previous studies and evaluations, 
which resulted in permitting the new reuse discharge location as well as the 
construction of the pipeline and pump station to move reuse water to the new 
discharge location, the ODEQ did not approve the variance request for the pilot study.  
Thus, the City needs to perform this study and include the results as part of the 
engineering report, which began in February 2024.      
In January 2024, Council approved an amendment with Tetra Tech to assist with the 
operation of the pilot unit, which was set to conclude on May 30.  However, the pilot 
study is being extended for another month (to the end of June) to facilitate additional 
testing of the proposed treatment process.  Thus, an amendment is needed with Tetra 
Tech to extend the operational services to the end of June.  The cost of these 
additional services is $51,260. 
 

8.e.ix.



Page 2 of 2 
 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 

Funding for the professional services will be through the Wastewater Capital Reserve 
Fund, which has $1,183,803.74 available.  The proposed amendment ($51,260) is 
within the available budget for the project. 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Staff recommends approval of Amendment #3 to the professional service contract 
with Tetra Tech, Inc. for $51,260. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 







Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
Agenda Item ___    

May 29, 2024 
Prepared by Terry Lauritsen 

Water Utilities  
 

 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

Approval of Amendment 4 with Veolia Water to the Operation and Maintenance 
Contract of the Chickasaw Wastewater Treatment.  

Attachments: 
 Amendment #4  

2000 Contract including Amendments #1 thru #3 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

Since the early 1990’s, the City has contracted out the operation of the wastewater 
treatment plant with Veolia Water (formerly known as U.S. Filter Operating 
Services).  In 2000, the City and Veolia entered into a new 10-year contract with an 
optional 5-year extension.  There have been three amendments over the last 24 years 
to add services and in 2010 the contract was modified to be an annual contract with 
an automatic renewal.  Currently, Veolia water operates the wastewater plant, 
nineteen lift stations, three flow equalization basins and the industrial pretreatment 
program.  With the development of the Osage Casino west of town, an amendment is 
needed to add the operation and maintenance of this lift station to the contract.  In the 
course of this negotiation, Veolia requested several modifications to the contract, 
which are summarized below. 

• Assign the contract from Veolia Water North America – West and Veolia 
Water North America – Central, to Veolia Water North America (VWNA). 

• Change the term from annual with automatic renewals, to a 10-year term with 
an optional 5-year extension. 

• Establishes a new annual fee ($3,021,260.50) and ceiling maintenance account 
($191,140) which accounts for the additional operation and maintenance 
expenses for the Osage Casino lift station.  The annual fee and ceiling 
maintenance account adjustment remain the same. 

• Deletion of Section 3P, which was added in 2001 by Amendment #1 that 
required Veolia to prepare a Toxicity Reduction Evaluation (TRE) plan.  This 
was a one-time task and those services are complete. 

• City purchase and maintain standard property insurance for the full insurable 
value of the facility.  The previous contract required standard fire insurance.  
Note, the City already has this insurance coverage in place. 

• Add provisions to allow for an adjustment to the compensation and shared 
savings once the wastewater treatment plant expansion/upgrade is complete.  

8.e.x.



Page 2 of 2 
 

Requires the City to be solely responsible for any damages resulting from 
plant upgrades, as well as guaranteeing the work, performance of equipment 
or component installed by a third party contractor.  Operation and 
maintenance of any new equipment, component or upgrade will pass to 
VWNA on upon VWNA’s written approval that the equipment, component, or 
facility is in good working order, working as intended, and operates to the 
satisfaction of Veolia. 

 
The City also requested several modifications to the contract, which are summarized 
below. 

• Language to ensure the City’s/Bartlesville Municipal Authority (“BMA”) 
benefit of tax-exempt financing for wastewater treatment plant improvements 
due to the fact that the it is a governmental issuer and the projects financed are 
governmental in nature.  Certain arrangements with private entities, such as 
Veolia, can create “private business use”, which may impact the tax-exempt 
status of the City/BMA’s tax-exempt debt obligations.  The IRS has issued 
certain safe harbor provisions relating to management contracts, which are set 
forth in IRS Rev. Proc. 2017-13.   

• Language relating to the constitutional prohibition on obligating the City for 
the expenditure of funds and revenue beyond the fiscal year in which the 
contract was made. (Okla. Const. Art. 10, Sec. 26).    

• Changes to the termination clause of the contract.  The original contract 
allows the City to terminate the contract prior to the expiration date, but 
requires the payment of 5% of the then current annual contract price.  The 
modification reduces the payment to 1.5%.  

City staff, the City Attorney and the City’s bond counsel have reviewed the 
amendment. 
 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 

Funding for the contract is through the operational funds for the wastewater treatment 
plant.  Sufficient funding has been budgeted for next fiscal year to fully fund the 
operational services modified by the amendment. 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Staff recommends approval of Amendment #4 with Veolia Water North America. 



Amendment Four to the Agreement  
for Operation and Maintenance of the Chickasaw Wastewater Treatment 

Plant for the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma 
 
 

THIS FOURTH AMENDMENT is entered into on June 3, 2024, by and between: 
 
The City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma, with its principal address 
at 401 South Johnstone Avenue Bartlesville, Oklahoma 74003 
(hereinafter “CITY”); 
 

and 
 
Veolia Water North America – West, LLC, with offices at 53 
State Street, 14th Floor Boston, MA 02109, United States 
(hereinafter “Veolia”). 
 

and 
 
Veolia Water North America – Central, LLC, with offices 53 
State Street, 14th Floor Boston, MA 02109, United States 
(hereinafter “VWNA”). 
 
 
 

WHEREAS, Veolia Water North America Operating Services, LLC (formerly known 
as U.S. Filter Operating Services, Inc., or “USFOS”) entered into the Agreement for Operation 
and Maintenance Services of the Chickasaw Wastewater Treatment Plant dated the 5th day of 
June 2000 and amended through the execution of Amendment One dated the 16th day of April 
2001 (collectively the "Agreement"); 

 
WHEREAS, through the execution of Amendment Two dated June 10, 2010, the 

Agreement was extended and all rights and obligations of the Agreement were assigned and 
transferred from USFOS to Veolia Water North America - West (“Veolia”), an affiliate of 
Veolia, with the consent of all parties. 

 
WHEREAS, the Agreement was modified by Amendment Three on December 17, 

2012, to adjust the scope of services provided by the Agreement. 
 
WHEREAS, Veolia, with the permission and consent of CITY, now wishes to assign 

the Agreement to an affiliate, VWNA, and VWNA wishes to accept such assignment. 
 
WHEREAS, the parties desire to modify selective portions of the Agreement and 

previous amendments all as set forth herein. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, in mutual consideration herein described and other good and 
valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, the 
parties agree as follows: 

 



1. Veolia does hereby GRANT, BARGAIN, SELL, CONVEY, TRANSFER and 
ASSIGN unto VWNA and its successors and assigns, forever, all of Veolia's right, title 
and interest in and to all claims, rights and obligations under the Agreement. 
 

2. VWNA does hereby accept such transfer and assignment and agrees that VWNA shall 
duly observe and perform all of those obligations imposed upon Veolia under the 
Agreement. 
 

3. Veolia's transfer and assignment of the Agreement to VWNA is in full novation of the 
obligations of Veolia from and after the effective date of this assignment. 
 

4. CITY does hereby approve of such transfer and assignment to VWNA from Veolia 
pursuant to Section 13(G) of the Agreement and the novation of VWNA as of the 
effective date hereof. The assignment described herein shall take effect upon the 
effective date herein. 
 

5. All references in the Agreement and previous amendments which refer to USFOS or 
Veolia, shall now refer to VWNA. 
 

6. Section 1(A) of the Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

The CITY agrees to engage VWNA to provide Operations, Maintenance, and 
Management Services to include the administration of the Industrial Pretreatment 
Program and Land Application of stabilized Biosolids at the Wastewater Treatment 
FACILITY. FACILITY includes: the Chickasaw Wastewater Treatment Plant, twenty 
(20) Sanitary Sewage Pump Stations, Flow Equalization Basins (FEB's) at the 
Treatment Plant and at the Limestone and Tuxedo Pump Station complexes. Biosolids 
shall be defined herein as the stabilized, nutrient rich, semi-solid organic byproduct of 
the Anaerobic Sludge Digestion Process at the Bartlesville FACILITY which contain 
basic nutrients and trace minerals considered essential for plant growth. Stabilized 
Biosolids generated at the Wastewater Treatment FACILITY shall be incorporated into 
the subsoil by VWNA personnel at State of Oklahoma approved agricultural sites. 
 

7. Section 2 of the Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
The contract term shall commence on July 1, 2024 and expire ten (10) years thereafter 
on June 30, 2034. If the CITY so elects, the Term of the Agreement may be extended 
an additional five (5) years via a written request submitted to VWNA ninety (90) days 
prior to the expiration date. 
 
The CITY may terminate this contract with a ninety (90) day notice to VWNA. If the 
CITY elects to terminate this agreement prior to the expiration date as set forth herein, 
it shall pay VWNA one and one-half percent (1.5%) of the then current annual contract 
price for demobilization 



 
8. Section 3(G)  of the Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 
VWNA will provide maintenance and repairs for the equipment, structures and vehicles 
consistent with good preventive practice and/or manufacturer's specifications utilizing 
its proprietary computerized automatic maintenance system. The CITY shall have the 
right to inspect these maintenance records during normal business hours.  
 
Routine maintenance and repairs for all equipment, structures and vehicles shall not 
include costs associated with flood, fire or other similar extraordinary occurrences not 
within the control of VWNA. VWNA will pay for all above equipment repair or 
replacement during the term of services, provided the aggregate, or Maintenance 
Ceiling amount which VWNA shall be required to pay under this section, shall not 
exceed $191,140. This established maximum amount of aggregate dollars the 
Contractor shall be required to pay annually for the repair and maintenance of 
equipment, structures, grounds and vehicles consistent with good preventative and 
corrective maintenance practice and/or manufacturers' specifications shall be 
hereinafter referred to as the Maintenance Ceiling Fund. At the end of each 12 month 
period of operation concluding on June 30 annually, VWNA will return 100% of any 
unused Maintenance Ceiling dollars. The annual maximum amount that VWNA shall 
be required to pay, as stated above in the first year, shall be adjusted annually thereafter 
using the percentage change in the Bureau of Labor Statistics CPI-U Index Factor 
provided in Attachment A.  
 
VWNA shall annually submit to the CITY a list and estimate of Capital Expenditures, 
if any, to be provided by the CITY. The CITY is not bound by this list to provide Capital 
Expenditures. 
 

9. Section 3(P) of the Agreement is hereby deleted. 
 

10. Section 10(A) of the Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 

Pay to VWNA as compensation for the services performed, the sum of $3,021,260.50, 
adjusted thereafter as stated in Attachment A of this Agreement. The monthly payment 
schedule shall be as agreed between the parties. Invoices are payable at the first of each 
month the services are to be rendered. Late payments beyond 30 days will be subject to 
a service charge of 1.5% per month or the maximum legal rate. Compensation may be 
subsequently increased or decreased as described in Attachment A. Invoices are to be 
submitted to the Director of Water Utilities no later than the 20th of each month so 
payment can be made to VWNA on the first Tuesday of the next month, or Wednesday 
if a holiday falls on Monday. 
 

11. Section 10(D)  of the Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 



Purchase and ensure that standard property insurance policies are maintained including 
extended coverage to the full insurable value of the FACILITY; name VWNA as an 
additional insured according to its insurable interest under these policies during the term 
of the Agreement; and ascertain that VWNA shall have no liability to CITY with respect 
to loss, damage, and destruction covered by such policies or in excess of such policies. 
Nor shall VWNA be liable to CITY or its insurance carrier for subrogation right for 
payments made per the policy or any damage. The CITY shall continue to maintain 
liability and other insurance for non-VWNA employees stationed at the FACILITY. 
The CITY reserves the right to become self-insured at any time in the future. 
 

12. Section 13(L)  is hereby added to the Agreement: 
 

There are no warranties which extend beyond those expressed in this Agreement.  
VWNA disclaims, and CITY waives, any implied warranties or warranties imposed by 
law, including warranties of merchantability, fitness for a particular purpose, custom 
and usage, as to any of VWNA’s services. 

 
13. Section 13(M)  is hereby added to the Agreement: 

 
This Agreement shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the 
State of Oklahoma. 
 

14. Section 13(N) is hereby added to the Agreement: 
 

QUALIFIED MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT SAFE HARBOR 
The parties understand that all or a portion of the FACILITY have been or will be 
financed by the proceeds of tax-exempt debt. Accordingly, this Agreement shall be 
interpreted in a manner that is in compliance with the safe harbors found in IRS Rev. 
Proc. 2017-13 (the “Rev. Proc.”). In connection therewith, notwithstanding any other 
parts of this Agreement that might be interpreted to the contrary, the parties agree as 
follows (with the meaning of such representations interpreted consistent with the terms 
of the Rev. Proc.): 
 

(a) This Agreement shall not be interpreted as a lease. 
 

(b) Both parties represent and agree that the payments to VWNA under this 
Agreement are reasonable compensation for the Services to be rendered by 
VWNA under this Agreement. 
 

(c) No element of VWNA’s compensation paid hereunder shall take into account, 
or be contingent upon, either the FACILITY’s net profits or both the 
FACILITY’s revenues and expenses (other than any reimbursements of direct 
and actual expenses paid by VWNA to unrelated third parties) for any fiscal 
period. Furthermore, VWNA shall not be required to bear a share of the net 



losses from the operation of the FACILITY. 
 

(d) The PWA or other qualified user shall bear the risk of loss upon damage or 
destruction of the FACILITY to the extent required by the Rev. Proc. This 
provision is expressly NOT intended to relieve VWNA or any other person or 
entity from any liability or obligation owed to the CITY or any other person or 
entity as a result of, or relating to, damage or destruction of the FACILITY to 
the extent not required by the Rev. Proc., but merely to intended meet the 
minimum requirements of the Rev. Proc. and shall not be interpreted more 
broadly. For example, without limitation, as provided in the Rev. Proc., a 
qualified user does not fail to meet this risk of loss requirement as a result of 
insuring against risk of loss through a third party or imposing upon the service 
provider a penalty for failure to operate the managed property in accordance 
with the standards set forth in this contract. Without limitation, VWNA shall be 
liable to the CITY for any damage or destruction of the FACILITY caused by, 
or arising out of, VWNA’s acts and/or omissions or breach of this Agreement to 
the extent set forth in this Agreement. 
 

(e) VWNA shall not take any tax position that is inconsistent with being a service 
provider to the CITY with respect to the FACILITY. For example, VWNA 
agrees not to claim any depreciation or amortization deduction, investment tax 
credit, or deduction for the payment as rent with respect to FACILITY. 
 

(f) The CITY must approve the annual budget for the FACILITY, Capital 
Improvements with respect to the FACILITY, each disposition of property that 
is part of the FACILITY, rates charged for the use of the FACILITY, and the 
general nature and type of use of the FACILITY. 
 

(g) The CITY will not allow this Agreement to be renewed for any period without 
consulting with bond counsel. 
 

(h) Not more than 20 percent of the voting power of the governing body of the CITY 
or the Bartlesville Municipal Authority (collectively, together with their 
successors and assigns, the “Potential Qualified Users”) shall be vested in the 
directors, officers, shareholders, partners, members and employees of VWNA; 
the governing body of the Potential Qualified Users shall not include the chief 
executive officer of VWNA or the chairperson (or equivalent executive) of 
VWNA’s governing body; and the chief executive officer of VWNA shall not 
be the chief executive officer of any of the Potential Qualified Users or any of 
their related parties as defined in Treasury Regulation 1.150-1(b). 
 

(i) In the event this Agreement results in the private business use of the managed 
property as interpreted by either the Internal Revenue Service or a court of 
competent jurisdiction, the parties shall attempt, in good faith, to renegotiate the 



terms of this Agreement so as to bring this Agreement into compliance with the 
Internal Revenue Code. 

 
15. Section 13(O) is hereby added to the Agreement: 

 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this agreement, the parties acknowledge and 
agree that the funds to be paid by the City under the terms of this Agreement will be 
available only as appropriated on a fiscal year to fiscal year basis by properly 
constituted legal authority. In the event that VWNA determines that sufficient funds 
have not been appropriated to make the payments required under the terms of this 
agreement, the obligations of VWNA shall immediately terminate upon written notice 
of termination to the City. 

 
16. Attachment A, Section (D) of the Agreement is hereby amended to read as follows: 

GENERAL PROVISION FOR ADJUSTMENTS: 

In the event that any changes in the scope of operation for the FACILITY should occur, 
including but not limited to, a change in equipment, operation, facilities, changes in 
influent flow and loadings as per paragraph B above, changes in government 
regulations, changes of Law, reporting requirements, and effluent standards which 
increase the cost of operating the FACILITY, VWNA shall be entitled to additional 
compensation which would include reasonable amounts for overhead and a profit. 
Such additional compensation will be negotiated by the parties within a reasonable 
period of time, or if no negotiated agreement can be achieved, by a compensation 
adjustment of [(direct costs x VWNA overhead factor) x 1.1 profit fee multiplier)]. 

The CITY shall be solely responsible for any damage to the FACILITY or any other 
losses arising out of or resulting from plant upgrades, or a change in facility processes, 
by any Third Party Contractor or from defects in the material, equipment or work 
performed by any Third Party Contractor. 

The CITY shall be responsible for guaranteeing the work performed by any Third 
Party Contractor, quality of construction and damages and cost resulting from schedule 
delays or operational outages. Under no circumstances shall VWNA be required to 
warrant or guarantee the performance of any equipment, component or facilities. 

O&M responsibility for any new equipment, new component, or new facility will pass 
to VWNA only upon VWNA’s written approval such that the equipment, component, 
or facility is in good working order, working as intended, and operates to the 
satisfaction of Veolia. 

After construction is complete, the Annual Fee and shared cost savings will be 
adjusted/renegotiated based upon reassessment of operating costs and risks with new 
plant equipment and operational processes. 



17. The effective date of this Amendment is June 30, 2024. 
 

18. All terms of the Agreement and previous Amendments not specifically amended 
herein shall remain in full force and effect. 
 

19. This Amendment shall be governed by, construed, and enforced in accordance with 
the laws of the State of Oklahoma. 
 

20. This Amendment may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall 
be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one and the same 
instrument. 

 
WHEREFORE, both parties indicate their approval of this Fourth Amendment by their 

signature below, and each party warrants that all action necessary to bind the parties to the 
terms of this Agreement has been taken. 
 
CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OK VEOLIA WATER NORTH AMERICA – 
 CENTRAL, LLC  
 
 
By: __________________________ By: ______________________________ 
 
Name: _______________________ Name: ___________________________ 
 
Title: ________________________ Title: ____________________________ 
 
Date: ________________________  Date: ____________________________ 
 
 
 
 Attest: 
  
  
 ____________________________ 
 City Clerk 
 



AGREEMENT FOR 
OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE 

CHICKASAW WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT FOR THE 
CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 

THIS AGREEMENT, entered into this the Fifth (5th) day of June, 2000, by and between the 
CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA, hereinafter referred to as CITY; and U.S. FILTER 
OPERATING SERVICES, INC., hereinafter referred to as USFOS, formerly WHEELABRATOR 
EOS INC, (WEOS). 

WHEREAS, CITY owns and has jurisdiction over the Chickasaw Wastewater Treatment 
Plant located in the City of Bartlesville (hereinafter called the FACILITY); and 

WHEREAS, CITY is desirous that the FACILITY be operated and maintained in the most 
efficient manner possible, while complying with all Federal and State laws; and 

WHEREAS, USFOS is a company specializing in the business of supplying operation, 
maintenance and management services for such waste treatment plants; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and terms contained herein, the parties 
agree as follows: 

1. EMPLOYMENT: 

A. The CITY agrees to engage USFOS to provide Operations, Maintenance, and 
Management Services to include the administration of the Industrial 
Pretreatment Program and Land Application of stabilized Biosolids at the 
Wastewater Treatment FACILITY. FACILITY includes: the Chickasaw 
Wastewater Treatment Plant, eighteen (18) Sanitary Sewage Pump Stations, 
Flow Equalization Basins (FEB's) at the Treatment Plant and at the Limestone 
and Tuxedo Pump Station complexes. Biosolids shall be defined herein as the 
stabilized, nutrient rich, semi-solid organic byproduct of the Anaerobic Sludge 
Digestion Process at the Bartlesville FACILITY which contain basic nutrients 
and trace minerals considered essential for plant growth. Stabilized Biosolids 
generated at the Wastewater Treatment FACILITY shall be incorporated into 
the subsoil by USFOS personnel at State of Oklahoma approved agricultural 
sites. 

B. Facilities, Supplies and Equipment. Property and equipment at the Facility at 
the start of this contract, to be operated and maintained by USFOS pursuant to 
this contract, as well as tools, furniture, parts, documents, equipment and 
supplies furnished by the CITY or purchased by USFOS in accordance with 
the terms of this Contract (i.e., with funds as set forth in Section 11.A) shall be 
the sole property of the CITY. USFOS shall furnish CITY with serial numbers 

1 



and other identifying information for each new item of equipment with a value 
greater than $250.00 and an estimated life greater than one year to enable 
inventory control by the CITY. USFOS shall furnish CITY serial numbers of 
equipment retired. 

Property, equipment, supplies and other items that may be purchased by 
USFOS at its sole expense shall remain the property ofUSFOS. 

C. Data. Laboratory data and operational records and maintenance records, 
including reports, studies, memoranda and such other information related to 
these as may be gathered by USFOS in the performance of its duties under the 
terms of this contract, whether written or stored electronically on magnetic 
media shall, except as otherwise provided herein, remain the sole property of 
the CITY. USFOS' s internal correspondence, personnel records, financial 
reports and other documents shall remain the property of USFOS. Except as 
otherwise provided herein, operational strategies and projections shall be 
available for CITY review, but shall remain the property ofUSFOS. 

D. Computer Programs. Computer programs owned by the CITY or licensed to it 
by a third party shall remain the property of the CITY. Computer programs or 
modifications to CITY-owned programs which are developed by USFOS's 
employees shall be the property of the CITY. Computer programs owned by 
USFOS or licensed to it by a third party shall remain the property of USFOS. 
USFOS will use its proprietary computerized hardware and software system 
for the generation of process information and mathematically developed 
process parameters, and records maintenance, for FACILITY operations and 
for data management and administration of the Industrial Wastewater 
Pretreatment Program. 

2. TERM: 

3. 

The contract term shall commence on July I, 2000 and expire ten (10) years thereafter 
on June 30, 2010. If the CITY so elects, the Term of the AGREEMENT may be 
extended an additional five (5) years via a written request submitted to USFOS 180 
days prior to the expiration date. 

The CITY may terminate this contract with a ninety (90) day notice to USFOS. If the 
CITY elects to terminate this agreement prior to the expiration date as set forth herein, 
it shall pay USFOS five (5%) of the then current annual contract price for 
demobilization and those other amounts specified in Section 1 lF herein as per 
amortization schedule in Attachment E. 

USFOS WILL PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING SERVICES: 

A. USFOS will staff the FACILITY with qualified employees experienced in 
wastewater treatment process control and maintenance procedures. USFOS 

2 



shall at all times provide the level of coverage needed to ensure monitoring of 
all routine wastewater treatment operations called for in this Agreement. 

B. USFOS will provide on-call, backup expe1iise and experience on process 
control, management and engineering. 

C. USFOS will staff the FACILITY with employees possessing necessary 
certifications as may be required by govermnental agencies as well as provide 
continued upgrading, education and training of these employees in modern 
wastewater control, safety and equipment maintenance. 

USFOS will maintain an education and safety program for all employees. This 
program is to be patterned after the USFOS program currently utilized at other 
USFOS-operated facilities. The cost of this program will be the responsibility 
ofUSFOS. 

D. The goals of FACILITY operation are to receive and monitor all wastes, 
discharge effluent to comply with permit requirements, dispose of sludge, 
minimize odors, comply with air emission standards, operate equipment 
efficiently and cost effectively, preserve life of the FACILITIES, be prepared 
for emergencies, and to provide a good public appearance representing a sound 
operation. All Biosolids and/or other residual waste generated by the Plant 
during the term shall remain the sole and exclusive property of the CITY. 

E. Within the design limits and operational capabilities of the FACILITY, 
USFOS shall operate the FACILITY in compliance with Federal, State, and 
local laws. Compliance with NPDES requirements is a responsibility of 
USFOS and USFOS agrees to assume liability for fines or civil penalties 
imposed by a regulatory agency to a maximum aggregate of $250,000 per year 
for USFOS-caused effluent violations when the FACILITY effluent exceeds 
the guaranteed quality of 10 mg/L BODS and 15 mg/L suspended solids and 
2.0 mg/L NH3 - N, Fecal Coliform 200 colonies/100 ml (May I-September 
30), Total Coliform 5,000 colonies/100 ml (October 1 - April 30), Total 
Residual Chlorine No Measurable (less than 0.1 mg/I). USFOS reserves the 
right to contest such action prior to payment. USFOS shall reimburse the CITY 
for those fines and civil penalties properly imposed on the CITY by a 
regulatory agency having jurisdiction during the term of this AGREEMENT 
for violations of the CITY's NPDES permit number OK0030333 which 
expires December 31, 2003; caused solely by USFOS' negligence or willful 
misconduct. It is understood that this stipulation shall apply to any subsequent 
permits issued during the course of this AGREEMENT and subject to 
Paragraph 12C contained herein. USFOS shall be given full authority to 
contest such violations and the CITY shall assist USFOS in all such 
proceedings. 

3 



This guarantee shall apply for average flows up to 7 MGD, peak hourly flows 
up to 15 MGD, BODS loadings up to 10,000 lbs)day, and suspended solids 
loadings up to 11,700 lbs)day. USFOS shall not be responsible for 
FACILITY effluent quality or permit compliance when any of the above 
parameters are exceeded. 

The Industrial Pretreatment Program shall be operated in accordance with and 
as outlined in NPDES Permit in effect as of January 1, 1998 or subsequent 
permits issued during the course of this AGREEMENT and subject to 
Paragraph 12C contained herein. 

F. USFOS will pay all expenses required for the normal operation and 
maintenance of the FACILITY which includes: (1) all personnel costs, (2) 
utilities, (3) chemicals, (4) fuels and lubricants, (5) normal operating supplies, 
( 6) handling of sludge, grit, screenings and grease, (7) maintenance repairs and 
replacement of non-capital equipment, and ( other) miscellaneous items 
necessary to meet Federal and State guidelines, and to maintain a safe and 
well-maintained operation. All costs associated with the preparation and 
implementation of any / or all urrforeseen future Federal and State mandated 
programs not in force when this AGREEMENT becomes effective on July 1, 
2000, shall be the responsibility of the CITY. 

USFOS agrees to share armual budgeted cost savings for natural gas, 
chemicals, and electricity ( excluding the Fine Bubble Diffuser Improvements 
detailed below) at the FACILITY on a 75:25 basis with the CITY receiving the 
larger share. The twelve (12) months period of normal operation from July 1, 
1999 through June 30, 2000 will constitute the established annual baseline of 
therms and chemical consumption and represent the established baseline for 
the subsequent 12 month period commencing on July 1, 2000 and concluding 
on June 30, 200 I. This progression shall continue for the duration of this 
Agreement. 

Annualized reductions in actual natural gas, chemical and electrical ( excluding 
the Fine Bubble Diffuser Retrofit detailed below) consumption amounts from 
baseline budget amounts shall be computed in accordance with the preceding 
paragraph. During the month of July throughout the duration of this 
Agreement, USFOS will present the CITY with 75% of the combined-shared 
savings realized during the 12-month period which concludes armually on June 
30'h. Overages in consumption above the established baseline amounts will not 
result in additional compensation to USFOS. However, in determining the 
annual shared savings return, expenses incurred over and above the established 
baseline ceilings shall be deducted from those savings realized for reduced 
consumption and 75% of the net savings realized from all Natural Gas and 
Chemical categories shall be presented to the CITY. 

4 



( Annual electrical power savings realized prior to and following the installation 
of the Fine Bubble Diffuser system sh.tll be deposited in a designated Capital 
Reserve Fund and used to reimburse USFOS until all costs associated with the 
retrofit project have been satisfied. From that point forward, all annual 
electrical savings will be deposited in the Capital Reserve Fund and those 
generated monies shall be utilized exclusively to fund future mutually agreed 
upon improvement projects at the Wastewater Treatment Plant. The annual 
electrical baseline for the Fine Bubble Diffuser retrofit will be based on actual 
electrical consumption of the blowers prior to the Fine Bubble retrofit and will 
be fixed for the term of the AGREEMENT. The annual savings will be 
determined by deducting the annual blower electrical consumption following 
the Fine Bubble Diffuser retrofit from the established blower electrical 
consumption baseline. 

G. USFOS will provide maintenance and repairs for the equipment, structures and 
vehicles consistent with good preventive practice and/or manufacturer's 
specifications utilizing its proprietary computerized automatic maintenance 
system. The CITY shall have the right to inspect these maintenance records 
during normal business hours. 

Routine maintenance and repairs for all equipment, structures and vehicles 
shall not include costs associated with flood, fire or other similar extraordinary 
occurrences not within the control of USFOS. USFOS will pay for all above 
equipment repair or replacement during the term of services, provided the 
aggregate, or Maintenance Ceiling amount which USFOS shall be required to 
pay under this section, shall not exceed $108,768 during the first year of the 
Agreement. This established maximum amount of aggregate dollars the 
Contractor shall be required to pay annually for the repair and maintenance of 
equipment, structures, grounds and vehicles consistent with good preventative 
and corrective maintenance practice and/or manufacturers' specifications shall 
be hereinafter referred to as the Maintenance Ceiling Fund. At the end of each 
12 month period of operation concluding on June 30 annually, USFOS will 
return 100% of any unused Maintenance Ceiling dollars. The annual 
maximum amount that USFOS shall be required to pay, as stated above in the 
first year, shall be adjusted annually thereafter using the percentage change in 
the Bureau of Labor Statistics CPI-U Index Factor provided in Attachment A 

USFOS shall annually submit to the CITY a list and estimate of Capital 
Expenditures, if any, to be provided by the CITY. The CITY is not bound by 
this list to provide Capital Expenditures. 

H. USFOS will prepare and sign as operator all monthly operating reports as 
required by the State, Federal, and local governments. USFOS shall also 
perform laboratory sampling and analysis, site inspections, records 
maintenance, data management, and all administrative duties, unless otherwise 
directed in writing by the City, in accordance with the testing requirements of 

5 



the City's NPDES Permit, Industrial Wastewater Pretreatment Program, and 
Sludge Management Plan. 

I. USFOS will, upon mutual agreement with the CITY, allow licensed septic tank 
pumping contractors to dump reasonable amounts of septage into the 
FACILITY at designated areas, provided such septages are free from abnormal 
or biologically toxic substances which cannot be treated or removed by current 
plant processes. 

Septage dumping will be allowed Monday through Friday between the hours of 
8:00 a.m. and 3:30 p.m., excluding holidays, and at other times pre-arranged 
with USFOS. If a septage hauler elects to request delivery at times other than 
those posted and if USFOS agrees to accept such septage, USFOS shall 
surcharge the hauler for the incremental overtime plus a 10% overhead fee to 
accept the septage. USFOS may take whatever reasonable steps are necessary 
to verify that the septage is not toxic, including visual inspections and analysis 
of grab samples. All fees charged septage disposal contractors shall be billed 
by and become the property of the CITY except for the USFOS overtime and 
overhead surcharges expressed above. 

J. USFOS hereby agrees to, and shall indemnify and hold harmless CITY, its 
elective and appointive boards, officers, agents and employees from any 
liability for damage or claims, including expenses and attorney's fees, for 
damage or personal injury, including death, as well as claims for property 
damage which directly arises from its intentional, willful, or negligent 
operations under this Agreement, whether such operations be by USFOS or 
any subcontractor of USFOS; provided, however, that this does not apply to 
and USFOS shall not hold the CITY harmless from, personal injury, property 
damage, or loss of plant use, arising out of the discharge, dispersal, release or 
escape of the FACILITY effluent or odors into or upon land, the atmosphere, 
or any water course or body of water. CITY shall indemnify and hold harmless 
USFOS, its officers, agents, and employees from (a) any claim, loss, liability, 
damage, injury, or expense, including attorneys' fees, which arises from (i) any 
cause other than intentional, willful, or negligent operations of USFOS or any 
subcontractor of USFOS, or (ii) the discharge, dispersal, release or escape of 
the FACILITY'S effluent or odors into or upon land, the atmosphere, or any 
water course or body of water, and (b) any liability for consequential or 
incidental damages, however caused; provided, however, the first $200,000.00 
of consequential or incidental damages from each occurrence shall be shared 
equally between the parties hereto. 

K. Grounds Maintenance. 

(1) Landscaped Areas. Landscaped areas of facilities operated and maintained 
by USFOS pursuant to this contract shall be as they currently exist. 
USFOS shall water, mow, fertilize, prune, remove weeds, replace dead 

6 



plants, maintain and repair permanent sprinkler systems and controls and 
otherwise~ maintain landscaping so that it is at all times reasonably 
acceptable to the CITY. 

(2) Areas with Limited Landscaping. The landscaping in some areas of CITY 
facilities consists of trees, shrubbery and non-irrigated native groundcover. 
USFOS shall maintain trees and shrubs by regular pruning and control of 
weeds within the FACILITY area and shall replace any plants which die. 
Ground areas shall be mowed, weather and ground conditions permitting, 
with sufficient frequency to limit height of weeds and grasses to a 
maximum of twelve (12) inches. Trees and shrubs shall be pruned on a 
rotating basis so that individual plants are pruned at an interval which does 
not exceed three years. The area outside the fence line at the Limestone 
Equalization Basin and Tuxedo Equalization Basins will be mowed by 
CITY personnel. 

(3) Drainage Channels. Drainage swales and channels within the FACILITY 
shall be maintained free of excessive vegetation so as to allow 
unobstructed drainage of the FACILITY site and lift station sites. 

L. Administrative Building. USFOS shall maintain the appearance and 
cleanliness of the Administration Building in excellent condition at all times, 
and shall provide those custodial services normally associated with 
maintenance of a business office. Said custodial services shall include 
vacuuming and shampooing carpets, emptying trash, cleaning and waxing tile 
floors, cleaning light fixtures and windows, cleaning walls and ceilings, and 
cleaning and maintaining restrooms and locker rooms. 

M. USFOS shall maintain during the life of the Agreement the following 
msurance: 

(1) Public Liability and Property Damage $2,000,000 ( combined single 
limit) 

(2) General Liability 
$2,000,000 ( combined single limit) 

(3) Automotive Liability covering both company vehicles and CITY 
vehicles operated exclusively by USFOS personnel $2,000,000 
( combined single limit) 

(4) Worker's Compensation 
Per State and Federal Law 

7 



4. 

USFOS agrees to provide the CITY with proof of such insurance and will 
require insurer to give CITY thirty (30) days notice of cancellation or material 
change in said policies. -

N. USFOS will, during periods of construction, operate the FACILITY in 
accordance with the conditions as set forth in Attachment A. 

0. USFOS will cooperate with and provide support to the CITY as reasonably 
required to implement actions of any Administrative Order. In the event such 
implementation significantly decreases or increases USFOS' costs; the price 
will be adjusted per Section D of Attachment A. 

SERVICE REQUIREMENTS: 

A. General. USFOS shall operate facilities in a professional manner at all times 
in accordance with this contract and regulatory agency requirements. 

B. Personnel. 

(1) General. 

(a) Competency of Workers. USFOS shall at all times employ skilled 
personnel adequately trained to handle the responsibilities 
associated with their assigned duties. USFOS may employ trainees 
provided said trainees are adequately supervised by USFOS. 

(b) Availability. The Plant Manager will be available on-site full-time 
and shall maintain an office in the Administration Building at the 
Chickasaw Wastewater Treatment Plant and shall be available to 
consult with the Director of Pnblic Works during normal business 
hours. When the Plant Manager is expected to be absent from the 
FACILITY, he/she shall designate a responsible individual to act in 
his behalf or shall take steps to insure that he/she may be contacted 
by telephone by the CITY. During non-office hours, Plant Manager 
or his/her designee shall be available by telephone. Home 
telephone numbers of Manager and designee( s) shall be furnished 
to the CITY and updated as required to insure that the list remains 
current. At least one management employee designated by USFOS 
shall be available by telephone seven (7) days per week, 24 hours 
per day. USFOS may meet this requirement utilizing a wide area 
paging system or other means approved by the Director of Public 
Works. 

8 



C. Operational Standards. 

(1) General. USFOS shall operate facilities described herein in a 
professional manner and at all times in accordance with requirements 
of the contract and generally accepted practices for municipal 
wastewater treatment plants. 

(2) Operation and Maintenance Manual. USFOS shall operate CITY 
facilities in a manner which meets or exceeds the requirements of the 
Facility Operation and Maintenance Manual or sound industrial 
standards for operations. USFOS shall notify the CITY in writing of 
errors or omissions in the O & M Manual as they are identified. 

(3) Standard Operating Procedures. USFOS shall maintain written 
standard operating procedures (SOP's) as necessary to clarify, refine or 
supplement procedures provided in the O & M Manual, or to describe 
operational practices which do not conform to the O & M Manual. 
USFOS shall furnish CITY with a complete file of all current SOP's 
and shall keep CITY's SOP file updated on a regular basis. The CITY 
will not release SOP's to a third party without the consent ofUSFOS. 

(4) Non-degradation of Equipment. USFOS shall not employ operating 
practices, which result in excessive wear or degradation of CITY 
facilities. 

D. Communications. 

(1) Regulatory Agencies. Routine written and oral communication with 
regulatory agencies concerning day to day operation of the facilities 
covered under this contract shall be the responsibility of USFOS. 
USFOS shall provide CITY with copies of all correspondence with 
regulatory agencies. Communication with regulatory agencies 
regarding permit requirements or modifications and capacity of 
facilities shall be the responsibility of the CITY. The CITY will 
provide USFOS's Plant Manager with copies of correspondence 
concerning changes in regulatory requirements which could affect the 
provisions of this contract. 

(2) News Media. USFOS shall refer inquiries regarding FACILITY 
activities to the· Director of Public Works. Any trade publication 
articles published or authored by USFOS referring in any way to the 
CWWTP shall be subject to approval of the Director of Public Works. 

USFOS may not utilize the names of employees, officers or directors of 
the CITY in any written advertising, brochures, public relations 
documents or news releases without the express written consent of the 

9 



Director of Public Works. Written advertising, brochures, public 
relations documents and/or news releases prepared by USFOS which 
refer to the Chickasaw Wastewater Treatment Plant and/or any of its 
facilities shall be subject to review by the Director of Public Works for 
accuracy. 

Notwithstanding the above, USFOS may furnish prospective clients 
and other interested parties with the CITY' s name, address, telephone 
number, plant history and performance data for the purpose of 
providing client references and documenting USFOS' s activities. 

5. LICENSES AND CERTIFICATES: USFOS shall obtain or renew all licenses and 
certificates necessary to execute services in compliance with current governing laws or 
regulations; additional licenses with extraordinary costs will be obtained upon a 
change in scope. USFOS warrants maintaining these currently required items up to 
date and associated fees and charges shall be at the expense ofUSFOS. Licenses shall 
include but not be limited to water and wastewater operator certification, electrician's 
license, radioactive material license, laboratory certification, analytical balance 
certification, water and wastewater lab technician certification, and appropriate vehicle 
driver's and chauffeur's license. 

6. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS: USFOS shall operate the FACILITIES within their 
respective current NPDES Permit limits and in such a manner that odor and other 
nuisances are minimized. 

USFOS shall warrant that all services performed shall comply with Federal, State, and 
local laws, codes, ordinances, and regulations. Changes from those in effect at the 
time of contract execution shall require a change of scope. Departures therefrom will 
be promptly corrected and shall be the responsibility ofUSFOS. 

7. RECORDS: USFOS shall maintain accurate, up-to-date financial records in 
accordance with accepted accounting practices. USFOS shall maintain operating 
reports to comply with State of Oklahoma requirements and maintain an operator's 
diary of significant events for FACILITY history. The CITY may review these 
records upon request. The following reports shall be provided to the CITY: 

A. Additional Operational Reports. Two (2) copies shall be provided 
monthly and submitted to the CITY by the I 0th of the following 
month. The report shall cover the following minimum information: 

• 

• 
• 
• 
• 

Data required by the Oklahoma Department of Environmental 
Quality and U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. 
Significant operational problems . 
Staff changes . 
NPDES Compliance data 
Flow and Loadings data for FACILITY 

10 



8. 

9. 

• 
• 
• 

• 
• 
• 

• 
• 
• 

Lift Station use data 
Status of Maintenance ceiling and Shared savings 
Report on septic flows including names of contractors and 
volumes 
Status of sampling budget 
Narrative on FACILITY performance for previous month 
Significant issues (i.e. staffing, process problems, life station 
problems, and needed capital improvements) 
Priorities for coming month 
Status of last months priorities 
Pretreatment activity summary 

B. Annual Report on Maintenance and Repair Activities. An Annual 
Report detailing maintenance and repair activities shall be prepared 
and incorporated into the Annual Summary Report and submitted to 
the CITY each July. Major program activities and priorities shall be 
described therein. Unusual expenditures encountered during the 
previous year, or anticipated in the coming year, shall be presented. 

C. Annual Report. A summary Annual Report (14 copies) shall be 
prepared at year-end to describe operational and maintenance standing 
and significant occurrences of the previous year. Reports shall be 
submitted to the Director of Public Works by July 30. Review of 
shared savings, maintenance overruns or rebates, scope changes, or 
other relevant financial changes shall be included. 

LABORATORY: The Chickasaw Wastewater Treatment Plant maintains a 
Wastewater Laboratory certified by the State of Oklahoma. USFOS will be required 
to maintain said certification and perform essential analysis to fulfill NPDES Permit 
and Process Control requirements. On-site and Contract Laboratory Facilities will 
adhere to the analytical procedures presented in the most recent edition of Standard 
Methods for the Examination of Water and Wastewater and/or in accordance with all 
testing requirements of the Facility's NPDES Discharge Permit. On-site Laboratory 
services will be extended to the CITY upon request to include analysis of chemical 
spills and suspected hazardous solid wastes. 

MAINTENANCE AND CAPITAL REPLACEMENT: 

A. A maintenance program for the FACILITIES shall be employed which 
provides for systematic coverage of routine items and programming of 
larger repair items. A schedule of maintenance activities shall be 
available to operation personnel for coordination and to the CITY for 
review. 

USFOS shall maintain and repair all equipment, machinery, vehicles, 
instrumentation, structures, and FACILITY furnishings to a fully 

11 



10. 

operational condition m accordance with industry standards, 
manufacturer's recommendations or design specifications. 
Maintenai1ce and operation activities shall protect the CITY'S 
warranties on new or existing equipment. USFOS shall, at its sole cost 
and expense, pay for all such repairs and maintenance exclusive of 
capital items as defined herein to the limits defined below. 

Maintenance responsibilities also include grounds care, lawns, 
landscaping, fencing, signs, site drainage, walkways, building paint, 
and similar structural and non-structural features shall be kept in first
class condition both functionally and aesthetically. All maintenance 
costs in this section shall be subject to cost as defined in Section 3.G. 

Inventory shall be kept of spare parts, standard lubricants, long-lead 
time replace items, and similar use items to promote continuity of 
operations. Subject to funding approval by the CITY, USFOS will 
stock inventory to the level of manufacturer's recommendations. 

B. Requests for CAPITAL EXPENDITURES or vehicles will be 
submitted to the CITY and reviewed for funding. USFOS shall provide 
any documentation requested by the CITY to assist in making a repair 
vs. replace decision. The CITY shall approve such purchases at its sole 
discretion, provided however that where such improvements are 
necessary for permit compliance, the CITY' s refusal to make such 
purchases shall relieve USFOS of its obligation to guarantee permit 
compliance. If the CITY and USFOS disagree on the necessity of an 
improvement for permit compliance, the question shall be submitted to 
a mutually agreeable third party, who will rule on the question of 
necessity and whose determination shall be final. USFOS and the 
CITY shall share the cost of hiring such third party 50-50. 

"CAPITAL EXPENDITURES" means any expenditures for (1) the 
purchase of new equipment of FACILITY items that cost more than 
two thousand Dollars ($2,000.00); or (2) major repairs which 
significantly extend equipment or FACILITY service life and cost more 
than two thousand Dollars ($2,000.00); or (3) expenditures that are 
planned, non-routine and budgeted by CITY. 

CITY OBLIGATIONS. During the term hereof, the CITY shall: 

A. Pay to USFOS, as compensation for the services performed, the sum of 
$1,436,967.48 for the first year, adjusted thereafter as stated in 
Attachment A of this Agreement. The monthly payment schedule shall 
be as agreed between the parties. Invoices are payable at the first of 
each month the services are to be rendered. Late payments beyond 3 O 
days will be subject to a service charge of 1-1/2% per month or the 

12 



maximum legal rate. Compensation may be subsequently increased or 
decreased as described in Attachment A. Invoices are to be submitted 

- to the Director of Public Works no later than the 20tli of each month so 
payment can be made to USFOS on the first Tuesday of the next 
month, or Wednesday if a holiday falls on Monday. 

B. Maintain existing easements, licenses and warranties for the mutual 
benefit of both parties. 

C. Vehicles. The CITY will provide the following vehicles for the use of 
USFOS. Said vehicles will be maintained by USFOS in a good usable 
condition. The CITY will license these vehicles while under the 
ownership of the CITY. USFOS will notify the CITY when a 
particular vehicle has exceeded its reasonable service life and 
recommend, with justification, that it be retired. If a retired vehicle is 
to be replaced, a Capital Expenditure request shall be submitted to the 
Director of Public Works and reviewed for funding. If funding is 
approved, the CITY' s designated agent will purchase the replacement 
vehicle. 

The list of vehicles for USFOS 's use are: 

( 1) 1979 International Tractor, #840, 
(2) 1979 International Tractor, #2805, 
(3) 1978 Trailmaster Tanker 
(4) 1982 Shop Built Tanker, 
(5) 1981 "Big A" Sludge Injector, #830, 
(6) 1988 Ford Ranger Pick Up TRK# 19 
(7) 1988 Ford 150 Pick Up TRK# 2808 
(8) 1989 Ford Ranger Pick Up TRK#23 
(9) 1991 Chev.S-10 Pick Up TRK#920379 
(10) 1995 Ford Fl50 Pick Up TRK#2819 
(11) 1999 Chevrolet One (1) Ton 

Tag No. 3~ ~a.ad. 
Tag No. 3~4 ¥-att 
Tag No. 3-26230 
Tag No. 3-20587 
Tag No. 3-~ J..•c:t,...., 
Tag No. 3-35598 
Tag No. 3-35601 
Tag No. 3-35599 
Tag No. OK WAS 897 
Tag No. 3-39505 
Tag No. 3-44095 

D. Purchase and ensure that standard fire insurance policies are maintained 
including extended coverage to the full insurable value of the 
FACILITY; name USFOS as an additional insured according to its 
insurable interest under these policies during the term of the 
Agreement; and ascertain that USFOS shall have no liability to CITY 
with respect to loss, damage, and destruction covered by such policies 
or in excess of such policies. Nor shall USFOS be liable to CITY or its 
insurance carrier for subrogation right for payments made per the 
policy or any damage. The CITY shall continue to maintain liability 
and other insurance for non-USFOS employees stationed at the 
FACILITY. The CITY reserves the right to become self-insured at any 
time in the future. 

13 



11. 

E. Pay for all Capital Expenditures, excluding those certain specified 
capital improvements set forth in Section 11 herein. The CITY shall 
purchase said Capital Expenditures items where reasonable justification 
is provided by USFOS in accordance with Section 9.B. 

F. 

G. 

H. 

A. 

Capital items, within the definition of Capital Expenditures, include, 
without limitation, equipment, machinery, vehicles, (pursuant to 
Paragraph 1 O.C) instrumentation, structures and any furnishings with a 
service life of more than one (1) year. 

Provide potable water for USFOS's use at the FACILITY. USFOS 
shall limit use of potable water to those uses necessary and incidental to 
actual operation of the Wastewater Treatment Plant and all water shall 
be metered. 

CITY will continue to provide two (2) telephone lines for local access 
and mobile radio frequency. 

The CITY shall create a Capital Expenditure Reserve Fund with the 
sole purpose of providing a funding source for long term beneficial 
Capital Improvements at the FACILITY. The Capital Expenditure 
Reserve Fund will be funded by the annual electrical savings generated 
by USFOS over the term of this AGREEMENT. On an annual basis, 
USFOS shall, within sixty (60) days following the end of each 
AGREEMENT year, provide a complete accounting of all monies spent 
on electrical power for the prior AGREEMENT year and deposit to the 
Capital Expenditure Reserve Fund, the difference between the twelve 
(12) month electrical consumption baseline prior to the Fine Bubble 
Diffuser retrofit and the actual dollars spent. The monies deposited in 
the Capital Expenditure Reserve Fund will represent the armual 
electrical savings realized following the retrofit to Fine Bubble Diffuser 
elements. USFOS may retain all electrical savings for its own account 
and benefit and shall have no obligation to deposit any electrical 
savings amounts realized from the Fine Bubble Diffuser retrofit into the 
Capital Expenditure Reserve Fund until which time as USFOS has been 
paid in full for the costs of the Diffuser Improvements specified in 
Section 11.A. 

USFOS FINANCED CAPITAL EXPENDITURES: 

USFOS agrees to provide funding to the CITY, in an amount not to 
exceed the prices for those certain specified capital improvements 
identified below: 

14 



( 

Capital Improvement Project Not to Exceed Price 

1. 

2. 

0 
J. 

Design and construction of a new 
gravity thickening, building and related 
equipment (hereinafter the "Gravity 
Thickening Improvements") 

Design and Installation of Fine 
Bubble Diffusers (hereinafter the 
"Diffuser Improvements") 

Design, construction and installation of 
A new Head Works Screening device 
(hereinafter the "Influent Screening 
Improvements") 

$346,000 

$250,000 

$200,000 

Total Funding to be provided by USFOS to CITY: $796,000 

The specifications and scope of services for the Gravity Belt 
Thickening, Fine Bubble Diffuser and Influent Screening 
improvements Attachments B, C and D respectively. 

B. USFOS shall provide funding to the CITY for the Gravity Thickening 
Improvements, Diffuser Improvements and Influent Screening 
Improvements by paying the amounts referenced in Section 11.A. into 
a non-interest bearing escrow account on or before July 1, 2000. The 
escrow account shall be managed by USFOS and can be drawn upon by 
the CITY based upon documented costs directly arising from the 
Gravity Thickening Improvements and Diffuser Improvements. 

C. Due to the existing condition of the CITY's Gravity Belt Thickening 
equipment and structures and the immediate need for Influent 
Screening Improvements, the parties acknowledge and agree that time 
is of the essence for completing the Gravity Thickening and Influent 
Screening Improvements on or before August 1, 2001. 

D. The CITY shall have sole authority to designate and approve the design 
engineers, equipment specifications and construction contractors 
required to complete the Gravity Thickening Improvements, Diffuser 
Improvements and Influent Screening Improvements. In the event the 
CITY engages any third party contractor ("Third Party Contractor") to 
design and/or construct the Gravity Thickening Improvements and/or 
the Diffuser Improvements and/or Influent Screening Improvements: 

15 



(1) The CITY and such Third Party Contractor shall be solely 
responsible for any damage to the FACILITY or any other 
losses arising out of or resulting from the performance of the
work by the Third Party Contractor or from defects in the 
material, equipment or work performed by the Third Party 
Contractor. 

(2) The CITY shall be responsible for guaranteeing the work 
performed by such Third Party Contractor, quality of 
construction and damages and cost resulting from schedule 
delays. 

(3) The CITY shall be solely responsible for any cost overruns in 
excess of those amounts specified in Section 11.A. 

(4) Under no circumstances shall USFOS be required to warrant or 
guarantee the performance of any equipment, component or 
facilities comprising any part of the Gravity Thickening 
Improvements, Diffuser Improvements or Influent Screening 
Improvements constructed by any Third Party Contractor. 

E. If USFOS is selected and engaged by the CITY to design, procure 
equipment and construct the Gravity Thickening Improvements, Fine 
Bubble Diffuser Improvements and/or Influent Screening 
Improvements: 

(1) In accordance with the schedule agreed to between the CITY 
and USFOS, USFOS shall prepare and submit to the CITY all 
required design plans for the specified improvement. The CITY 
shall review the design within 10 days. In such reviews, USFOS 
and the City shall reach mutual agreement on design preference. 
Notwithstanding reviews by the CITY, the plans and 
specifications shall remain the responsibility of USFOS and 
neither the CITY' s review or approval, or failure to comment on 
the plans and specifications, shall relieve USFOS of any of its 
responsibilities under this Agreement. If not disapproved by the 
CITY within fifteen (15) days, USFOS's design shall be 
deemed approved. 

(2) Upon CITY approval of the specified design, USFOS shall 
provide all required procurement and construction services to 
undertake and complete the specified improvements in 
accordance with the approved schedule and the specifications 
set forth in Attachments B, C and D as applicable. 

16 



(3) If selected, USFOS shall be solely responsible for any damages 
for schedule delays and costs in excess of those amounts 
specified in Section 11.A. to complete the- specified 
improvement. 

(4) With respect to the Gravity Thickener Improvements, USFOS, 
if selected, shall provide replacement belts for the gravity belt 
thickener equipment for a period of three (3) years from the 
completion date, at no cost to the CITY. USFOS shall 
additionally provide temporary thickening, at no cost to the 
CITY, until the Gravity Thickening Improvements are 
completed in accordance with Attachment B. 

(5) If selected, USFOS shall ensure that the specified 
improvements, when completed, will meet or exceed the design 
requirements and specifications set forth in Attachment B, C, 
andD. 

F. The funds provided by USFOS for the Gravity Thickener 
Improvements and Influent Screening Improvements shall be amortized 
over the term of the Agreement and shall not be reimbursed to USFSO 
by the CITY unless the Agreement is terminated prior to the expiration 
of the initial term on June 30, 2010. The funds provided by USFOS for 
the Diffuser Improvements shall be reimbursed to USFOS as set forth 
in Section 10 H above. 

G. The Gravity Thickening Improvements, Fine Bubble Diffuser 
Improvements and Influent Screening Improvements shall at all times 
be owned by the CITY and USFOS shall have no claim or title thereto. 

12. LIMITATIONS: 

A. In the event: (i) FACILITY loadings exceed FACILITY design 
parameters; or (ii) FACILITY influent contains abnormal, toxic or 
other substances which cannot be removed or treated by existing 
FACILITY; or (iii) FACILITY influent contains discharges which 
violate the applicable sewage ordinances; or, (iv) CITY fails to 
implement a USFOS recommended Capital Expenditure, USFOS will 
use its best efforts to maximize FACILITY performance, but it is not 
responsible for associated effluent characteristics or damages. USFOS 
shall advise the CITY of the abnormal situation and planned course of 
action within 24 hours of occurrence or within 48 hours if on a 
weekend. However, USFOS in such event agrees to return FACILITY 
effluent to contract limits within twenty (20) days after influent returns 
to acceptable limits. 

17 



B. Wrongful, willful or negligent acts of the CITY, through its officers, 
agents or employees and wrongful, willful or negligent acts of third 
parties, or acts of God, which cause damage to the FACILITY or to 
other parties or properties shall not be the responsibility ofUSFOS. 

C. Additional cost of extraordinary or unusual occurrences associated with 
flood, fire, Force Mejeure or Change of Law (including without 
limitations, the NPDES Permit) which increase justifiable operation, 
maintenance, repair, administrative and overhead costs or other 
expenses (including capital costs), shall be the sole responsibility of the 
CITY. 

D. In the event that labor stoppage by employee groups (e.g., picketing) 
causes a disruption with USFOS's employees from entering and 
working at the treatment plant FACILITY, the CITY, with USFOS's 
assistance or USFOS at its own option shall seek appropriate legal 
injunctions or court orders. During such a designated period, USFOS 
shall operate the FACILITY on a best effort basis until labor relations 
are normalized and shall not be liable for any fines or penalties. CITY 
personnel may give assistance in the operation for such a temporary 
period. Such assistance by CITY personnel shall entitle the CITY to 
compensation for said services and compensation shall be deducted 
from monthly payments. 

13. GENERAL PROVISIONS: 

A. This Agreement shall be automatically cancelled at the end of ten (] 0) 
years unless the CITY exercises the option to provide a written request 
that the contractual AGREEMENT be extended an additional five (5) 
years within 180 days prior to the June 30, 2010 expiration date. 

B. Except as set forth in Section 2 above, either party to the Agreement 
may terminate this Agreement upon material breach by the other party 
providing that such terminating party first provides written notice of 
such breach to the other party and such breach is not corrected within 
ninety (90) days. In this event USFOS will, if desired by the CITY, 
continue to provide the current operations staff for a period of at least 
ninety (90) days beyond the set date of termination at cost plus 
overhead plus 15 percent profit. 

C. In the event that this Agreement is terminated for any reason prior to the 
termination date of the initial term, CITY shall pay to USFOS the 
remaining unamortized balance of the Gravity Thickening_Improvements, 
Influent Screening Improvements and Fine Bubble Diffuser 
Improvements (to the extent not otherwise paid through the Capital 
Expenditure Reserve Fund), all as set fo1ih in Appendix E. 

18 



D. Equipment, tools, parts, supplies, chemicals, and other items purchased 
by expenditure of maintenance funds are the property of the CITY. 
Any capital equipment from other funds provided by USFOS during 
the term of this Agreement shall remain the property of USFOS except 
for items purchased as a part of this Contract or agreed to be purchased 
in USFOS's Proposal to the CITY, such as Carter Sludge Thickener. In 
the event USFOS sells such equipment, the CITY shall have first 
option to purchase. 

E. It is understood that the relationship of USFOS to the CITY is that of 
an independent contractor and that none of the employees or agents of 
USFOS shall be considered employees of the CITY. 

F. The failure on the part of either party to enforce its rights as to any 
provision of the Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver of its 
rights to enforce such provision in the future. 

G. This Agreement shall not be assigned by either party without the prior 
written consent of the other unless such assignment shall be to an 
affiliate or successor of either party. 

H. USFOS is an equal opportunity employer with an approved affirmative 
action program. (M/F/H/Y/R). 

I. This Agreement contains the entire Agreement between the CITY and 
USFOS and supercedes all previous or contemporaneous 
communications, representations or agreements. This Agreement may 
be modified only by written amendment signed by both parties. 

J. CITY officials and representatives will have access to the FACILITY 
covered by this Agreement during normal working hours and at other 
times, for reasons of safety, with reasonable notice. Non-USFOS 
employees stationed at the FACILITY will adhere to all USFOS safety 
requirements. 

K. All notices shall be in writing and delivered in person or transmitted by 
certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid. Notices 
required to be given to USFOS shall be addressed as follows: 

USFilter Operating Services, Inc. 
ATTN: Service Center Vice President 

2300 Contra Costa Boulevard, Suite 470 
Pleasant Hill, California 94523 

19 



Notices required to be given to the CITY shall be addressed as follows: 

City of Bartlesville 
ATTN: Director of Public Works 

40 I South Johnstone 
Bartlesville, Oklahoma 7 4003 

or to such other address as may be specified in written notice. 

L. Employees of the CITY will be required to follow the safety procedures 
ofUSFOS in all areas around the FACILITY. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITY and USFOS have caused this Agreement to be duly executed as 
of the day and year first above written. 

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 

ATTEST: Ry~£) -~, 
(SEAL) 

U.S. FILTER OPERATING SERVICES, INC. 
(USFOS) 

By:~~~~~-
f..,ps;/2._J_. USFoS 

20 



ATTACHMENT A 
TO 

AGREEMENT FOR 
OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE OF THE 

CHICKASAW WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT FOR THE 
CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 

ADJUSTMENTS TO COMPENSATION 

A INFLATION OR DEFLATION ADJUSTMENT: 

From commencement of the contract until the contract expires, compensation shall be 
increased or decreased as follows: 

Al ANNUALLY 

Compensation shall be increased or decreased annually according to the following U. 
S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics Index: Consumer Price Index 
(CPI-U all items index 1967 = 100). The first increase or decrease in compensation 
shall be effective 1 July 2000 and shall be based on the sum total percentage change in 
the CPI-U index effective 30 June 2000. Each subsequent increase or decrease in 
compensation shall be effective each 1 July and shall be based on the prior twelve (12) 
month changes in the CPI-U index. 

The percentage increase or decrease in service compensation to be calculated annually 
shall be the weighted percentage change in the CPI-U index: 

WEIGHT INDEX CHANGE WEIGHTED % CHANGE 

75% X (% Change in CPI-U all items index = Wt. % Change __ 
1967 = 100) 

A.2 PERIODICALLY 

Compensation shall be increased or decreased periodically for utility rate changes in 
accordance with changes in the applicable local utility rate schedule as they occur on 
the monthly billing following said rate change. The percentage increase or decrease in 
service compensation for changes in the applicable local utility rate schedule shall be 
calculated in accordance with the following formula: 

21 



WEIGHT 

25 X (% Change in Rate) Wt. % Change __ 

Example Computation: 

Example 

CPI-U 
Electricity 

Weighting 

7S% 
2S% 

100% 

June 1999 

4% 
6% 

% Change 

3.0% 
1.5% 

4.5% 

New Monthly Contract Price = Cunent Contract Price x 1.045 

B. CHANGE IN SCOPE ADJUSTMENT 

Any abrupt change in loadings similar to that caused by the addition of a major industrial 
discharger (2S,OOO GPD) as evidenced by a loading variation in excess of 15% per month 
above the most recent twelve (12) month average for three (3) consecutive months shall 
afford USFOS the option to request additional compensation. 

Any abrupt change in loadings directly attributed to pollutant discharges from the Municipal 
Water Treatment Plant as evidenced by instantaneous variations in SS (Suspended Solids) 
entering the Chickasaw WWTP for three (3) consecutive months shall also afford USFOS the 
option to request additional compensation. 

BOD loading and TSS loading for the purpose of this contract shall be determined by 
calculating the monthly solids as follows: 

Monthly BODS Loading (lbs./day) = (monthly average of daily plant influent 
BODS in mg/1) x (monthly average 
influent flow in million gallons per day) 
x (8.34 lbs./gallon) 

Monthly Suspended Solids Loading (lbs./day) = (monthly average daily plant influent 
suspended solids in mg/1) x (monthly 
average influent flow in million gallons / 
day) x (8.34 lbs./gallon) 

22 



C. GRIT SLUDGE DISPOSAL ADJUSTMENTS: 

D. 

Screenings, grit, grease, and sludge shall be hauled and disposed of in accordance with the 
methods in present use by USFOS. USFOS shall add sufficient lime to the grit so as to be in 
compliance with all state and federal requirements. 

GENERAL PROVISION FOR ADJUSTMENTS: 

In the event that any changes in the scope of operation for the FACILITY should occur, 
including but not limited to, changes in influent flow and loadings as per paragraph B above, 
changes in government regulations, changes of Law, reporting requirements, and effluent 
standards which increase the cost of operating the FACILITY, USFOS shall be entitled to 
additional compensation which would include reasonable amounts for overhead and a profit. 
Such additional compensation will be negotiated by the parties within a reasonable period of 
time, or if no negotiated agreement can be achieved, by a compensation adjustment of [(direct 
costs x USFOS overhead factor) x I. I profit fee multiplier)]. 

E. FUTURE CONSTRUCTION: 

It is recognized that the CITY, the CITY'S designated Engineer and/ or contractor may engage 
in plant improvements at the FACILITY. USFOS, along with the CITY and the CITY'S 
Consulting Engineering firm and the construction contractor, will work together to develop a 
plan to maintain accessibility and minimize disruption and outages to the existing plant when 
future plant improvements are under construction. 

USFOS will work with the CITY engineer and contractor to coordinate activities. In the event a 
critical piece of equipment must be taken out of service, a plan shall be developed and approved 
by all parties ten (10) working days prior to the scheduled outage. This plan will address the 
impact on plant operations, length of outage and methods of removing and reactivating the 
equipment for full service. The CITY shall pay USFOS reasonable and justifiable increased 
costs associated with said equipment outage. In the event said construction work requires 
substantial costs outside USFOS normal scope of services, the CITY shall pay USFOS for all 
said reasonable and justifiable extraordinary costs. 

In the event the CITY'S contractor or subcontractor causes damage to Treatment Plant 
Facilities under USFOS' s responsibility, the CITY shall notify USFOS' s designated 
representative at that time and take actions to minimize further damage. The CITY shall direct 
the contractor and the contractor shall have the responsibility for completing all repairs 
expeditiously within three (3) days or in a time period agreed to by USFOS. In addition, 
USFOS shall have the right to make repairs for the contractor and recover said costs from the 
CITY. 

23 



/.· 

\ 
Gravity Thickening Improvements 

Engineer / Architect 

ATTACHMENT B 

USFILTER OPERATING SERVICES, INC 
GRAVITY BELT THICKENER UPGRADE 

SPECIFICATIONS 

Complete architectural and engineering design work for the new Gravity Belt Thickener Building 

Construction Services 

Equipment 

Building 

1) Structural 
2) Mechanical 
3) Electrical 
4) Piping 
5) Demolition of existing Structure 
6) Construction Permit Acquisition 
7) Field surveys, obtain construction permits 
8) Final specifications for all equipment 
9) Meet all City architectural requirements 

1) 
2) 

3) 
4) 

5) 
6) 

1) 
2) 
3) 

4) 

5) 

1) 
2) 
3) 
4) 

Provide complete Set of As-Built construction plans 
Provide Resident Inspector to maintain daily records for deliveries 
of equipment, materials, coordination of concrete testing 
Shop drawing review and approval 
Provide "Engineer in Responsible Charge" to attend all scheduled 
meetings between City and USFOS 
Sign off on required permits 
Provide temporary Gravity Belt Thickening until facility is 
complete and operational 

2 meter Gravity Belt Thickener 
Belt Wash Purnp-70 gpm@250 TDH, 15 hp motor 
Polymer Mixing System- 4 to 4.5 gph neat polymer,60 to 1200 
gph solution, 1/3 hp 
Thickened Sludge Pump-Monoflo Model CE101MSS1R4/E or 
equivalent 
Provide 480V circuits from MCC in secondary sludge building to 
Gravity Belt Thickener and associated equipment 

Load bearing masonry wall construction 
Concrete Plank Roof insulated to Rl 9 
Provide heating and proper ventilation 
Monorail system for maintenance of Gravity Belt Thickener 

24 



GravityThickening Improvements 
Page 2 

5) Provide proper ingress/egress to meet all safety and operational -
requirements 

6) Provide proper electrical outlets to meet City Codes 
7) Provide one coiling steel service door 
8) Paint all walls with alkyd enamel 
9) Provide epoxy-polyamide on concrete floor with skid resistant 

surface 

25 



Diffuser Improvements 

Engineering 

ATTACHMENT C 

USFILTER OPERATING SERVICES, INC 
FINE BUBBLE DIFFUSER SYSTEM RETROFIT 

SPECIFICATIONS 

Complete engineering design work for the Fine Bubble Diffuser System Retrofit 

Construction Services 

Equipment 

1) Structural 
2) Mechanical 
3) Electrical 
4) Modify Existing Air Piping to enable the installation of a new Fine 

Bubble Diffuser System 
5) Remove existing Coarse Bubble Diffusers and air headers 
6) Construction Permit Acquisition 
7) Field surveys 
8) Final specifications for all equipment 
9) Confirm that existing blowers meet fine bubble pressure and air 

flow requirements 

1) Provide a complete Set of As-Built construction plans 
2) Provide Resident Inspector to daily records for deliveries of 

equipment, materials, coordination of concrete testing 
3) Shop drawing review and approval 
4) Provide "Engineer in Responsible" Charge to attend scheduled 

meetings between the City and USFOS 
5) Sign off on required permits 

' 

1) Fine Bubble Diffuser Elements will be procured based upon overall 
efficiency as recommended by City's Independent Testing 
Laboratory 

2) Supply all tees, saddles etc. 

26 



Influent Screening Improvements 

Engineering 

ATTACHMENT D 

USFILTER OPERATING SERVICES, INC 
INSTALLATION OF MECHANICAL SCREENING 

SPECIFICATIONS 

Complete engineering design work for construction and installation of Head Works Mechanical 
Screening. 

Construction Services 

Equipment 

1) Structural - Design Bypass Structure 
2) Mechanical 
3) Electrical 
4) Construction Permit Acquisition 
5) Field surveys 
6) Final specifications for all equipment 

1) Provide a complete Set of As-Built construction plans 
2) Provide Resident Inspector to daily records for deliveries of 

equipment, materials, coordination of concrete testing 
3) Shop drawing review and approval 
4) Provide "Engineer in Responsible" Charge to attend scheduled 

meetings between the City and USFOS 
5) Sign off on required permits 

1) JWC Auger Monster or equivalent - 20 MGD 
2) Motorized Sheer Gate to Isolate Auger Monster 
3) All required electrical and mechanical components. 

27 



Appendix E 
Amortization Schedule 

Early Termination Schedule 

Month Gravity Belt Thickener Mechanical Screening Fine Bubble Diffuser 
Upgrade Installation Retrofit {Note 1) 

1 Jul-00 $346,000 $200,000 $250,000 
2 Aug-00 $344,311 $199,024 $248,780 
3 Sep-00 $342,608 $198,039 $247,549 
4 Oct-00 $340,890 $197,046 $246,308 
5 Nov-00 $339,159 $196,046 $245,057 
6 Dec-00 $337,413 $195,036 $243,795 
7 Jan-01 $335,652 $194,019 $242,523 
8 Feb-01 $333,877 $192,992 $241,240 
9 Mar-01 $332,087 $191,958 $239,947 

10 Apr-01 $330,282 $190,914 $238,643 
11 May-01 $328,461 $189,862 $237,328 
12 Jun-01 $326,626 $188,801 $236,002 
13 Jul-01 $324,776 $187,732 $234,665 
14 Aug-01 $322,910 $186,653 $233,316 
15 Sep-01 $321,028 $185,565 $231,957 
16 Oct-01 $319,131 $184,469 $230,586 
17 Nov-01 $317,218 $183,363 $229,204 
18 Dec-01 $315,289 $182,248 $227,810 
19 Jan-02 $313,344 $181,124 $226,405 
20 Feb-02 $311,383 $179,990 $224,988 
21 Mar-02 $309,405 $178,847 $223,559 
22 Apr-02 $307,411 $177,694 $222,118 
23 May-02 $305,401 $176,532 $220,665 
24 Jun-02 $303,373 $175,360 $219,200 
25 Jul-02 $301,329 $174,179 $217,723 
26 Aug-02 $299,268 $172,987 $216,234 
27 Sep-02 $297,189 $171,786 $214,732 
28 Oct-02 $295,093 $170,574 $213,218 

129 Nov-02 $292,980 $169,353 $211,691 
30 Dec-02 $290,849 $168,121 $210,151 
31 Jan-03 $288,700 $166,879 $208,599 
32 Feb-03 $286,534 $165,626 $207,033 
33 Mar-03 $284,349 $164,364 $205,455 
34 Apr-03 $282,146 $163,090 $203,863 
35 May-03 $279,925 $161,806 $202,258 
36 Jun-03 $277,685 $160,512 $200,640 
37 Jul-03 $275,427 $159,206 $199,008 
38 Aug-03 $273,150 $157,890 $197,363 
39 Sep-03 $270,854 $156,563 $195,704 
40 Oct-03 $268,538 $155,225 $194,031 
41 Nov-03 $266,204 $153,875 $192,344 
42 Dec-03 $263,850 $152,514 $190,643 
43 Jan-04 $261,476 $151,142 $188,928 
44 Feb-04 $259,083 $149,759 $187,198 
45 Mar-04 $256,669 $148,364 $185,455 
46 Apr-04 $254,236 $146,957 $183,696 
47 May-04 $251,782 $145,539 $181,923 
48 Jun-04 $249,308 $144,109 $180,136 

Page 1 



Appendix E 
Amortization Schedule 

Early Termination Schedule 

( 
Month Gravity Belt Thickener Mechanical Screening Fine Bubble Diffuser 

Upgrade Installation Retrofit (Note 1) 

49 Jul-04 $246,813 $142,666 $178,333 
50 Aug-04 $244,297 $141,212 $176,515 
51 Sep-04 $241,761 $139,746 $174,683 
52 Oct-04 $239,203 $138,268 $172,834 
53 Nov-04 $236,624 $136,777 $170,971 
54 Dec-04 $234,023 $135,274 $169,092 
55 Jan-05 $231,401 $133,758 $167,197 
56 Mar-05 $228,757 $132,229 $165,287 
57 Apr-05 $226,091 $130,688 $163,360 
58 May-05 $223,403 $129,134 $161,418 
59 Jun-05 $220,692 $127,568 $159,459 
60 Jul-05 $217,959 $125,988 $157,484 
61 Aug-05 $215,202 $124,394 $155,493 
62 Sep-05 $212,423 $122,788 $153,485 
63 Oct-05 $209,621 $121,168 $151,460 
64 Nov-05 $206,796 $119,535 $149,419 
65 Dec-05 $203,946 $117,888 $147,360 
66 Jan-06 $201,074 $116,228 $145,284 
67 Feb-06 $198,177 $114,553 $143,191 
68 Mar-06 $195,256 $112,865 $141,081 
69 Apr-06 $192,311 $111,162 $138,953 
70 May-06 $189,341 $109,446 $136,807 
71 Jun-06 $186,346 $107,715 $134,643 
72 Jul-06 $183,327 $105,969 $132,461 
73 Aug-06 $180,282 $104,209 $130,262 
74 Sep-06 $177,212 $102,435 $128,043 
75 Oct-06 $174,116 $100,645 $125,807 
76 Nov-06 $170,995 $98,841 $123,551 
77 Dec-06 $167,847 $97,022 $121,277 
78 Jan-07 $164,674 $95,187 $118,984 
79 Feb-07 $161,473 $93,337 $116,672 
80 Mar-07 $158,247 $91,472 $114,340 
81 Apr-07 $154,993 $89,591 $111,989 
82 May-07 $151,712 $87,695 $109,619 
83 Jun-07 $148,404 $85,783 $107,228 
84 Jul-07 $145,068 ~83,855 $104,818 
85 Aug-07 $141,705 $81,910 $102,388 
86 Sep-07 $138,313 $79,950 $99,937 
87 Oct-07 $134,893 $77,973 $97,466 
88 Nov-07 $131,445 $75,980 $94,975 
89 Dec-07 $127,968 $73,970 $92,463 
90 Jan-08 $124,462 $71,943 $89,929 
91 Feb-OB $120,927 $69,900 $87,375 
92 Mar-08 $117,362 $67,839 $84,799 
93 Apr-08 $113,768 $65,762 $82,202 
94 May-08 $110,143 $63,667 $79,583 
95 Jun-OB $106,489 $61,554 $76,943 
96 Jul-08 $102,804 $59,424 $74,280 
97 Aug-08 $99,088 $57,276 $71,595 

Page2 



Appendix E 
Amortization Schedule 

Early Termination Schedule 

Month Gravity Belt Thickener Mechanical Screening Fine Bubble Diffuser 
Upgrade Installation Retrofit (Note 1) 

98 Sep-08 $95,341 $55,111 $68,888 
99 Oct-08 $91,564 $52,927 $66,159 

100 Nov-08 $87,754 $50,725 $63,406 
101 Dec-08 $83,913 $48,505 $60,631 
102 Jan-09 $80,040 $46,266 $57,832 
103 Feb-09 $76,134 $44,008 $55,010 
104 Mar-09 $72,197 $41,732 $52,165 
105 Apr-09 $68,226 $39,437 $49,296 
106 May-09 $64,222 $37,122 $46,403 
107 Jun-09 $60,185 $34,789 $43,486 
108 Jul-09 $56,114 $32,436 $40,545 
109 Aug-09 $52,009 $30,063 $37,579 
110 Oct-09 $47,870 $27,671 $34,588 
111 Nov-09 $43,696 $25,258 $31,573 
112 Dec-09 $39,488 $22,826 $28,532 
113 Jan-1 O $35,245 $20,373 $25,466 
114 Feb-10 $30,966 $17,900 $22,374 
115 Mar-10 $26,652 $15,406 $19,257 
116 Apr-10 $22,301 $12,891 $16,114 
117 May-10 $17,915 $10,355 $12,944 
118 Jun-10 $13,492 $7,799 $9,748 
119 Jul-10 $9,032 $5,221 $6,526 
120 Aug-10 $4,535 $2,621 $3,276 

Note 1: The Fine Bubble Diffuser Amortization wlH be adjusted based upon the realized electrical savings 
from the retrofit. 

It is agreed that any funds not expended for the above designated improvement projects will be 
deposited in the Capital Expenditure Reserve Fund. 

Page3 



Amendment One 
to the 

Agreement for Operation, Maintenance, and Management Services 

THIS AMENDMENT to the Agreement is entered into on the __lQ_ day of Apr i 1 

2001, by and between: 

The City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma (hereinafter "CITY"); 

and 

U.S. Filter Operating Services, Inc., (hereinafter "USFOS"). 

WHEREAS, CITY and USFOS entered into, that certain Agreement for Operation, 
Maintenance, and Management Services dated the 5th of June, 2000; and, 

WHEREAS, the parties now desire to modify selective portions of the Agreement, all as 
set forth herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and terms contained herein, the 
parties agree as follows: 

1. Add a new paragraph immediately after Paragraph O of Section 3, which is to 
read as follows: 

P. Toxicity Reduction Evaluation (TRE) Plan 

(1) USFOS will provide CITY with the services of Ronald D. Cornmesser to 
assist CITY in the execution of a TRE plan. 

(2) USFOS shall assist CITY with the inspection and selection of Laboratory 
Service providers specifically provided by CITY to support the TRE. 

(3) USFOS will write the TRE plan 

( 4) USFOS will review data and produce quarterly reports to regulatory 
agencies. 

(5) USFOS will conduct Pre-Planning and Finalized TRE meetings with the 
Oklahoma Department of Environmental Quality (ODEQ). 

(6) USFOS anticipates a twelve (12) month schedule for performance ofTRE 
related services, commencing April 1, 2001. 

- I -



2. Add a new paragraph immediately after Paragraph H of Section 10, which is to 
read as follows: 

I. TREPlan. 

(1) Pay to USFOS as compensation for the services performed by 
USFOS pursuant to Paragraph P of Section 3, the hourly labor rate 
of $40.00 for services of Ron Cornmesser and for documented 
costs for expenses associated with execution of the TRE. In no 
event shall USFOS's compensation exceed $4,000 for labor or 
$3,500 for expenses without the CITY's prior written approval. 
CITY shall pay USFOS's invoice for TRE related services within 
fifteen (15) days of receipt. 

(2) Procurement and direct payment of the TRE related Laboratory 
Service provider(s). 

3. This Amendment shall take effect upon the date entered unless otherwise 
provided for herein. 

4. All terms of the Agreement not specifically amended or modified by this 
instrument shall remain unmodified and in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the CITY and USFOS have caused this Amendment to be 
duly executed as the day and year first above written. 

(SEAL) 

:~TY~AHOMA 
Mayor 

U.S. FILTER OPERATING SERVICES, INC. 
(USFOS) 

By: ;;?-~&1 
Vice President 

(Title) 

-2-























Agenda Item ___ 
May 30, 2024 

Prepared by Micah Siemers 
Engineering Department 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Approval of a design contract with CEC Corporation for engineering design for reconstruction 
of Yale Drive between Adams Boulevard and Frank Phillips Boulevard. 
 
Attachments: 

Engineering Fee Proposal 
Terms and Conditions 

 
II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

 
One of the priority projects planned for the 2020 General Obligation (GO) Bond is the Yale Drive 
Reconstruction project.  The project consists of reconstructing Yale Drive between Adams 
Boulevard and Frank Phillips Boulevard.  This is currently a concrete street with curb and gutter 
poured integral with the rest of the roadway.  The intent with this project is to retain the existing 
curb by saw cutting the concrete to create a salvaged concrete curb and gutter section and then 
rebuild the rest of the road with an asphalt pavement section. 
 
Staff has negotiated a contract with CEC Corporation for engineering design services on this 
project.  The scope of work includes a geotechnical investigation, preparation of 60% plans and 
engineer’s estimate, 90% plans and estimate, final plans and estimate, and bidding services.  We 
anticipate the final plans being submitted and ready for bidding within 100 days of notice to 
proceed.  This includes city staff review time for each phase of the plans.  The City of Bartlesville 
has contracted with CEC for multiple successful projects in the past few years including the 
Tuxedo Reconstruction project between Madison and Bison, the Price Road dowl joint retrofit 
project, and the Lee Lake parking lot improvements project.  
 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
The approved budget for this project is $850,000 which included design services.  CEC’s 
proposal of $53,855.00 is approximately 6.3% of the total budget which is within range of what 
is typical for engineering design services.  The only impact to the budget will be that funding set 
aside specifically for this project as part of the 2022 issuance of the 2020 G.O. Bond will be 
utilized for the design fees. 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends awarding the design contract for the Yale Drive Reconstruction project to 
CEC Corporation in the amount of $53,855.00. 

8.e.xi.



 

 
 

 

ENGINEERING CONTRACT FEE PROPOSAL 
 

FOR 

 

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE 
BARTLESVILLE, OK 

 
 
 
YALE DRIVE RECONSTRUCTION FROM SE FRANK PHILLIPS 
BLVD. TO SE ADAMS BLVD. 
 
 
BARTLESVILLE, OK 
MARCH 27,  2024 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 CEC Corporat ion  
1300 S.  Main Street  
Tulsa,  OK 74137 
Phone:  918.663.9401 
www.connectcec.com 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D42E1064-C9C9-4045-B9E8-78D6E30FF872



 

 
Yale Drive Reconstruction 

Bartlesville, OK 
March 27, 2024 

Page 2 of 5 

GENERAL SCOPE OF SERVICES  
 
CEC Corporation (hereinafter referred to as CEC) proposes to provide professional services as described 
herein to the City of Bartlesville (hereinafter referred to as CLIENT).  The following is a scope of services 
associated with performing geotechnical services and the engineering design for the reconstruction of Yale 
Drive between SE Frank Phillips Blvd. and SE Adams Blvd. in the City of Bartlesville. See the location 
map below.    
 

 
Project Location Map 

 
GEOTECHNICAL 
 

• See attached scope of services for CEC Geotechnical 
 
CD TASK – CONSTRUCTION DOCUMENT PHASE 
 

• Design for the reconstruction and curb replacement of Yale Drive from SE Frank Phillips Blvd. to 
SE Adams Blvd.  

• Submit digital pdf of the Preliminary Design Plans (60%) with construction cost estimate to the 
City of Bartlesville for review. 

• Perform one (1) site visit to verify curb replacement location and any possible conflicts. 
• Upon acceptance of the Preliminary Design Plans, CEC will begin preparation of the Final 

Design Plans (90%).   

PROJECT LOCATION 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D42E1064-C9C9-4045-B9E8-78D6E30FF872



 

 
Yale Drive Reconstruction 

Bartlesville, OK 
March 27, 2024 

Page 3 of 5 

• Submit digital pdf of the Final Design Review Plans with construction cost estimates to the City 
of Bartlesville for review. 

• Attend up to two (2) design review meetings with the City of Bartlesville. 
• Attend one (1) Public meeting, if required. 
• Prepare special technical specifications. 
• Upon acceptance of the Final Design Review Plans, CEC will provide final signed and sealed 

plans and specifications. 
 
All construction documents will meet state and local requirements. 

 
BD TASK – BIDDING PHASE 

• Address contractor’s questions and issue addenda, as needed 
• Attend pre-bid conference 
• Prepare bid tabulation 
• Assist in awarding the contract 

 
ITEMS NOT  INCLUDED IN THE SCOPE OF WORK 
 

• Topographic Survey 
• Boundary Survey 
• Study or design of possible alternate alignments 
• Legal descriptions or exhibits for required permanent or temporary easements 
• Any revisions, modifications or alterations for existing public or private utility 
• Detailed drainage design  
• Construction or right-of-way staking 
• Design or relocation efforts of conflicting utilities 
• Design of retaining walls, sheet piling, or any other structural design 
• An environmental study or report of any kind 
• Attend bid opening 
• Attend pre-construction meeting  
• Answer general construction questions 
• Review construction submittals 
• Attendance at Contractor’s periodic construction progress meetings 
• Review of Contractor’s monthly payment applications 
• On-site material testing and/or construction inspection 
• Prepare Record Drawings 

 
The CLIENT reserves the right to include the above items as a supplement to this proposal and CEC shall 
be paid for additional services through a separate agreement. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D42E1064-C9C9-4045-B9E8-78D6E30FF872



 

 
Yale Drive Reconstruction 

Bartlesville, OK 
March 27, 2024 

Page 4 of 5 

PROJECT SCHEDULE  
  
Following receipt of our Notice to Proceed, it is expected that CEC personnel can begin working on the 
project within two (2) weeks.   
 

Notice to Proceed Anticipated April 2024 
Preliminary Plan Submittal (60%) 30 Days following NTP 
Final Review Plan Submittal (90%) 30 Days following Review of 60% plans 
Final Signed Plan Submittal (100%) 15 Days following Review of 90%  plans 

 
 
ADDITIONAL SERVICES  
  
If there should be a change in project scope that leads to additional work or additional services are 
requested by CLIENT, we will negotiate a fee to provide the changes or additional services prior to 
commencing work. 
  
REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES  
  
The costs for project related reimbursable expenses listed below will be billed at direct cost and only with 
prior approval of CLIENT. 
 

• Fees paid for securing jurisdiction approval or permitting services 
• Reproduction expenses 
• Mailing expenses 

 
  

DocuSign Envelope ID: D42E1064-C9C9-4045-B9E8-78D6E30FF872



 

 
Yale Drive Reconstruction 

Bartlesville, OK 
March 27, 2024 

Page 5 of 5 

PROPOSED ENGINEERING CONTRACT FEE SUMMARY  

 
TOTAL Proposed Engineering Fee   $ 53,855.00     
 
COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES  
 

• The work provided in the proposed scope shall be performed on a lump sum basis with amounts 
not to be exceeded for each task, with the exception of the Construction Administration Phase. 
Hourly rates are as attached Oklahoma Municipal Rate Schedule 2024.  Rates are subject to change 
annually beginning in January 2025. 

• Invoicing shall be conducted on a monthly basis.  
• If this Agreement is terminated, CEC shall be paid for services performed to the effective date of 

termination. 
 
We sincerely appreciate the opportunity to submit this engineering contract fee proposal.  If the terms are 
agreeable, please sign and return a scanned copy/hard copy to me via email 
(shannon.hanks@connectcec.com) or at the address listed on the cover page.  If you have any questions or 
need additional information, please call Shannon Hanks or Jacob Campbell at 918.663.9401. 
  
Submitted for approval by:                               Accepted by: 
  
 ________________________________     By: __________________________ 
Erica Jones, P.E.  
Municipal Practice Leader 
CEC Corporation 
 Print:   __________________________         
Date:  March 27, 2024___________           Date:  __________________________        
  
                                                                     Title: __________________________    
      
 Notes:  
1. The fee shall be invoiced by CEC on a progressive basis either monthly or in accordance with formal design review submissions and monthly 
construction progress as directed by CLIENT.   

2. The fee presented is based on current hourly rates and is valid if contracted within 90 days from the date listed on the cover sheet.   

3. CEC reserves the right to revisit the proposal scope and fee should the project be placed on hold for more than 90 days. 

 

Geotechnical  (Lump Sum)                                                                                                $         6,500.00  

CD TASK – Construction Document Phase (Lump Sum)  
• Preliminary Design $ 27,963.00 
• Final Design $ 16,442.00 

BD TASK – Bidding Phase (Lump Sum)                                                                    $         2,950.00 

DocuSign Envelope ID: D42E1064-C9C9-4045-B9E8-78D6E30FF872



STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

These Standard Terms and Conditions, together with the attached proposal, make up the Agreement between the named Client and CEC Corporation (CEC). Before 
countersigning the Agreement or verbally authorizing work, be sure you read and understand its contents, which deal with the allocation of risks and duties between the 
Client and CEC.  
1. Scope.  The scope of work for the Engineering Services to be provided is specifically set forth in the attached proposal, submitted to Client by CEC.  If Client requests a change in the 
scope of the Services to be provided, CEC reserves the right to revise delivery schedules and make an equitable adjustment to the price.  Client acknowledges and agrees that CEC is 
providing the Services only and is not providing or participating in the provision of any product(s).  CEC will not be obligated to provide any services which are (a) outside of the scope 
defined in the applicable documentation; (b) outside its area of expertise; or (c) in violation of any applicable laws, codes or regulations. 
2. Standard of Care. CEC will perform the services consistent with and limited to the skill and care ordinarily used by qualified professionals performing the same
type of services at the same time under similar conditions in the same or similar locality. No other standards or warranties, expressed or implied apply. The Client will
notify CEC in writing of any deficiencies in the services within 15 days of their discovery but not later than 120 days after substantial completion of the services. The
Client will give CEC a reasonable opportunity to correct these deficiencies. 
3. Client’s Responsibilities. Client will provide permits, licenses, approvals and consents necessary for performance of the services, except those maintained by CEC
for its ordinary conduct of business. Client will provide CEC with all reasonably available documents that are related to the services, including information related to
hazardous materials or other environmental and geotechnical conditions at the site. Before CEC performs any subsurface activities, the Client will provide all available
information concerning underground services, conduits, pipes, tanks, other facilities and obstructions at the site. CEC will rely on the documents and information
provided by the Client. The Client grants CEC and its sub-consultant(s) permission to enter the site to perform the services. If the site is owned by others, the Client
represents and warrants that the owner has granted permission for CEC to enter the site and perform the services. Client will provide CEC with written verification of
site access permission upon request. 
4. Payment.  Client will compensate CEC for the services at its standard rates, and reimburse its expenses. CEC will submit periodic invoices that are due upon receipt, 
regardless of Client’s receipt of payments from third parties. The Client will notify CEC in writing within 10 days of any disputed item on the invoice and pay all
undisputed items within 30 days from invoice date. Overdue payments will accrue interest at the lower of 1½ percent per month or the maximum lawful rate. CEC may
terminate its services upon 10 days written notice any time payment is overdue on any account with the Client. Client agrees to pay for all services through termination, 
plus termination and collection costs, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses. CEC reserves the right to withhold final reports, letters of compliance, or any
other relevant document until all past due invoices have been paid. The attached price list shall be adjusted annually as of the date of execution for this agreement. 
5. Limits on CEC Responsibility. CEC will not be responsible for the acts or omissions of any others, except for its employees and sub-consultant(s). CEC will not supervise, direct or 
have control over any contractor’s work. CEC will not have authority over or responsibility for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction, for work site 
health or safety precautions or programs, or for any failure of contractors to comply with contracts, plans, specifications or laws. Client acknowledges that CEC does not warrant or 
guarantee the approval or receipt of any governmental permits or approvals, or the time to obtain such permits or approvals. 
6. Changed Conditions. The Client acknowledges that encountered conditions may differ considerably from those anticipated, that laws and regulations are subject to
change, and that regulatory requirements may be unpredictable. CEC will notify the Client if additional services, costs or time become necessary due to any of these
factors and the parties will negotiate appropriate changes to the scope of services, compensation and schedule. In the event of an emergency, CEC may take immediate
steps to protect public safety, health and the environment, and will be equitably compensated for its work by the Client. CEC will not be responsible for delays, failures 
to perform or extra costs due to weather, labor disputes, intervention by or inability to get approvals from public authorities, acts or omissions by the Client, or any other 
causes beyond CEC’s reasonable control. The Client will compensate CEC for any increase in its costs resulting from any of these factors. 
7. Documents and Information. All documents, data, calculations and work papers prepared or furnished by CEC are instruments of service and will remain CEC’s
property. Designs, reports, data and other work product delivered to or on behalf of the Client are for Client’s use only for the limited purposes disclosed to CEC and
subject to Client paying for the services to provide said work product. Any delayed use, use at another site, use on another project, or use by a third party will be at the
user’s sole risk and Client agrees to indemnify CEC against any liabilities resulting there from. Any technology, methodology, or technical information learned or
developed by CEC will remain its property. 
8. Confidentiality and Subpoenas. Information about this Agreement and CEC’s services and information provided by the Client about the services will be maintained in confidence 
and will not be disclosed to others without the Client’s consent, except as CEC believes is necessary to perform its services, comply with professional standards to protect public safety, 
health and the environment, and to comply with laws and court orders. CEC will make reasonable efforts to notify the Client prior to any disclosure except as necessary to perform its 
services. Information available to the public and unprotected information acquired from third parties will not be considered confidential. The Client will reimburse CEC to respond to 
any subpoena or governmental inquiry or audit related to the services at CEC’s standard rates then in effect. 
9. Insurance. During the work, CEC will maintain workers’ compensation, commercial general liability, automobile liability, and professional liability insurance in the
following minimum amounts: Workers compensation statutory amount; General liability $1,000,000 per occurrence, $2,000,000 aggregate; Auto liability $1,000,000
per accident; Professional liability $2,000,000 aggregate.  CEC will furnish certificates of insurance upon request. CEC will purchase project specific insurance at
Client request if it is commercially available and Client pays the premium and the costs to obtain the additional coverage. 
10. Limitation of Liability. To the fullest extent permitted by law and notwithstanding anything else in this Agreement to the contrary, the aggregate liability of CEC
and its affiliates and sub-consultants and their employees, officers, and directors for all claims arising out of this Agreement or the services is limited to the
compensation received by CEC under this agreement or $25,000 whichever is greater. This limitation applies to all injuries, damages, claims, losses, expenses and
defense costs, whether based in contract, negligence, strict liability, statutory, trespass, indemnity, misrepresentation or any other theory of liability. No claim will be
valid if presented to CEC more than ten (10) years after substantial completion of the services or, if shorter, the applicable statute of limitations period. CEC will not be
liable for lost profits, loss of use of property, diminution of value of property or goods, delays, cost to obtain replacement samples, or other special, indirect, incidental,
consequential, punitive, exemplary or multiple damages. CEC shall not be liable in any event for any special or consequential damages suffered by the client arising out
of the services hereunder.  Special or consequential damages as used herein shall include, but not be limited to, loss of capital, loss of product, loss of use on any
system, or other property, or any other indirect, special or consequential damage, whether arising in contract, tort (including negligence), warranty or strict liability. 
11. Disputes. All disputes between the Client and CEC shall be subject to non-binding mediation. Either party may demand mediation by serving written notice stating
the essential nature of the dispute, the amount of time or money claimed, and requiring the matter be mediated within forty-five days of service of notice. The mediation
shall be administered by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with their most recent Construction Mediation Rules, or by such other person or
organization as the parties may agree on. No action or suit may be commenced unless mediation has occurred but did not resolve the dispute, or unless a statute of
limitation period would expire if suit were not filed prior to such forty-five days after service of notice. 
12. Assignment.  Client may not assign the Agreement between CEC and Client without the prior written consent of CEC. 
13. Delivery/Force Majeure.  CEC shall have no liability for delays or any other breach of its obligations resulting from an Act of God, war, riot, explosion, accident, 
act of government, work stoppage, default of subcontractor or supplier of materials, or any other cause beyond the reasonable control of CEC. 
14. Other.  This Agreement shall be governed by Oklahoma law. This Agreement becomes effective when fully executed by all parties and will remain in effect as
defined by the requirements of the work.  The above terms and conditions regarding Limitation of Liability and Indemnification shall survive the completion of the
services under this Agreement and the termination of the contract for any cause. Any amendment to this Agreement must be in writing signed by all parties. This
Agreement supersedes any contract terms, purchase orders or other documents issued by the Client. If these Terms and Conditions have been provided to you, CEC
must receive this fully executed document or written authorization to commence services. The provisions of this Agreement are severable; if any provision is
unenforceable, it shall be appropriately limited and given effect to the extent that it is enforceable. Headings in these Terms and Conditions are for convenience only
and do not form a part of the agreement. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to give any rights or benefits to third parties. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: BEDA840E-FEC9-4B7A-ACB8-462D4882D46D



Agenda Item ___ 
May 29, 2024 

Prepared by Jason Muninger. CFO/City Clerk 
Accounting and Finance 

 
 
 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 
 
Agreement with CivicPlus for Codification and ordinance bank subscription, and 
supplementation services. 
 
Attachments: 

 
Agreement with CivicPlus 
  

 
II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

 
Previously we were billed for every individual item and supplement made to our code 
book.  This moves us to a subscription based service, it is prorated so the first year will 
be a discounted. The first full year will be $3,625.19. 
 
  

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
The City has spent on average of $5,000 a year for services with Civic Plus, this 
agreement locks us into $3,625.19 annually with a 5% annual increase. Estimating 
budgetary impact being a savings of roughly $,1400 annually. 
 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 

Staff recommends approval of the agreement.  
 
 

 8.e.xii.



CivicPlus
302 South 4th St. Suite 500
Manhattan, KS 66502
US

 
 

 
 
Quote #: Q-58627-1
Date: 11/22/2023 11:10 AM
Customer: BARTLESVILLE,

OKLAHOMA
 

Product Name DESCRIPTION QTY TOTAL

Full-Service Supplementation
Subscription

Full-Service Supplementation Subscription 1.00 USD 3,121.19

Code and Supp Year 1 Annual Fee
Discount

Year 1 Annual Fee Discount 1.00 USD -780.30

Custom OrdBank Subscription OrdBank Conversion - All Ordinances 1.00 USD 504.00

Printed Copies and Freight Included –
up to [#] copies

Printed Copies and Freight Included 5.00 USD 0.00

Annual Print Supplementation Service
Included

Print Supplementation will begin with the
ordinances received from the municipality
on an annual basis.

1.00 USD 0.00

Annual Recurring Supplement Services - Initial Term USD 2,844.89
Annual Recurring Supplement Services - (Subject to Uplift) USD 3,625.19

 

 
1.    This Statement of Work (“SOW”) is between Bartlesville Oklahoma (“Customer”) and CivicPlus, LLC (“CivicPlus”), the
acquirer and sole owner of Municode, LLC f/k/a Municipal Code Corporation, and incorporates and is subject to the terms
and conditions located at Addendum 1 attached to this SOW.
 
2.    This SOW shall begin on 6/1/2024 (“Effective Date”) and all the services provided to Customer listed in the above line
items (the “Services”) shall align to renew annually on each anniversary of the Effective Date (“Renewal Date”). Unless
terminated, Customer shall be invoiced for the Annual Recurring Services on each Renewal Date of each calendar year
subject to 5% annual increase. Customer will pay all invoices within 30 days of the date of such invoice.

V. PD 06.01.2015-0048
Page 1 of 4



Acceptance
 
By signing below, the parties are agreeing to be bound by the covenants and obligations specified in this SOW.  For
CivicPlus Billing Information, please visit https://www.civicplus.com/verify/.
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this SOW to be executed by their duly authorized representatives as of
the dates below.
 
 
 
 
Client
 

CivicPlus
 

By:
 
 
___________________________________

By:

 
Name:
 
___________________________________

 
Name:
 
Amy Vikander                                               

 
Title:
 
___________________________________

 
Title:
 
Senior Vice President of Customer Success

 
Date:
___________________________________

 
Date:
___________________________________

V. PD 06.01.2015-0048
Page 2 of 4

https://www.civicplus.com/verify/


Addendum 1
 
This agreement (“Agreement”) is explicitly agreed to by the
Customer listed on the Statement of Work. All terms used in this
Agreement that are not otherwise defined shall have the definition
ascribed to it in the Statement of Work.
 
1. Scope of Services. The Services provided to Customer under
this Agreement are set forth in the CivicPlus Statement of Work
signed by the parties (the “SOW”). Customer may purchase
additional services for additional cost at any time upon mutual
written consent of the Parties, including but not limited to updating
the frequency of Supplement updates, additional labor required
because of delays, errors or omissions on the part of Customer.
 
2. Limitations of Services. Annual Recurring Supplement Service
does NOT include:
 
•    Additional copies, reprints, binders, and tab orders;
•    Documents drafted in InDesign or that contain form-based code
requirements, are subject to additional editorial fees;
•    Documents that contain: multiple tables, graphics, unique
formatting requirements, or any other form-based code
requirements;
•    Legal work, creation of fee schedules, gender-neutral review/
implementation, external linking;
•    Codifying complete replacement of complex subject matter such
as, but not limited to, Zoning (or equivalent). This work is subject to
a one-time editorial conversion fee and an increase in the annual
supplement rate and online hosting fee(s). Quote provided upon
receipt of material;
•    Codifying a newly adopted full Chapter/Title/Appendix. This may
be subject to a one-time additional editorial fee and an increase in
the annual supplement rate and online hosting fee(s). Material to
be reviewed upon receipt;
•    Codifying a newly adopted term change legislation. This may
be subject to a one-time additional editorial fee. Material to be
reviewed upon receipt;
•    Adding entirely new material such as but not limited to new
Zoning chapters will be covered in your current annual cost.
However, the addition will lead to an increase in your annual cost
upon your next renewal. We will work with you to provide a revised
annual cost.
•    The addition of Manuals, Policies, Procedures, Comprehensive
Plans, Land Use, Unified Codes, Zoning (or equivalent). Quotation
upon request; and
•    Online Code hosting and online features, this is listed
separately.
 
For services outside the scope of the Annual Recurring
Supplement Services, a per page rate of $23 will be applied.
 
3. Each document for processing should be its own individual
file, named by its ordinance number. Customer should send in all
documents to CivicPlus as MS WORD versions or a convertible
PDF version.

 

4. Term and Termination. This Agreement shall remain in full force
and effect for an initial period of one year commencing on the
Effective Date (“Initial Term”), at the end of the Initial Term, this
Agreement shall automatically renew for additional one-year terms
(each a “Renewal Term”). If either Party does not intend to renew
this Agreement, they shall provide sixty days prior notice to the end
of the then-current term. Either party may terminate this Agreement
for cause in the event the other party materially breaches any term
of this Agreement and does not substantially cure such breach
within thirty days after receiving notice of such breach. A delinquent
Customer account remaining past due for longer than 90 days
is a material breach by Customer and is grounds for CivicPlus
termination.
 
5. Compensation. Unless otherwise stated in an SOW signed by
the Customer, the Customer shall pay CivicPlus for the Services
annually at the start of each Renewal Term, within 30 days of the
date an invoice is sent.
 
6. Integration. This Agreement sets forth the entire agreement
between and among the parties with respect to the Services. This
Agreement supersedes all prior written or oral agreements between
the parties or their predecessors-in-interest with respect to all or
any part of the subject matter hereof.
 
7. Limitation of Liability. CivicPlus’ liability arising out of or related
to this Agreement, or any associated SOW, will not exceed five
times the amounts paid by Customer for the Services in the year
prior to such claim of liability. In no event will CivicPlus be liable
to Customer for any consequential, indirect, special, incidental,
or punitive damages arising out of or related to this Agreement.
If applicable law limits the application of the provisions of this
Limitation of Liability section, CivicPlus’ liability will be limited to the
maximum extent permissible.
 
8. Ownership. Customer shall own all right, title, and interest in and
to the code created under this Agreement. Customer is responsible
for providing all necessary and correct documentation, materials
and communication in a timely manner in order to enable CivicPlus
to perform the Services and acknowledges CivicPlus cannot begin
performance of the Services until all necessary documentation,
materials and communication is received.
 
9. Customer acknowledges that any legal analysis provided by
CivicPlus is provided to Customer for their use and direction.
However, Customer agrees the Services provided for herein do
not review legal codes for legal sufficiency, draw legal conclusions,
provide legal advice, opinions or recommendations about
Customer’s legal rights, remedies, defenses, options, selection of
forms, or strategies, or apply the law to the facts of any particular
situation or establish an attorney-Customer relationship. CivicPlus
is not a law firm and may not perform services performed by an
attorney, and the Services contemplated herein do not constitute a
substitute for the advice or services of an attorney.
 
10. In the event either party is unable to perform its obligations
under the terms of this Agreement because of acts of God, strikes,
damage or other causes reasonably beyond its control, such
party shall not be liable for damages to the other for any damages
resulting from such failure to perform or otherwise from such
causes.

 

V. PD 06.01.2015-0048
Page 3 of 4



Contact Information
 
 
 
 

Organization                                                                                                   URL
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Street Address
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Address 2
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
City                                                                            State                              Postal Code
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
CivicPlus provides telephone support for all trained clients from 7am –7pm Central Time, Monday-Friday (excluding holidays).
Emergency Support is provided on a 24/7/365 basis for representatives named by the Client.  Client is responsible for
ensuring CivicPlus has current updates.
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Emergency Contact & Mobile Phone
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Emergency Contact & Mobile Phone
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Emergency Contact & Mobile Phone
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Billing Contact                                                                                             E-Mail
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Phone                                                                       Ext.                               Fax
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Billing Address
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Address 2
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
City                                                                          State                              Postal Code
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Tax ID #                                                                                                         Sales Tax Exempt #
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Billing Terms                                                                                                  Account Rep
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Info Required on Invoice (PO or Job #)
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Are you utilizing any external funding for your project (ex. FEMA, CARES):                                 Y  [             ]   or   N  [             ]
 
Please list all external sources: _______________________________________________________________________________________________
 
Contract Contact                                                                                          Email
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Phone                                                                      Ext.                                 Fax
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Project Contact                                                                                             Email
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
Phone                                                                      Ext.                                 Fax
________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

V. PD 06.01.2015-0048
Page 4 of 4



8.e.xiii.















 8.e.xiv.







Agenda Item _8.e.xv. 
May 20, 2024 

Prepared  by Mike Bailey, City Manager 
Administration 

 
 
 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 
 

Discussion and possible action on an MOU between the City and IAFF Local 200 to provide paid 
administrative leave to Johnny Kelley, Bartlesville Fire Fighter and Barnsdall Mayor, so that he  may  
provide full time assistance to Barnsdall to assist in its recovery effort from the May 6, 2024 
tornado. 

 
Attachments: 

MOU 
 
II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

 
On May 6, 2024, a tornado struck Barnsdall, OK and eventually small areas of Bartlesville, OK. 
We were fortunate that the storm weakened significantly before it struck within our city limits. 
Barnsdall fared far worse, and is in the midst of a significant clean up effort. I immediately  
reached out to Barnsdall to offer our assistance once our own clean-up was complete. 
To this point, we've only received a single request to aid them. The Barnsdall City Attorney, 
John Heskett, asked me if it would be possible to provide paid leave to Johnny Kelley from 
the Bartlesville Fire Department. Johnny Kelley serves as the Mayor of Barnsdall and has 
been working full time as part of their recovery effort. Currently, he is having to pay to have 
his shift covered as per standard policy/contract. I replied that I would grant it if it was at all 
possible. Unfortunately, our agreement with IAFF Local 200 does not include provisions for 
leave of this sort, so I began to work with City staff and the union to draft an MOU. 
The results of these discussions attached in the form of an MOU that will require Council 
approval. I believe that this situation is unique enough to not set a precedent and that the situation 
in Barnsdall is dire enough to warrant this sort of assistance. 
Please schedule this for presentation and approval at the next City Council meeting. 

' 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 

None 
 
IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

 
Approved the attached MOU. 



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 

THIS MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING ("MOU") is entered in by and 
between the CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, hereinafter referred to as 
"CITY", and the BARTLESVILLE PROFESSIONAL FIREFIGHTERS, LOCAL 200, 
INTERNATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF FIREFIGHTERS, hereinafter referred to 
as "LOCAL", for the term hereinafter defined; WITNESSETH: 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Bartlesville has offered assistance to 

the City of Barnsdall,- Oklahoma ("Barnsdall") to aid in that city's 
recovery from the May 6, 2024 tornado, and 

WHEREAS, Barnsdall' s only request has been to assist their 
Mayor, Johnny Kelley, who is employed as a Bartlesville Firefighter, 
to better respond to this emergency without incurring a large 
personal financial obligation; and 

WHEREAS, the City of Bartlesville is willing to provide Johnny 
Kelley with paid administrative leave during the period of this 
recovery; and 

WHEREAS, the current agreement between the City and the Local 
does not contain any provisions for leaves of this nature; and 

WHEREAS, the City and the Local wish to create an MOU to 
assist Johnny Kelley and the City of Barnsdall with their request. 

NOW THEREFORE, pursuant to the agreement of the parties, it 
is hereby agreed as follows: 

1. Johnny Kelley shall be granted paid administrative leave 
from the Bartlesville Fire Department so that he may assist 
Barnsdall during its disaster recovery effort. 

2. The term of this MOU shall be retroactive to the date of 
the disaster, May 6, 2024, and shall continue for a period of 
thirty (30) days thereafter. 

3. The paid administrative leave provided 
cover all of Johnny Kelley's shifts scheduled 
hereof. 

for herein shall 
during the  term 

4. Johnny Kelley shall not be required to obtain coverage for 
any of these shifts. 

5. The term of this MOU may be extended by a maximum of three 
(3) additional terms of thirty (30) days upon determination by the 



City Manager that Johnny Kelley is still needed in a full 
time capacity for the Barnsdall recovery effort. 

6. Any extension of term of this MOU beyond what is provided 
herein shall require the consent of both parties. 

7. If at any time Johnny Kelley's participation in the 
Barnsdall recovery effort allows him to return to his normal shifts 
at the Bartlesville Fire Department, he shall do so without delay. 

8. All vacation taken for the purpose of assisting with the 
Barnsdall recovery effort from the date of the Barnsdall tornado 
until the effective date of this agreement shall be returned to 
Johnny Kelley's vacation bank. 

APPROVED by the parties hereto this   day of May, 2024. 
 

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
 
 

By:_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 

Dale Copeland, 
Mayor 

 
BARTLESVILLE PROFESSIONAL 
FIREFIGHTERS LOCAL 200 

 
 

By:_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 
Josiah Rovenstine, 
President 



8.e.xvi.







 8.e.xvii.









Agenda Item 8.e.xviii.



Agenda Item 8.e.xix.







Agenda Item 8.e.xix.





Agenda Item 8.f.i.







Agenda Item ___ 
Mayl 24, 2024 

Prepared by Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 
Accounting and Finance 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Receipt of Interim Financials for the ten months ending April 30, 2024.  
 
Attachments: 

Interim Financials for April 30, 2024 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
Staff has prepared the condensed Interim Financial Statements for April 2024; these should 
provide sufficient information for the City Council to perform its fiduciary responsibility. All 
supplementary, detailed information is available for the Council’s use at any time upon request. 
All information is subject to change pending audit. 
 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
 N/A 

 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends the approval the Interim Financials for April 30, 2024. 

 8.g.i.



Ward 1 - Dale Copeland, Mayor
Ward 2 - Loren Roszel
Ward 3 - Jim Curd, Vice Mayor
Ward 4 - Vacant
Ward 5 - Trevor Dorsey

Jason Muninger
Finance Director

Alicia Shelton
Accountant

Mike Bailey

Prepared by:

REPORT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For The Ten Months Ended April 30, 2024

CITY COUNCIL

City Manager



TABLE OF CONTENTS

HIGHLIGHTS

MAJOR FUNDS:
GENERAL FUND
WASTEWATER OPERATING/BMA WASTEWATER FUNDS
WATER OPERATING/BMA WATER FUNDS
SANITATION

OTHER FUNDS:
REVENUE BUDGET STATUS
EXPENDITURE BUDGET STATUS
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

EXPLANATORY MEMO



FINANCIAL STATEMENT REVENUE HIGHLIGHTS
(Dashed line represents average percent of year for 4 preceding fiscal years)

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

80.0%
82.0%
84.0%
86.0%
88.0%
90.0%
92.0%
94.0%
96.0%

 -
 2,000,000
 4,000,000
 6,000,000
 8,000,000

 10,000,000
 12,000,000
 14,000,000
 16,000,000

FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

GENERAL FUND SALES TAX

YTD

% OF YR

80.0%

82.0%

84.0%

86.0%

88.0%

90.0%

92.0%

 -

 1,000,000

 2,000,000

 3,000,000

 4,000,000

 5,000,000

 6,000,000

FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

WASTEWATER FEES

YTD

% OF YR

0.0%

20.0%

40.0%

60.0%

80.0%

100.0%

 -

 2,000,000

 4,000,000

 6,000,000

 8,000,000

 10,000,000

FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

WATER FEES

YTD

% OF YR

80.0%
81.0%
82.0%
83.0%
84.0%
85.0%
86.0%
87.0%
88.0%

 -

 1,000,000

 2,000,000

 3,000,000

 4,000,000

 5,000,000

 6,000,000

FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024

SANITATION FEES

YTD

% OF YR



Page 4

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Sales Tax 17,643,955$  14,703,296$  15,104,580$  -$                   15,104,580$  85.6% 15,099,679$  83.4%
Use Tax 2,500,000       2,083,333       4,094,742       -                     4,094,742       163.8% 770,015          49.7%
Gross Receipt Tax 1,582,000       1,318,333       1,339,289       -                     1,339,289       84.7% 1,391,364       85.5%
Licenses and Permits 256,700          213,917          240,357          -                     240,357          93.6% 237,857          92.4%
Intergovernmental 700,400          583,667          600,253          -                     600,253          85.7% 603,364          84.7%
Charges for Services 478,800          399,000          498,102          -                     498,102          104.0% 527,796          88.2%
Court Costs 160,000          133,333          165,843          -                     165,843          103.7% 158,186          83.1%
Police/Traffic Fines 460,000          383,333          303,014          -                     303,014          65.9% 336,542          83.0%
Parking Fines 68,200            56,833            43,375            -                     43,375            63.6% 41,450            86.5%
Other Fines 80,400            67,000            54,272            -                     54,272            67.5% 58,006            82.6%
Investment Income 150,000          125,000          2,500,647       -                     2,500,647       1667.1% 736,805          76.8%
Miscellaneous Income 910,700          758,917          999,195          -                     999,195          109.7% 458,866          60.9%
Transfers In 6,561,228       5,467,690       5,467,692       -                     5,467,692       83.3% 7,642,453       83.3%

Total 31,552,383$  26,293,652$  31,411,361$  -$                   31,411,361$  99.6% 28,062,383$  81.4%

Expenditures:
General Government 9,151,305$     7,626,088$     6,748,432$     19,976$        6,768,408$     74.0% 6,658,444$     81.2%
Public Safety 16,925,651     14,104,709     13,874,639     92,555          13,967,194     82.5% 12,768,297     82.7%
Street 2,103,511       1,752,926       1,490,567       9,914             1,500,481       71.3% 1,500,383       83.4%
Culture and Recreation 3,790,180       3,158,483       2,812,624       792                2,813,416       74.2% 2,663,614       81.8%
Transfers Out 4,189,369       3,491,141       3,490,925       -                     3,490,925       83.3% 3,347,597       83.5%
Reserves 1,194,800       995,667          -                       -                     -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 37,354,816$  31,129,014$  28,417,187$  123,237$      28,540,424$  76.4% 26,938,335$  82.3%

Changes in Fund Balance:

Fund Balance 7/1 6,559,526$     

Net Revenue (Expense) 2,994,174       

Ending Fund Balance 9,553,700$    

83% of Year Lapsed

2023-24 Fiscal Year 2022-23 Fiscal Year

GENERAL FUND
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 5

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Wastewater Fees 6,007,344$     5,006,120$     5,092,370$  -$                   5,092,370$     84.8% 4,919,441$     98.7%
Investment Income -                        -                        -                      -                      -                        N.A. 27,077             ######
Debt Proceeds -                        -                        -                      -                      -                        N.A. -                        N.A.
Miscellaneous 30,000             25,000             135,926        -                      135,926          453.1% 176,183          865.5%

Total 6,037,344$    5,031,120$    5,228,296$  -$                   5,228,296$    86.6% 5,122,701$    102.3%

Expenditures:
Wastewater Plant 2,965,385$     2,471,154$     2,466,710$  467,953$      2,934,663$     99.0% 2,676,892$     100.3%
Wastewater Maint 861,009          717,508          685,850        3,072             688,922          80.0% 591,499          90.5%
BMA Expenses 27,735             23,113             27,730          -                      27,730             100.0% 27,870             N.A.
Transfers Out 1,646,975       1,372,479       1,372,481     -                      1,372,481       83.3% 1,368,814       95.0%
Reserves 88,790             73,992             -                      -                      -                        0.0% -                        N.A.

Total 5,589,894$    4,658,246$    4,552,771$  471,025$      5,023,796$    89.9% 4,665,074$    98.0%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 2,904,457$  

Net Revenue (Expense) 675,525        

Ending Fund Balance 3,579,982$  

83% of Year Lapsed

2023-24 Fiscal Year 2022-23 Fiscal Year

COMBINED WASTEWATER OPERATING & BMA WASTEWATER FUNDS
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 6

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Water Fees 11,091,140$  9,242,617$     8,760,034$     -$                    8,760,034$     79.0% 9,806,233$     93.3%
Investment Income -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       N.A. 44,235            792.5%
Debt Proceeds -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       N.A. -                       N.A.
Miscellaneous -                       -                       749,416          -                       749,416          N.A. 2,683               265.6%

Total 11,091,140$  9,242,617$    9,509,450$    -$                    9,509,450$    85.7% 9,853,151$    93.7%

Expenditures:
Water Plant 3,930,908$     3,275,757$     2,720,170$     110,142$       2,830,312$     72.0% 2,991,028$     107.6%
Water Administration 403,611          336,343          330,619          3,858              334,477          82.9% 328,786          97.4%
Water Distribution 2,251,525       1,876,271       1,462,773       2,271              1,465,044       65.1% 1,453,109       107.7%
BMA Expenses 3,826,024       3,188,353       2,899,278       (119,080)        2,780,198       72.7% 5,284,447       177.2%
Transfers Out 2,585,280       2,154,400       2,154,402       -                       2,154,402       83.3% 2,141,154       95.6%
Reserves 294,520          245,433          -                       -                       -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 13,291,868$  11,076,557$  9,567,242$    (2,809)$          9,564,433$    72.0% 12,198,524$  125.9%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 7,243,671$     

Net Revenue (Expense) (57,792)           

Ending Fund Balance 7,185,879$    

83% of Year Lapsed

2023-24 Fiscal Year 2022-23 Fiscal Year

COMBINED WATER OPERATING & BMA WATER FUNDS
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 7

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Collection Fees 6,055,185$     5,045,988$     5,149,448$       -$                   5,149,448$     85.0% 4,805,438$     83.1%
Investment Income -                       -                       -                          -                     -                       N.A. -                       N.A.
Miscellaneous 173,239          45,669            114,986             -                     114,986          66.4% 136,961          82.3%
Transfers In -                       -                       -                          -                     -                       N.A. -                       N.A.

Total 6,228,424$    5,091,657$    5,264,434$       -$                   5,264,434$    84.5% 4,942,399$    83.1%

Expenditures:
Sanitation 3,564,131$     2,970,109$     2,666,187$       45,780$        2,711,967$     76.1% 2,851,538$     87.3%
Transfers Out 2,649,730       2,208,108       2,208,110         -                     2,208,110       83.3% 2,206,206       83.3%
Reserves 134,997          112,498          -                          -                     -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 6,348,858$    5,290,715$    4,874,297$       45,780$        4,920,077$    77.5% 5,057,744$    85.5%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 322,482$          

Net Revenue (Expense) 390,137             

Ending Fund Balance 712,619$          

83% of Year Lapsed

2023-24 Fiscal Year 2022-23 Fiscal Year

SANITATION FUND
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



 Budget  Actuals  Percent of Budget 
Special Revenue Funds:

Economic Development Fund 1,902,083     1,589,695    84%
E-911 Fund 1,095,403     976,770       89%
Special Library Fund 123,970        184,630       149%
Special Museum Fund -                     45,989          N/A
Municipal Airport Fund -                     75,583          N/A
Harshfield Library Donation Fund -                     -                    N/A
Restricted Revenue Fund 55,000          85,235          155%
Golf Course Memorial Fund 25,000          28,100          112%
CDBG-COVID -                     -                    N/A
ARPA -                     -                    N/A
Justice Assistance Grant Fund -                     7,185            N/A
Neighborhood Park Fund -                     -                    N/A
Cemetery Care Fund 2,600            1,972            76%

Debt Service Fund 4,818,069     4,770,066    99%

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 3,603,280     3,284,056    91%
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                     -                    N/A
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund -                     35,200          N/A
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund -                     -                    N/A
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 47,880          47,880          100%
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund -                     4,816            N/A
Community Development Block Grant Fund -                     219,087       N/A
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2009 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2012 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2014 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2014B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2015 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2017 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2018A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2018B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2018C G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2019A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2019B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2021A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2022 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2023 G.O. Bond Fund 6,900,000     6,900,000    100%

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 663,654        586,862       88%
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 72,245          60,205          83%
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 94,205          78,505          83%
Municipal Airport Operating 585,975        628,606       107%

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 93,460          85,550          92%
Health Insurance Fund 3,757,814     4,613,172    123%
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 75,000          65,755          88%
Stabilization Reserve Fund 1,291,774     1,076,482    83%
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 6,998,023     6,599,723    94%

Mausoleum Trust Fund -                     -                    N/A

83% of Year Lapsed

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Revenue Budget Report - Budget Basis



 Budget  Actuals  Percent of Budget 

Special Revenue Funds:
Economic Development Fund 5,416,131     1,872,793    35%
E-911 Fund 1,226,020     933,663        76%
Special Library Fund 220,970        172,169        78%
Special Museum Fund 51,500           25,830          50%
Municipal Airport Fund 28,508           435               2%
Harshfield Library Donation Fund 382,568        18,228          5%
Restricted Revenue Fund 350,441        113,218        32%
Golf Course Memorial Fund 65,940           54,414          83%
CDBG-COVID -                     -                     N/A
ARPA 1,000,000     833,334        83%
Justice Assistance Grant Fund 7,619             -                     0%
Neighborhood Park Fund 29,599           -                     0%
Cemetery Care Fund 12,303           200               2%

Debt Service Fund 4,820,069     4,748,269    99%

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 6,164,456     1,435,980    23%
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                     -                     N/A
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund 27,542           (2,160)           -8%
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund 554,842        23,508          4%
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 170,362        -                     0%
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund 55,577           7,447            13%
Community Development Block Grant Fund -                     (520)              N/A
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2009 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2012 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2014 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2014B G.O. Bond Fund 3,885             -                     0%
2015 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2017 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2018A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2018B G.O. Bond Fund 28,659           -                     0%
2018C G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2019A G.O. Bond Fund 326,564        -                     0%
2019B G.O. Bond Fund 341,460        -                     0%
2021A G.O. Bond Fund 521,244        -                     0%
2022 G.O. Bond Fund 4,880,960     1,979,994    41%
2023 G.O. Bond Fund 6,900,000     168,034        2%

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 665,922        559,398        84%
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 79,562           39,671          50%
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 94,230           53,004          56%
Municipal Airport Operating 670,036        544,011        81%

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 430,000        141,095        33%
Health Insurance Fund 4,987,780     4,577,531    92%
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 443,559        55,590          13%
Stabilization Reserve Fund 11,933,651   -                     0%
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 12,390,050   3,379,524    27%

Mausoleum Trust Fund 7,791             -                     0%

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Expenditure Budget Report - Budget Basis

83% of Year Lapsed



 Beginning of Year  Change  Current 

Special Revenue Funds:
Economic Development Fund 3,705,288                 (182,619)      3,522,669     
E-911 Fund 214,997                    43,222          258,219        
Special Library Fund 290,970                    11,521          302,491        
Special Museum Fund 139,059                    20,159          159,218        
Municipal Airport Fund 80,702                       47,910          128,612        
Harshfield Library Donation Fund 463,144                    (10,506)         452,638        
Restricted Revenue Fund 409,319                    (27,526)         381,793        
Golf Course Memorial Fund 45,891                       (23,671)         22,220           
CDBG-COVID -                                 -                     -                     
ARPA 1,762,952                 (833,334)      929,618        
Justice Assistance Grant Fund 7,619                         7,185            14,804           
Neighborhood Park Fund 60,222                       -                     60,222           
Cemetery Care Fund 10,055                       1,772            11,827           

Debt Service Fund 3,726,110                 21,797          3,747,907     

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 3,737,112                 1,807,944    5,545,056     
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                                 -                     -                     
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund 162,540                    (39,799)         122,741        
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund 840,690                    (226,154)      614,536        
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 125,618                    47,880          173,498        
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund 57,026                       (2,631)           54,395           
Community Development Block Grant Fund -                                 211,387        211,387        
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2009 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2012 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2014 G.O. Bond Fund 7,686                         -                     7,686             
2014B G.O. Bond Fund 3,886                         -                     3,886             
2015 G.O. Bond Fund 12,444                       -                     12,444           
2017 G.O. Bond Fund 56,485                       -                     56,485           
2018A G.O. Bond Fund 52,547                       -                     52,547           
2018B G.O. Bond Fund 46,204                       -                     46,204           
2018C G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2019A G.O. Bond Fund 327,431                    -                     327,431        
2019B G.O. Bond Fund 397,717                    (35,219)         362,498        
2021A G.O. Bond Fund 526,494                    -                     526,494        
2022A G.O. Bond Fund 6,765,084                 (3,370,367)   3,394,717     
2023 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 6,850,251    6,850,251     

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 19,376                       43,788          63,164           
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 21,830                       42,634          64,464           
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 23,562                       44,954          68,516           
Municipal Airport Operating 309,066                    89,628          398,694        

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 196,884                    (49,975)         146,909        
Health Insurance Fund 45,564                       35,741          81,305           
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 509,867                    (27,959)         481,908        
Stabilization Reserve Fund 11,933,651               1,076,482    13,010,133   
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 17,068,585               4,230,092    21,298,677   

Mausoleum Trust Fund 8,164                         -                     8,164             

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Fund Balance Report - Modified Cash Basis

83% of Year Lapsed



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
FROM: Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 
 
SUBJECT: Financial Statement Explanatory Information 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
The purpose of this memo is to provide some insight as to the construction of the attached financial 
statements and to provide some guidance as to their use. 
 
The format of the attached financial statements is intended to highlight our most important revenue 
sources, provide sufficient detail on major operating funds, and provide a high level overview of all other 
funds. The level of detail presented is sufficient to assist the City Council in conducting their fiduciary 
obligations to the City without creating a voluminous document that made the execution of that duty 
more difficult. 
 
This document provides three different types of analyses for the Council’s use. The first is an analysis 
of revenue vs budgeted expectations. This allows the Council to see how the City’s revenues are 
performing and to have a better idea if operational adjustments are necessary.  
 
The second analysis compares expenditures to budget. This allows the Council to ensure that the 
budgetary plan that was set out for the City is being followed and that Staff is making the necessary 
modifications along the way.  
 
The final analysis shows the fund balance for each fund of the City. This is essentially the “cash” balance 
for most funds. However, some funds include short term receivables and payables depending on the 
nature of their operation. With very few exceptions, all funds must maintain positive fund balance by 
law. Any exceptions will be noted where they occur. 
 
These analyses are presented in the final manner: 
 

Highlights: 
The Highlights section presents a 5 year snap shot of the performance of the City’s 4 most 
important revenue sources. Each bar represents the actual amounts earned in each year through 
the period of the report. Each dash represents the percent of the year’s revenue that had been 
earned through that period. The current fiscal year will always represent the percent of the budget 
that has been earned, while all previous fiscal years will always represent the percent of the actual 
amount earned. This analysis highlights and compares not only amounts earned, but gives a better 
picture of how much should have been earned in order to meet budget for the year. 
 

  



Major Operating Funds: 
The City’s major operating funds are presented in greater detail than the remainder of the City’s 
funds. These funds include the General, Wastewater Operating, BMA – Wastewater, Water 
Operating, BMA – Water, and Sanitation. Due to the interrelated nature of the Wastewater 
Operating/BMA – Wastewater and the Water Operating/BMA – Water funds, these have been 
combined into Wastewater Combined and Water Combined funds. This should provide a better 
picture of the overall financial condition of these operating segments by combining revenues, 
operating expenses, and financing activities in a single report. 
 
Other Funds: 
All other funds of the City are reported at a high level. These funds are often created for a limited 
purpose, limited duration, and frequently contain only a one-time revenue source. This high level 
overview will provide Council with sufficient information for a summary review. Any additional 
information that is required after that review is available. 
 

These condensed financial statement should provide sufficient information for the City Council to 
perform its fiduciary responsibility while simplifying the process. All supplementary, detailed 
information is available for the Council’s use at any time upon request. Additionally, any other funds 
that the Council chooses to classify as a Major Operating fund can be added to that section to provide 
greater detail in the future. 



Agenda Item 8.h.i.



Agenda Item #___ 
5/28/2024 

Prepared by Steve Roper 
      Engineering Department 

 
 
 

BID REVIEW RECOMMENDATION 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
A. SUBJECT: 

Discuss and take action to award Bid No. 2023-2024-016 for the Pathfinder Improvements 
2024 Project. 
 

B. ATTACHMENTS: 
Bid Tabulation 
Construction Plans 

 
II. PROJECT DESCRIPTION, STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS, AND BUDGET 

AMOUNT. 
 

A.  PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

This project is a priority project included in the 2019A and 2021A General Obligation Bonds 
(GO Bonds).  The project consists of trail reconstruction at the following locations: Johnstone 
Park to Tuxedo Blvd., Robinwood Park, Polaris Park, and Douglas Park.  The trail will be 
overlaid from Adams Blvd. to Quapaw Ave.  A drainage structure will be replaced 
approximately one quarter miles southeast of the Shawnee Trailhead entrance.  All items of work 
were included in the Base Bid with no Bid Alternates.  

 
B.  COMMENTS: 

In addition to advertising in the local newspaper, Dodge Reports, E-Plan Bidding, and Southwest 
Construction News, nine (9) contractors obtained copies of the bid documents and six (6) 
contractors attended the mandatory pre-bid meeting.  Two (2) contractors submitted a bid.  The 
base bids were as follows: 

 

    Core Civil Construction, LLC. (Collinsville, OK)   $887,755.00 

    KSL Dirtworks, LLC (Bartlesville, OK)    $879,220.91 

   

The bids were evaluated for addendums, bid bonds, line-item prices, and arithmetic.  Both bids 
had all of the necessary components and were mathematically correct.    

 

C.  BUDGET AMOUNT: 

This project has multiple funding sources, originally totaling $778,564.00.  The 2019 A GO 
Bond provided $326,564.00 in funding for the project.  $45,000.00 was originally budgeted for 

 9



the Douglas Park portion of the project in the 2021 A GO Bond.  $100,000.00 of Capital 
Reserve Funds and $307,000.00 of Sales Tax Funds were also allocated to the project.  The 
project was designed using City staff, leaving the entire $778,564.00 for the construction 
portion of the project.  The lowest compliant bid by KSL Dirtworks, LLC of $879,220.91 
exceeds the original budget by $100,656.91.  Unallocated Sales Tax Revenues, which currently 
stand at over $415,000.00 and are anticipated to reach $746,000.00 through the 2024-2025 fiscal 
year will cover the remaining portion of the amount bid. 

 
III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

KSL Dirtworks is a local Bartlesville construction firm with experience in all tasks associated 
with this project.  They have completed projects successfully for the City of Bartlesville in the 
past and have provided information confirming they have the bonding capacity and technical 
expertise to complete this project. 

Staff recommends awarding the base bid to KSL Dirtworks, LLC in the amount of $879,220.91.   

 
 
 
              
                        Council Member      Date 
 

/s/ Jim Curd, Jr. May 29, 2004



Page 1 Bid Tab Pathfinder Parkway Improvements

PAY ITEM ESTIMATED 
QUANTITY UNIT DESCRIPTION OF PAY ITEM UNIT BID 

PRICE
TOTAL BID 
AMOUNT

UNIT BID 
PRICE

TOTAL BID 
AMOUNT

1 1.00                        LSUM SELECTIVE CLEARING 19,350.96$  19,350.96$       20,000.00$  20,000.00$      
2 50.00                      CY UNCLASSIFIED EXCAVATION 20.07$         1,003.50$         25.00$         1,250.00$        
3 50.00                      CY UNCLASSIFIED BORROW 43.17$         2,158.50$         65.00$         3,250.00$        
4 200.00                   LF TEMPORARY SILT FENCE 2.16$           432.00$            5.00$           1,000.00$        
5 100.00                   LF TEMPORARY SILT DIKE 10.19$         1,019.00$         25.00$         2,500.00$        
6 209.00                   SY SOLID SLAB SODDING 13.44$         2,808.96$         12.00$         2,508.00$        
7 1,105.00                CY AGGREGATE BASE TYPE A 101.39$       112,035.95$     72.00$         79,560.00$      
8 6,913.00                SY SUBGRADE, METHOD B 1.56$           10,784.28$       3.00$           20,739.00$      
9 1,467.00                TON SUPERPAVE, TYPE S5 (PG64-22OK) 172.86$       253,585.62$     135.00$       198,045.00$    

10 135.00                   TON SUPERPAVE, TYPE S5 (PG64-22OK)(LEVELING) 196.52$       26,530.20$       135.00$       18,225.00$      
11 476.00                   SY COLD MILLING PAVEMENT 5.41$           2,575.16$         15.00$         7,140.00$        
12 2,693.00                CY STRUCTURAL EXCAVATION (UNCLASSIFIED) 16.06$         43,249.58$       15.00$         40,395.00$      
13 215.00                   CY CLASS AA CONCRETE 648.82$       139,496.30$     700.00$       150,500.00$    
14 34,400.00              LB REINFORCING STEEL 1.38$           47,472.00$       3.00$           103,200.00$    
15 237.00                   TON TYPE I PLAIN RIPRAP WITH FILTER BLANKET 53.43$         12,662.91$       65.00$         15,405.00$      
16 24.00                      SY CONCRETE SIDEWALK 72.34$         1,736.16$         95.00$         2,280.00$        
17 24.00                      SF TACTILE WARNING DEVICE 32.96$         791.04$            35.00$         840.00$           
18 1.00                        EA MANHOLE ADJUST TO GRADE 1,078.69$    1,078.69$         1,000.00$    1,000.00$        
19 96.00                      LF REINFORCED CONCRETE PIPE, ROUND 12"DIA. 58.49$         5,615.04$         75.00$         7,200.00$        
20 12.00                      EA CULVERT END TREATMENT, SPECIAL 1,579.06$    18,948.72$       2,000.00$    24,000.00$      
21 1.00                        LSUM REMOVAL OF STRUCTURES AND OBSTRUCTIONS 11,021.00$  11,021.00$       10,000.00$  10,000.00$      
22 682.00                   LF REMOVAL OF FENCE 7.46$           5,087.72$         6.00$           4,092.00$        
23 6,913.00                SY REMOVAL OF TRAIL PAVEMENT 11.90$         82,264.70$       12.00$         82,956.00$      
24 682.00                   LF FENCE, STYLE CLF 6' HIGH 36.62$         24,974.84$       35.00$         23,870.00$      
25 1.00                        LSUM MOBILIZATION 37,471.40$  37,471.40$       50,000.00$  50,000.00$      
26 1.00                        LSUM CONSTRUCTION STAKING LEVEL II 3,526.72$    3,526.72$         10,000.00$  10,000.00$      
27 700.00                   LF TRAFFIC STRIPE PAINT 4" WIDE 4.52$           3,164.00$         4.00$           2,800.00$        
28 1.00                        LSUM COSTRUCTION TRAFFIC CONTROL 8,375.96$    8,375.96$         5,000.00$    5,000.00$        

879,220.91$     887,755.00$    

Core Civil Construction

Pathfinder Improvements 2024

TOTAL

KSL Dirtworks

BID TABULATION





































                    1  Agenda Item   
May 30, 2024 

Prepared by Micah Siemers 
Engineering 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
A public hearing to consider a request by Chris Hester to close a portion of the Interurban Street 
right-of-way located adjacent to Lot 1, Block 1, Highland Park, 2nd Addition, Bartlesville, 
Washington County, Oklahoma. 
 
Attachments: 

Ordinance 
Exhibit A 

 
II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

 
Applicant:   Chris Hester 
 
Requested Action: A public hearing to consider a request to close a portion of the Interurban Street 

Right-of-Way located adjacent to Lot 1, Block 1, Highland Park 2nd Addition, (Located 
at 225 NE Howard Avenue) Bartlesville, Washington County, Oklahoma. 

  said portion of right-of-way being more particularly described as 
follows: 

  
A TRACT OF LAND LYING ADJACENT TO LOT 1, BLOCK 1, 
HIGHLAND PARK 2ND ADDITION, BARTLESVILLE, 
WASHINGTON COUNTY, OKLAHOMA, BEING MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  BEGINNING 
AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID LOT 1; THENCE 
S58 ̊39’45”W A DISTANCE OF 150.69 FEET TO THE 
NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 1; THENCE 
N00 ̊57’38”W A DISTANCE OF 28.98 FEET; THENCE 
N58 ̊39’45”E A DISTANCE OF 150.69 FEET; THENCE 
S00 ̊57’38”E A DISTANCE OF 28.98 FEET TO THE POINT OF 
BEGINNING, CONTAINING 3767 SQUARE FEET, MORE OR 
LESS. 
 

SPECIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The applicant is requesting the closure so that they can utilize an existing footing for 
construction of a residential building on the property.  Currently, the footing encroaches 
upon the Interurban Drive right-of-way.  This would also help account for some building 
setback from the property line if approved.  This is a very wide right-of-way that was 
originally used for the Interurban Railroad.  Interurban Drive is located in the north half 
of the right-of-way, leaving a wide strip on the south side where this property is located. 
 

10.



1. City Staff: Staff has received no objections from Police, Fire, Planning, 
Public Works, Water Utilities or Engineering departments.  There are no city-
owned facilities located within the easement and no future plans for public utility 
extensions in this easement.  Due to the configuration of Interurban Drive and 
the width of the right-of-way, even if additional utilities or road widening was 
required in the future, there is plenty of room to facilitate with this request.  

 
2. Utility Companies: Staff has received no objections from ONG, AT&T or 

Sparklight.  However, PSO has stated that they cannot concur with the request.  
They have existing overhead electric lines and believe it in their best interest to 
keep the full right-of-way to be able to access and maintain the lines safely. 

  
III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

 
Staff recommends holding the public hearing and denial of the request to vacate any portion of 
the Interurban Drive right-of-way based upon input from PSO. An ordinance has been included 
with this recommendation in the event Council chooses to approve the request and authorize the 
Mayor to execute the ordinance. A public hearing notice has been placed in the Examiner 
Enterprise. 



ORDINANCE NO. _________ 
 

An Ordinance to close a portion to close a portion of the Interurban Street Right-of-Way Located 
adjacent to Lot 1, Block 1, Highland Park 2nd Addition, (Located at 225 NE Howard Avenue) 
Bartlesville, Washington County, Oklahoma.  

 
WHEREAS, heretofore the City Council of the City of Bartlesville received a request for the closing of 
a portion of a street right-of-way hereinafter described; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Council duly set said matter for public hearing and gave proper notice thereof and said 
matter was duly heard before the Council in an open meeting on June 3, 2024, where all viewpoints 
were considered; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council, after consideration, determined it necessary, expedient and desirable that the 
portion of the street right-of-way hereinafter to be closed. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA: 
 
The following described street right-of-way, described to wit: 
 
A TRACT OF LAND LYING ADJACENT TO LOT 1, BLOCK 1, HIGHLAND PARK 2ND 
ADDITION, BARTLESVILLE, WASHINGTON COUNTY, OKLAHOMA, BEING MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  BEGINNING AT THE NORTHEAST 
CORNER OF SAID LOT 1; THENCE S58 ̊ 39’45”W A DISTANCE OF 150.69 FEET TO THE 
NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID LOT 1; THENCE N00 ̊ 57’38”W A DISTANCE OF 28.98 
FEET; THENCE N58 ̊ 39’45”E  DISTANCE OF 150.69 FEET; THENCE S00̊ 57’38”E A 
DISTANCE OF 28.98 FEET TO THE POINTOF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 3767 SQUARE 
FEET, MORE OR LESS. 
     
Also, as shown as Exhibit A attached hereto and made a part of this ordinance be and the same is hereby 
closed. 
 
PASSED by the City Council and APPROVED by the Mayor of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma this 
3rd day of June, 2024. 

 
 
  
Dale Copeland, Mayor 

 
 
    ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
City Clerk 
(SEAL) 
 





Background: 
 
In 2021 the Bartlesville Development Authority established the Resident Recruitment Program to attract 
new residents to our community. The program was a test in conjunction with the acquisition of Concho 
Resources by ConocoPhillips. Because of the early success of the program, the RRP was broadened in 
the Fall of 2022, by approval of the council, to include all employees of primary industry in Bartlesville. 
As a reminder, the parameters are:  
Must relocate from outside the Bartlesville Public School District. 
$10,000 toward the purchase of a new home inside the Bartlesville city limits. 
$20,000 toward the purchase of a new custom home inside the Bartlesville city limits. 
$10,000 toward the purchase of a new custom home outside the Bartlesville city limits but inside the 
Bartlesville Public School district. 
 
The results speak for themselves and include: 
64 new households 
A total of $422,500 disbursed 
4 new residents who started as renters and converted to owners 
6 new residents who relocated from an international location 
 
Action Item: 
 
Discuss and possibly take action on a recommendation from the Bartlesville Development 
Authority for extension of the Resident Recruitment Program incentive. - Chris Batchelder, 
BDA 

Agenda Item 11.


	City Council Agenda June 3, 2024
	Agenda Item 6. Purple Heart City Proclamation
	Dale W. Copeland, Mayor

	Agenda Item 8.a.i. City Council Minutes May 6, 2024
	Agenda Item 8.b.i. BAHM Appointment of Melanie Bayles
	Agenda Item 8.b.ii. KBB appointment of Laura Jensen
	Agenda Item 8.b.iii. Street and Traffic Committee re-appoint Jana Tresher
	Agenda Item 8.b.iv. BDA appointment of Tara Gotwalt
	Agenda Item 8.c.i. Ordinances for CM and ACM CMO
	Agenda Item 8.d.i. Resolution amending contracts of Judge and Golf Pro
	Agenda Item 8.d.ii. Resolution amending budget for Golf Course Memorial Fund
	Council Cover Letter GOLF MEM 2024
	Golf Course Memorial Fund Unanticipated Donation Rev 2024

	Agenda Item 8.d.iii. Resolution Amending budget FY 23-24 ODAA for Airport
	Agenda Item 8.e.i. Kellogg and Sovereign Prof E-Rate Fee Schedule
	Agenda Item 8.e.ii. HCC Life Insurance Agreement
	Agenda Item 8.e.iii. Hangar 8 Lease with BMI Aviation
	Agenda Item 8.e.iv. Hangar 1 with Phoenix Rising
	Agenda Item 8.e.v. Hangar 2 Lease Agreement for Sarah's Oil LLC
	Agenda Item 8.e.vi. WC SPCA Amended Contract
	Agenda Item 8.e.vii. Staff report_Contract Award_Haynes Equipment
	Staff report_Contract Award_Haynes Equipment
	Short Form Contract_Filter Aide Skid_WTP
	Haynes Quote 2024.04.25
	EI2 Quote - Polymerfeed Unit Replacement 051724
	QTY                      Description     Factory     Cost_____________


	Agenda Item 8.e.viii. Staff report for Keleher PS_Operation yard sheds
	Staff report for Keleher PS_Operation yard sheds
	Untitled_2024052911312695
	CityofBvilleProposal-Sheds_edit

	Agenda Item 8.e.ix. Staff report for PS with Tetra Tech on WWTP Expansion_Amdmt_03
	Staff report for PS with Tetra Tech on WWTP Expansion_Amdmt_03
	Staff report for PS with Tetra Tech on WWTP Expansion_Amdmt_03
	20240529140122


	Agenda Item 8.e.x. Staff report for WWTP Contract with Veolia
	Staff report for WWTP Contract with Veolia
	Bartlesville Amendment 4 Extension_clean
	Agreement for Op & Maint CWWTP 6-5-2000 & Amendment No 1 4-16-2001
	Amendment No 2 to CWWTP Agreement 6-7-2010
	Amendment No 3 to Veolia Agreement

	Agenda Item 8.e.xi. Staff report_Yale Reconstruction Design Contract_CEC
	Agenda Item 8.e.xii. CivicPlus Agreement
	CivicPlus Council Cover Letter Template
	Bartlesville OK P23 Annual Billing Agreement SOW

	Agenda Item 8.e.xiii. City Attorney Employment Agreement
	Agenda Item 8.e.xiv. Rocky R. Bevard Employment Agreement
	Agenda Item 8.e.xv. MOU with IAFF RE Johnny Kelley
	I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND
	II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS
	III. BUDGET IMPACT
	IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION
	MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

	Agenda Item 8.e.xvi. MOU updating Appendix 1 of FOP Coll. Bargaining Agmt for FY 2023-2025
	Agenda Item 8.e.xvii. MOU to update Art. 15 of FOP Coll. Bargaining Agrmt. for FY 24-25
	Agenda Item 8.e.xviii. Disaster Emergency Proclamation
	Agenda Item 8.e.xix. City of Bartlesville Response to USDI-BIA RE Bartlesville Property
	Agenda Item 8.e.xix. US Dept of the Interior-Bureau of Indian Affairs RE Bartlesville Property
	Agenda Item 8.f.i. Bartlesville NEXT Progress Report-May 2024
	Agenda Item 8.g.i. April 2024 Financials
	April 2024 Financials Council Cover Letter Template
	P10 April 2024 Financials
	P10 April 2024 Financials
	Cover
	TOC
	Highlights
	General Fund
	Wastewater
	Water
	Sanitation Operate
	OF - Revenue
	OF - Expense
	OF - Fund Balance

	Financial Statement Explanatory Memo


	Agenda Item 8.h.i. Invitation for bids-signed
	Agenda Item 9. Bid Review Recommendation for Bid No. 2023-2024-016
	BID REVIEW_Pathfinder Improvements 2024
	bid tab Pathfinder Improvements
	Signed Plan Set No Standards with Addendum
	signed set 11X17 no standards
	ADDENDUM 1 SHEET 4


	Agenda Item 10.  225 Howard Easement Closing
	Agenda Item 11. Resident Recruitment Renewal Council 060324



